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- 2,993 - - 2,993
MABS - 2,231 281 - 2,512
9 - 7,602 1,059 - 8,661
- 30,394 1,258 - 31,652
35 102,874 606 154 - 103,634
4,154 124,309 343 - 128,806
- 8,783 367 - 9,150
65 108,037 620 - 108,722
2,704 72,532 446 - 75,682
1,366 12,370 2,195 - 15,931
1 (6,471) (251,771) (645) (40,835) (299,722)
1,818 74,260 3,326 (40,835) 38,569
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78 148 (92 /92 ) 79 85 (82 /85 )
30 68 (44 /38 ) 27 70 (43 /39 )
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000000O000O(E05871)
ooooodo
( )
1
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 97 $ 96
7 7
0 90 (48 ) 0 92 (46 )
10 360bps(90bps) 10 404bps(94bps)
10 590bps(76bps) 18 590bps(67bps)
$ 589 $ (365)
5 10 (8 /8 ) -4 26 (7 /5 )
N/M -3 12 (2 /0 )
90 95 (91 /95 ) 95
$ (1,148) $ (1,102)
798 (20 ) 6 97 (23 )
2 0 (1) -1 0 (0)
20 94 (58 ) 25 97 (49 )
-68 60 (-36 ) =79 40 (-28 )
N/M 10 30 (15 )
$ 1,308 $ 1,290
$0 $185($48)/Mih $0  $220($49)/Mih
0 165 (37 ) 8 123 (31 )
54 100 (94 ) 54 100 (94 )
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

( )

1

2024 12 31

2023 12 31

$ 444

11 102bps(36/26bps)

$ 449

28 135bps(79bps)

$ 76 $ 92
0 100 22 101
(33 ) (76 )
$ 947 $ 1,878

7071 Q1)
2 0 (0)
53 64 (58 )
52 24 (12 )
N/M

247 433bps(340bps)

54 84 (62 /54 )

6 69 (13 )

2 0 (0)

41 97 (79 )
-65 40 (-30 )
50 89 (71 /70%)

N/M

54 84 (62 /54 )

$ 4,518
109 1,469bps(1,007bps)
25 100 71

207 280bps(254bps)

$ 4,532
99 1,467bps(1,015bps)
25 93 (70 )
115 268bps(185bps)

IR
FX

2024
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EBITDA EBITDA
EBITDA EBITDA
EBITDA

o1S

WACC WACC
WACC
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EDINETOOOO

0000000000(E05871)
0oooood
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 2,653 644 $ 2,685 $ 72
3,461 214 2,765 240
92 2 74 3
$ 6,206 860 $ 5,524 $ 963
NAV
22
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EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

2024 12 31
$ 1,066 $ 2,016
1,432 1,334
155 111
$ 2,653 $ 3,461

oOoOooodn



OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd

( )

2024 12 31

1
$ 1,607 $ 4,518 $ 6,125
- 58 58
23 - 23
$ 1,630 $ 4,576 $ 6,206
$ 48 33 81
$ 48 $ 33 81
( )

2023 12 31

1
$ 4,215 $ 4,532 $ 8,747
- 4 4
23 - 23
$ 4,238 $ 4,536 $ 8,774
$ 110 $ 60 $ 170
$ 110 $ 60 $ 170
( )

2024 2023 2022

$  (64) $  (426) $  (563)
® (15) 14)
an ® ®
(33) (35) (11)
$  (123) $  (484) $  (594)
$ 19 $ 75 $  (137)
$ 19 $ 75 $  (137)

216/432
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EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
CDS
( )
2024 12 31

$ 105,386 $ 105,386 $ - $ - $ 105,386
61,071 15,803 34,180 1,220 51,203
118,565 - 117,151 1,450 118,601
123,859 - 123,859 - 123,859
79,586 - 75,361 4,056 79,417
225,834 - 17,859 202,297 220,156
12,319 - 6,324 6,115 12,439
839 - 839 - 839

$ 369,508 $ - $ 370,039 $ - $ 370,039
49,111 - 49,103 - 49,103
15,226 - 15,228 - 15,228
7,514 - 7,511 - 7,511
175,890 - 175,890 - 175,890
185,487 - 188,269 93 188,362

$ 175,774 $ - $ 1,094 $ 839 $ 1,933
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2023 12 31
$ 89,232 $ 89,232 $ - $ - $ 89,232
66,694 21,937 34,411 1,105 57,453
110,733 - 108,099 2,674 110,773
121,091 - 121,091 - 121,091
74,337 - 70,110 4,031 74,141
203,385 - 20,125 176,291 196,416
15,255 - 8,652 6,672 15,324
704 - 704 - 704
$ 345,332 $ - $ 345,391 $ - $ 345,391
61,631 - 61,621 - 61,621
15,057 - 15,055 - 15,055
2,756 - 2,756 - 2,756
208,015 - 208,015 - 208,015
169,832 - 171,009 4 171,013
$ 149,464 $ - $ 1,338 $ 749 $ 2,087
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 49,144 $ 46,073
34,451 31,055
14,829 12,798
3,306 2,400
1,602 1,574
$ 103,332 $ 93,900
( )
1
2024
$ (1,118) $ 650 $ (1,767)
(134) 242 (376)
2023
(7,991) 503 (8,494)
2022
12,370 293 12,077
1.

219/432



2024

2023

2022

AOCI

VIE

DVA

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)

Ogoooood
( )

ocCl
$  (53) $ -
(€)) -
- 39
@7 (663)
$  (123) $ -
14 -
- 17
(19) (1,726)
$  (108) $ -
12) -
- (@))
_ 2,006
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ (2,868) $ (2,166)
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

$ 10,207 $ 11,086
7,719 8,566
3,249 3,030
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ooooooo
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 647 $ 440
155 $ 75




EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2024 12 31
$ 4 $ - $ - $ 4
185 122 - 307
189 122 — 311
_ 28 — 28
115,520 13,163 119 128,802
4,711 4,411 — 9,122
104,024 4,301 90 108,415
24,368 — 51,314 75,682
14,071 — 1,860 15,931
262,694 21,903 53,383 337,980
$ 262,883 $ 22,025 $ 53,383 $ 338,291
(188,069) (20,276) (51,168) (259,513)
(38,511) (1,698) _ (40,209)
$ 36,303 $ 51 $ 2,215 $ 38,569
(17,837) _ _ (17,837)
$ 18,466 $ 51 $ 2,215 $ 20,732
( ) $ 3,354
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OoOoOoOoOodno
( )
2024 12 31
$ 533 $ — $ - $ 533
3 — - 3
536 — - 536
53 718 — 771
104,495 13,038 124 117,657
4,941 3,860 - 8,801
100,730 4,085 153 104,968
42,332 — 53,142 95,474
11,584 — 1,979 13,563
264,135 21,701 55,398 341,234
$ 264,671 $ 21,701 $ 55,398 $ 341,770
(188,070) (20,276) (51,168) (259,514)
(43,126) (1,200) _ (44,326)
$ 33,475 $ 225 $ 4,230 $ 37,930
(6,338) - (2,658) (8,996)
$ 27,137 $ 225 $ 1,572 $ 28,934
( ) $ 4,321

223/432
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2023 12 31
$ 25 $ - $ - $ 25
5 5 — 10
30 5 - 35
2 27 — 29
127,414 19,914 854 148,182
5,712 4,896 - 10,608
90,654 2,570 16 93,240
20,338 — 37,737 58,075
13,928 — 2,353 16,281
258,048 27,407 40,960 326,415
$ 258,078 $ 27,412 $ 40,960 $ 326,450
(184,553) (23,851) (38,510) (246,914)
(39,493) (2,730) _ (42,223)
$ 34,032 $ 831 $ 2,450 $ 37,313
(15,690) _ _ (15,690)
$ 18,342 $ 831 $ 2,450 $ 21,623
( ) $ 2,641
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2023 12 31
$ 467 $ - $ - $ 467
414 43 _ 457
881 43 — 924
43 702 — 745
120,604 17,179 590 138,373
5,920 4,427 — 10,347
87,104 2,694 106 89,904
31,545 — 37,349 68,894
12,237 — 2,830 15,067
257,453 25,002 40,875 323,330
$ 258,334 $ 25,045 $ 40,875 $ 324,254
(184,553) (23,851) (38,510) (246,914)
(41,082) (983) _ (42,065)
$ 32,699 $ 211 $ 2,365 $ 35,275
(6,864) ®) 37 (6,909)
$ 25,835 $ 203 $ 2,328 $ 28,366
( ) $ 5,911

225/432



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
ooooOoog
)
2024 12 31
- $ 108 $ - $ 108
14 4 — 18
14 112 - 126
3,713 4,367 442 8,522
208 149 - 357
2,717 171 9 2,897
591 - 609 1,200
137 - 77 214
7,366 4,687 1,137 13,190
7,380 $ 4,799 $ 1,137 $ 13,316
)
2024 12 31
2 $ 193 $ - $ 195
1 - - 1
3 193 - 196
2 20 - 22
3,626 4,468 417 8,511
230 133 - 363
2,763 178 18 2,959
754 - 826 1,580
100 - 89 189
7,475 4,799 1,350 13,624
7,478 $ 4,992 $ 1,350 $ 13,820

226/432
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
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( )
2023 12 31
- $ 92 $ — $ 92
1 1 - 2
1 93 - 94
— 1 — 1
4,153 8,357 560 13,070
214 176 - 390
3,378 165 7 3,550
528 - 440 968
142 - 65 207
8,415 8,699 1,072 18,186
8,416 $ 8,792 $ 1,072 $ 18,280
( )
2023 12 31
3 $ 183 $ - $ 186
14 3 - 17
17 186 - 203
2 22 - 24
4,631 8,197 455 13,283
229 155 - 384
3,496 167 33 3,696
587 - 712 1,299
101 - 79 180
9,046 8,541 1,279 18,866
9,063 $ 8,727 $ 1,279 $ 19,069
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OoOoOoOoOodno
«C )
( )
2024 2023 2022
$ 291 $  (576) $ 1,928
(204) 638 (1,838)
$ (822 $ 3,664 $ (15,159)
(75) (88) 124
889 (3,564) 15,042
ocl $ 1,084 $  (169) $ 657
214 211 (33)
1
ocl $  (100) $ 9 $ (0))
AOCI « )
(32) (16) -
AOCI (68) 25 O
1. 2024 2024 12 31 12 AOCI
( ) 31
28
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
1 $ 54,809 $ 47,179
2 $  (741) $  (732)
$ 21,524 $ 10,569
2 $ 44 $ (31)
$ 171,834 $ 158,659
$ (10,072) $ (9,219)
$  (648) $  (671)
1. 2024 12 31
325 178
2024 12 31 ()
2.
«c )
( )
2024 2023 2022
1 (294) (522) (62)
1.
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ooooooo
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 22,414 $ 21,957
16,252 16,389
( )
2024 12 31
$ 235
411
$ 524
S&P



CDS

CDS
CDS

CDS

CDS
CDS

CDS

CDS

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2024 12 31
15 31 $ 37 10 $ 93
7 16 16 1 40
22 47 $ 53 11 $ 133
3 12 $ 10 - $ 25
11 22 158 16 207
14 34 $ 168 16 232
36 81 $ 221 27 $ 365
— - - 3 3
36 81 $ 221 30 $ 368
$ 303
( )
2023 12 31

19 29 $ 39 10 $ 97
7 14 17 1 39
26 43 $ 56 11 $ 136
19 $ 85 4 $ 116
14 95 17 134
16 33 $ 180 21 $ 250
42 76 $ 236 32 386
— — - 3 3
42 76 $ 236 35 $ 389

230/432
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
« D!
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
CDS

$ 1,890 $ 1,904

585 399

$ 2,475 $ 2,303

cDS

$ 799 $ 1,929

489 45

1,288 $ 1,974

cDS $ 3,763 $ 4,277
133 314

$ 3,89 $ 4,591

1.
CDS
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

$ 156 $ 166

193 213

28 30

$ 377 $ 409

( )

« )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

$ (2,693) $ (2,799)

(654) (1,208)

(962) (1,012)
$ (4,309) $ (5,019)

CDS
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FFELP

EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

2024 12 31 )

1
$ 70,160 62 $ 388 69,834
24,113 6 2,652 21,467
5,704 - 388 5,316
1,373 18 4 1,387
612 1 9 604
O] 2 - -
101,960 89 3,441 98,608
16,885 - 1,082 15,803
41,582 4 8,592 32,994
1,154 - 88 1,066
1,450 3 113 1,340
61,071 7 9,875 51,203
$ 163,031 96 $ 13,316 $ 149,811
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2023 12 31
1
$ 58,484 $ 24 $ 1,103 $ 57,405
2 25,852 4 2,528 23,328
5,871 - 456 5,415
1,132 46 5 1,173
FFELP 3 810 - 18 792
92,149 74 4,110 88,113
23,222 - 1,285 21,937
2 40,894 - 7,699 33,195
1,337 - 121 1,216
1,241 2 138 1,105
66,694 2 9,243 57,453
$ 158,843 $ 76 $ 13,353 $ 145,566
CcMo

95

234/432



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
ooooOoog
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
12 $ 18,338 $ 65 $ 14,295 $ 22
12 19,629 323 33,458 1,081
37,967 388 47,753 1,103
12 765 11 4,297 43
12 18,996 2,641 18,459 2,485
19,761 2,652 22,756 2,528
12 5,018 388 5,415 456
5,018 388 5,415 456
12 242 2 524 3
12 62 2 35
304 4 559 5
FFELP
12 - - 56 1
12 442 9 616 17
442 9 672 18
12 19,345 78 19,172 69
12 44,147 3,363 57,983 4,041
$ 63,492 $ 3,441 $ 77,155 $ 4,110
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
52 44
2024 12 31 2023 12 31 98
2024 12 31
2023 12 31
VIE
FFELP 15
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2024 12 31

! 2 3
$ 18,575 $ 18,393
46,529 46,395
10 5,056 5,046
70,160 69,834

11 11 1.0

254 241 1.6

10 414 380 1.8

10 23,434 20,835 3.4
24,113 21,467

4,054 3,899 2.0

10 547 535 -

10 1,103 882 1.5
5,704 5,316

852 852 4.9

215 214 4.7

10 49 48 5.8

10 257 273 4.6
1,373 1,387

FFELP

12 11 5.3

113 110 5.6

10 24 23 5.4

10 463 460 5.8
612 604

4 O] - -
101,960 98,608 3.3
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EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2024 12 31
1 2
$ 4,635 $ 4,558 1.2
10,191 9,777 2.3
10 503 414 1.1
10 1,556 1,054 2.3
16,885 15,803
8 8 1.8
10 223 208
10 41,351 32,778
41,582 32,994
294 289 1.5
632 591 1.2
10 176 144 1.6
10 52 42 1.3
1,154 1,066
146 124 3.9
648 618 4.5
10 455 403 4.0
10 201 195 7.4
1,450 1,340
61,071 51,203 2.
$ 163,031 $ 149,811 2.9
2024 12 31
2.7 3.8
« )
( )
2024 2023 2022
$ 52 $ 70 $ 164
« ) - 1) (€IY)
1 $ 52 $ 49 $ 70
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)

OooooOodd
( )

2024 12 31
1
$ 409,635 $ (291,070) $ 118,565  $ (116,157) $ 2,408
165,642 (41,783) 123,859 (117,573) 6,286
$ 341,137 $ (291,070) $ 50,067 $ (45,520) $ 4,547
57,009 (41,783) 15,226 (15,211) 15
« )
$ 2,054
2,079
3,448
( )
2023 12 31
1
$ 300,242 $ (189,502) $ 110,740  $ (108,893) $ 1,847
142,453 (21,362) 121,001 (115,969) 5,122
$ 252,153 $ (189,502) $ 62,651 $ (58,357) $ 4,294
36,419 (21,362) 15,057 (15,046) 11
« )

$ 1,741
607
3,014
2
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
)
( )
2024 12 31
30 30 90 90
$ 180,793 $ 104,551 $ 25,071 $ 30,722 $ 341,137
42,473 - 317 14,219 57,009
$ 223,266 $ 104,551 $ 25,388 $ 44,941 $ 398,146
18,067 - - - 18,067
$ 241,333 $ 104,551 $ 25,388 $ 44,941 $ 416,213
( )
2023 12 31
30 30 90 90
$ 80,376 $ 114,826 $ 25,510 $ 31,441 $ 252,153
21,508 1,345 709 12,857 36,419
$ 101,884 $ 116,171 $ 26,219 $ 44,298 $ 288,572
13,528 - - - 13,528
$ 115,412 $ 116,171 $ 26,219 $ 44,298 $ 302,100
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

oOoOooodn
( )

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 177,464 $ 98,377
135,806 122,342
14,993 18,144
12,874 13,290
$ 341,137 $ 252,153
$ 1,805 $ 1,379
54,144 34,434
1,060 606
$ 57,009 $ 36,419
$ 398,146 $ 288,572
$ 18,059 $ 13,502
8 26
$ 18,067 $ 13,528
$ 416,213 $ 302,100
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

$ 30,867 $ 37,522
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oOoOooodn
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 932,626 $ 735,830
724,177 553,386
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 26,329 $ 20,670
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
11 12
12 11




EDINETOOOO

D000000000(ESS7L)
Doooooo
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 55,882 $ 45,644

VIE

13 15
2024 12 31 437 2023 12 31 3,472
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
( )
2024 12 31

$ 6,889 $ 9,183 $ 16,072
48,842 2,507 51,349
8,412 628 9,040
66,738 - 66,738
96,019 1 96,020
226,900 12,319 239,219
(1,066) (1,066)

$ 225,834 $ 12,319 $ 238,153
$ 23,335 $ 4,763 $ 28,098

( )

2023 12 31

$ 6,758 $ 11,862 $ 18,620
39,498 3,161 42,659
8,678 209 8,887
60,375 22 60,397
89,245 1 89,246
204,554 15,255 219,809
(1,169) (1,169)

$ 203,385 $ 15,255 $ 218,640
$ 21,152 $ 5,043 $ 26,195
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( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ - $ 16,071 $ — $ 18,620
_ 51,349 - 42,659
— 9,041 141 8,746
31,014 35,724 28,934 31,464
25,478 70,542 23,922 65,323
$ 56,492 $ 182,727 $ 52,997 $ 166,812
14
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2024
2023
2022
2021
2020
2019

2024
2023
2022
2021
2020
2019

2024
2023
2022
2021
2020
2019

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
)
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 2,668 $ 3,963 $ 6,631 2,350 $ 3,863 $ 6,213
76 58 134
- 50 50 - 88 88
- 25 25 - 166 166
15 - 15 15 89 104
31 3 34 29 25 54
- - - - 133 133
$ 2,790 $ 4,099 $ 6,889 2,394 $ 4,364 $ 6,758
)
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 11,405 $ 27,753 $ 39,158 9,494 $ 22,240 $ 31,734
818 2,863 3,681
1,371 1,359 2,730 1,535 1,459 2,994
279 1,909 2,188 392 2,390 2,782
- 198 198 - 365 365
— — - — 80 80
100 787 887 356 1,187 1,543
$ 13,973 $ 34,869 $ 48,842 11,777 $ 27,721 $ 39,498
)
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ - $ 161 $ 161 - $ 170 $ 170
147 2,202 2,349
351 772 1,123 261 1,067 1,328
305 1,488 1,793 284 1,900 2,184
166 1,603 1,769 370 1,494 1,864
— 430 430 - 756 756
- 787 787 195 2,181 2,376
$ 969 $ 7,443 $ 8,412 1,110 $ 7,568 $ 8,678
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
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( )
2024 12 31
FICO
740 680 739 679 80 80
$ 136 $ 39 $ 5 $ 180 $ - $ 180
2024 8,653 1,607 191 9,458 993 10,451
2023 6,778 1,431 201 7,529 881 8,410
2022 10,294 2,298 370 11,941 1,021 12,962
2021 10,510 2,247 228 12,094 891 12,985
2020 6,494 1,346 97 7,529 408 7,937
2019 10,594 2,825 394 12,826 987 13,813
$ 53,459 $ 11,793 $ 1,486 $ 61,557 $ 5,181 $ 66,738
( )
2023 12 31
FICO
740 680 739 679 80 80
$ 108 $ 33 $ 8 $ 149 $ - $ 149
2023 7,390 1,517 230 8,168 969 9,137
2022 10,927 2,424 389 12,650 1,090 13,740
2021 11,075 2,376 239 12,763 927 13,690
2020 6,916 1,430 104 8,017 433 8,450
2019 11,642 3,131 436 14,106 1,103 15,209
$ 48,058 $ 10,911 $ 1,406 $ 55,853 $ 4,522 $ 60,375
( )
2024 12 31
2
1
$ 76,432 $ 6,342 $ 1,551 $ 84,325
2024 1,291 719 453 2,463
2023 949 424 685 2,058
2022 449 472 1,053 1,974
2021 100 14 538 652
2020 39 219 497 755
2019 231 1,211 2,350 3,792
$ 74,491 $ 9,401 $ 7,127 $ 96,019
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
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( )
2023 12 31
2
1
$ 71,474 $ 5,230 $ 1,362 $ 78,066
2023 1,612 627 346 2,585
2022 1,128 816 804 2,748
2021 165 330 377 872
2020 - 435 414 849
2019 215 2,096 1,814 4,125
$ 74,594 $ 9,534 $ 5,117 $ 89,245
1. 2024 12 31 2023 12 31
2. 10-K
1
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ - $ 47
272 185
186 160
86 1
$ 544 $ 393
1.2024 12 31 90 2023 12 31
90
1
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 108 $ 95
6 87
447 426
160 95
298 174
$ 1,019 $ 877
$ 162 $ 86
1.2024 12 31 2023 12 31 90
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1. 2024

2023 12 31
2024 12 31

EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

)
12 31

2024 2023
2 2
$ 211 3.1 $ 183 2.7
41 0.1 _ _
172 2.0 199 2.3
_ _ 1 0.1
138 0.1 145 0.2
$ 562 0.4 $ 528 0.3
$ - - $ 71 0.1
$ - - $ 71 0.1
$ - $ - -
$ _ $ - —
$ 81 1.0 $ - -
1 _ _
$ 82 0.1 $ -
$ - - $ 24 0.3
$ - - $ 24 0.3
$ 646 0.3 $ 624 0.4

2023 12 31 746 1,062
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2024 12 31
15 0 $ - -
2 0 _ _
11 0 _ _
0 0 - 1
21 0 _ _
61 0 - 2
84 0 - 1
2023 12 31 1
22 0 $ _ _
50 0 _ _
4 0 . -
7 6 . -
7 6 $ - _
120 0 $ - 1
12
( )
2024 12 31
30 89 90
$ _ 56 56
( )
2023 12 31
30 89 90
$ 24 $ 21 $ 45
_ 1 1
$ 24 $ 22 $ 46
2024 12 31 2024 12 31 12
56

2023 12 31 12
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)
2024 12 31
241 153 % 463 100 212 1,169
(39) (11) (165) - @7 (242)
_ - 4 - 3 7
(39) (11) (161) - (24) (235)
2 1 77 ®3) 69 146
® ®) ®) - @ 14
200 140 % 373 97 256 1,066
3 22 4 29 42 100
431 70 % 26 4 20 551
86 19 16 - (©) 118
(10) @ @ - - (13)
507 88 % 40 4 17 656
707 228 % 413 101 273 1,722
)
2023 12 31
235 153 % 275 87 89 839
(34) - (129) - ) (167)
1 _ - 1 — 2
(33) _ (129) 1 ) (165)
37 - 314 13 124 488
2 - 3 (6H) 3 7
241 153§ 463 100 212 1,169
3 19 4 30 44 100
411 51 $ 15 4 23 504
16 18 11 - [€H) 44
4 1 - - @ 3
431 70 % 26 4 20 551
672 223 % 489 104 232 1,720
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( )
2022 12 31
$ 165 163 $ 206 60 60 $ 654
- ©)) Q) - (21) (E1D)
6 - - 1 - /
« ) 6 (©)) ©) 1 (21) (24)
« ) 65 (6) 80 26 51 216
@ @ (©) - @ Q)
$ 235 153 $ 275 87 89 $ 839
1 3 18 4 27 48 100
$ 356 41 $ 20 1 26 $ 444
C ) 59 10 ®) 3 3) 64
* - - - - @
$ 411 51 $ 15 4 23 $ 504
$ 646 204 $ 290 91 112 $ 1,343
2024
2024 12 31
GDP
CECL
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2022
2021
2020
2019

2020
2019
2018

(

90

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
( )
2024 12 31
(39) - $ - $ - $ - $  (39)
- - (18) - - (18)
- - 14 - @ (16)
- 11) - - - 11)
_ - (133) - (25) (158)
(39) (11) $ (165) $ - $ @0 $ (242)
( )
2023 12 31
G4 - $ - $ - $ - $ (39
- - - - (©)) €©))
- - (85) - @ (86)
- - (44) - - (44)
(34) - $ (129) $ - $ @ $ (167)
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
0.5 0.6
0.4 0.4
104.6 133.3
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 4,255 $ 4,257
83 92
$ 4,338 $ 4,349
(112) 121)
$ 4,226 $ 4,228
) 5.6 5.8
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)
2022 12 31 1 $ 429 $ 10,202 $ 6,021 $ 16,652
®) 2 7 4
_ — 56 56
- ®) - ®)
2023 12 31 1 $ 424 $ 10,199 $ 6,084 $ 16,707
(12) ®) ©) (23)
23 - - 23
- (€D - (€D
2024 12 31 1 $ 435 $ 10,190 $ 6,081 $ 16,706
2 $ 673 $ - $ 27 $ 700
1.
2. 2024 2023 2022
)
2022 12 31 $ 36 $ 3,011 $ 3,671 $ 7,618
_ 9 37 46
_ (13) - 13
10) (481) (110) (601)
_ 1 4 5
2023 12 31 $ 26 $ 3,427 $ 3,602 $ 7,055
13 - - 13
- (O] - ©)
(10) (479) (113) (602)
) (©)] ) @]
2024 12 31 $ 27 $ 2,939 $ 3,487 $ 6,453
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( )
( )
2024 12 31
$ 2,112 $ 245 $ 93
_ 8,746 5,121
- 769 223
_ 26 8
$ 2,112 $ 9,786 $ 5,445
2023 12 31
$ 2,113 $ 245 $ 72
_ 8,763 4,582
- 767 187
_ 14 6
$ 2,113 $ 9,789 $ 4,847
( )
2024 12 31
2025 $ 451
2026 343
2027 340
2028 336
2029 333
2024
11
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 1,869 $ 1,915
( )
2024 2023 2022
( ) $ 241 $ 124 $ 39
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( )
2024 2023 2022
MUMSS « ) $ 146 $ 129 $ 35
MUFG
MUMSS
MSMS
40
MUFG 60
MUMSS 40
MSMS 51
MUFG
2024
MUFG
2024
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
1 $ 1,787 $ 1,699
2 67 _
3 $ 1,854 $ 1,699
1. 2024 12 31 2023 12 31 613 661
2. 2024

3. 2024 12 31
48
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( )
2024 2023 2022
$ 301 $ 237 $ 208
(239) 197) (174)
$ 62 $ 40 $ 34
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 4,114 $ 4,368
4,937 5,417
8.5 8.7
4.3 4.0

259/432



EDINETOOOO

000000000 m0(eos871)
ooooooo
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

2024 $ 913
2025 $ 772 846
2026 790 774
2027 736 716
2028 716 644
2029 562 500
2,405 2,137

5,981 6,530
(1,044) (1,113)

$ 4,937 $ 5,417

$ 63 $ 248

( )

2024 2023 2022

$ 917 $ 938 $ 841

1 181 206 170

(6) (10) Q)

$ 1,002 $ 1,134 $ 1,004

( )

2024 2023 2022
$ 942 $ 892 $ 88l
489 1,055 544
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( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

$ 299,898 $ 288,252
76,109 63,552
$ 376,007 $ 351,804

FDIC $ 298,351 $ 276,598
FDIC $ 77,656 $ 75,206

( )
2024 12 31

2025 $ 38,046
2026 18,016
2027 9,433
2028 6,047
2029 4,148
419

$ 76,109

( )
2024 12 31

$ 2,659

431

12 390

12 _
$ 3,480

( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

$ 700 $ 880
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DOO0O00O00OO0O0O0O(ES871)
ooooooo
13
( )
2024 12 2023 12
1 2 1 2 31 31
12 $ - $ - $ 146 $ 4,366 $ 4,512 $ 3,188
2024 $ 20,151
2025 $ 6,617 $ 927 $ 2,672 $ 11,705 $ 21,921 35,523
2026 23,288 1,450 3,828 9,403 37,969 35,423
2027 18,833 1,883 3,452 9,882 34,050 25,338
2028 12,478 1,366 5,808 9,067 28,719 21,239
2029 16,129 189 1,278 8,563 26,159 22,193
96,378 2,508 11,499 25,104 135,489 100,677
$ 173,723 $ 8,323 $ 28,537 $ 73,724 $ 284,307 $ 260,544
$ 173,723 $ 8,323 $ 28,683 $ 78,090 $ 288,819 $ 263,732
3 3.9 4.9 5.1 5.9 4.1 3.6
1.
2
SOFR
3.
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 270,594 $ 248,174
13,713 12,370
$ 284,307 $ 260,544
() 6.6 6.6
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( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 429 $ 1,571
$ 3,597 $ 3,166
2024 2023
4.5 4.3
2025 2039
2024 12 31 2023 12 31 2022 12 31
4.1 3.6 3.2
5.6 6.5 5.1
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 17,133 $ 5,732
4,469 6,923
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$ 21,602 $ 12,655
10,275 5,848
1
( )
2024 12 31
- 2023 12 31
12 $ 3,055 $ 3,951 $ 7,006 $ 8
2024 $ 5,085
2025 $ - $ 2,389 $ 2,389 95
2026 7 683 690 92
2027 - 107 107 —
2028 - 453 453 434
2029 _ _ _ _
7 675 682 1,093
$ 14 $ 4,307 $ 4,321 $ 6,799
3 4.6 4.9 4.6 5.6

SOFR

VIE
VIE
15
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1
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
2024 $ - $ 5,749
2025 10,184 9
2026 42 36
2027 5 21
2028 12 11
2029 5 3
27 19
$ 10,275 $ 5,848
1.
14
( )
2024 12 31
$ 17,393 $ 40,373 $ 64,851 $ 6,357 $ 128,974
6,894 6,646 7,169 3,874 24,583
762 404 126 411 1,703
16,453 3,418 788 612 21,271
L 122,535 1,503 - - 124,038
300 - - 20,747 21,047
1,509 107 84 466 2,166
39 2 - 6 47
$ 165,885 $ 52,453 $ 73,018 $ 32,473 $ 323,829
$ 10,859
1. 2024 12 31
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. 2024 12 31

SPE

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
ooooOoog
)
2024 12 31
)
1,161,382 626,951 152,534 460,222 (40,849)
1,599 732 1,031 2,581 18
2,453 - - - 2
24 63 - 23,050 _
- - - 87,305 -
180 133 53 35 (98)
816 — — _ _
56
CDS
SPE
SPE
SPE
SPE
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FICC
FICC
FICC
2020 FICC

FICC FICC
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CCP
CCP

CCp

Cccp
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2016

2008

2016 12
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D000000000(ESS7L)
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( )
2024 2023 2022
106 $ 488 $ 443
SDNY
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11

28

2024

2023 12 29
2024 28
11

VRDO

VRDO

2024
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2023

21

E
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

2023 12 15

SDNY

oOoOooodn

2017

2020



2007 2012
2020 12
2024 19
2007 2012
2021 22 2007 2012
2025 21
2009 2012
2009 2013
2024 16
2021 13
(
CBS( )
2021
5.75 10
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15/3637

18/00318

2023 16

)(

124

2018

2024

EDINETOOOO
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15/4353

128

26

18/00319

20/01884
11 11

17
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OooooOodd
(
)
2021 11
2023
2023 15
2023 10
2024
2024 25
2024
2024
2013 17
133
2014 10 29
116 2016 11
2022 15
2023
2024 26 2024 27
2024
28
2024 LLC( MSSB )
LLC
MSSB
18 1962 (c) -(d)
1940

SEC
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15

VIE

VIE

VIE

CDO

VIE
CLN

CLN

VIE

SPE

CLN

VIE

VIE
CDO

VIE

VIE
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VIE
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
VIE VIE VIE VIE
MABS 1 $ 575 $ 236 $ 597 $ 256
2 378 189 753 502
MTOB 619 578 582 520
156 4 378 97
$ 1,728 $ 1,007 $ 2,310 $ 1,375
MTOB—
1.
VIE VIE
2. CcLo
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ooooooo
VIE
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 37 $ 164
1,395 1,557
278 492
- 67
16 26
2 4
$ 1,728 $ 2,310
$ 921 $ 1,222
82 121
4 32
$ 1,007 $ 1,375
$ 42 $ 54
VIE VIE
VIE

VIE

VIE VIE

2771432
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VIE
( )
2024 12 31
MABS 1 CDO MTOB OSF 2
VIE $ 179,686 $ 1,621 $ 3,654 $ 3,603 $ 74,665
3
$ 26,974 $ 62 $ - $ 2,267 $ 12,097
- - 2,454 — 3,936
8,554 - - — 535
$ 35,528 $ 62 $ 2,454 $ 2,267 $ 16,568
$ 26,974 $ 62 $ - $ 1,821 $ 12,067
_ _ 6 _ 1,772
$ 26,974 $ 62 $ 6 $ 1,821 $ 13,839
VIE 4 $ 15,777
$ - $ - $ 4 $ - 3 448
( )
2023 12 31
MABS 1 CDO MTOB OSF 2
VIE $ 144,906 $ 1,526 $ 3,152 $ 3,102 $ 50,052
3
$ 21,203 $ 52 $ - $ 2,049 $ 9,076
- - 2,092 — 4,452
3,439 - - — 55
$ 24,642 $ 52 $ 2,092 $ 2,049 $ 13,583
$ 21,203 $ 52 $ - $ 1,682 $ 9,075
- - 2 — 1,330
$ 21,203 $ 52 $ 2 $ 1,682 $ 10,405
VIE 4 $ 15,002
$ - 3 - 3 3 3 - 3 452
1.
2.
3.
4. VIE VIE SPE
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VIE

SPE

SPE

VIE

SPE

VIE

SPE
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VIE VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 17,316 $ 2,497 $ 17,346 $ 3,355
82,730 8,445 74,590 8,342
39,317 6,260 42,917 6,675
40,323 9,772 10,053 2,831
$ 179,686 $ 26,974 $ 144,906 $ 21,203
SPE
SPE
SPE
SPE
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VIE
VIE
VIE
CLN
SPE SPE
SPE
SPE SPE
SPE
SPE SPE

SPE
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CLO CDO

SPE

SPE

ELN
ELN

2024 12 31 2023

SPE

12 31
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SPE

CLO

SPE

ELN
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Ogoooood
( )
2024 12 31
RML CML CLK
Mo 1
SPE 23 $ 6,989 $ 78,232 $ 18,174 $ 12,725
$ 198 $ 543 $ 967 $ -
175 923 - 71
$ 373 $ 1,466 $ 967 $ 71
3
$ 45 $ 34 $ 79 $ -
5 24 _ _
$ 50 $ 58 $ 79 $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ 1,408
_ _ - 400
( )
2023 12 31
RML ML oLX
Mo 1
SPE 23 $ 4,333 $ 73,818 $ 12,083 $ 12,438
$ 149 $ 653 $ 460 $ -
83 788 - 69
$ 232 $ 1,441 $ 460 $ 69
3
$ 20 $ 22 $ 42 $ -
- 16 - _
$ 20 $ 38 $ 42 $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ 1,073

— - - 426

282/432



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood

( )

2024 12 31
$ 1,080 $ - $ 1,080
71 50 121
$ 1,151 $ 50 $ 1,201

3

$ 158 $ - $ 158
18 11 29
$ 176 $ 11 $ 187
$ 1,408 $ - $ 1,408
400 - 400
( )

2023 12 31
$ 576 $ - $ 576
10 56 66
$ 586 $ 56 $ 642

3

$ 77 $ 7 $ 84
12 4 16
$ 89 $ 11 $ 100
$ 1,073 $ - $ 1,073
426 - 426

RML
CML
1. CLO

SPE
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CLO SPE

CLO
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( )
2024 2023 2022
$ 36,326 $ 21,051 $ 22,136
7,956 4,311 4,862
— 24 62
14
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 92,229 $ 60,766
$ 92,580 $ 62,221
998 1,546
648 93
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16
1956
MSBNA MSPBNA
( CFTC )
SEC
RWA RWA Risk-weighted assets
Tierl
CET1 Tierl Tier2 RWA
CECL 2020 CECL
RWA
2022 25 2024 75

2025
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2024 12 31
2024 12 31 2023 12 31 2023 12 31
- 2.5
6.0 5.4 N/A
G-SIB 3.0 3.0 3.0
1 0 0 0
9.0 8.4 5.5
1. 2.5
CET1
RWA
G-SIB
RWA
2.5 G-SIB
2024 12 31
2024 12 31 2023 12 31 2023
12 31
1
CET1 4.5 13.5 12.9 10.0
Tier 1 6.0 15.0 14.4 11.5
8.0 17.0 16.4 13.5
1.
RIWA
RWA

286/432



EDINETOOOO
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) )
RWA
RWA
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
Tier
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
CET1 $ 75,095 $ 69,448
Tier 1 84,790 78,183
95,567 88,874
RWA 471,834 456,053
CET1 15.9 15.2
Tier 1 18.0 17.1
20.3 19.5
1
CET1 13.5 12.9
Tier 1 15.0 14.4
17.0 16.4
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( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
1 $ 1,223,779 $ 1,159,626
2 1,517,687 1,429,552
Tier 1 6.9 6.7
5.6 5.5
3
Tier 1 4.0 4.0
5.0 5.0
1. Tier 1
2. Tier 1
()
)
()
3.
G-SIB
2024 12 31 2023 12 31 MSBNA MSPBNA
2020 MSBNA MSPBNA CECL
RWA
2022
25 2024 75 2025
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MSBNA

CET1

Tier 1

Tier 1

MSPBNA

CET1
Tier 1

Tier 1

MS&Co.

MSé&Co.

MSBNA

CFTC

15¢3-1

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
1
6.5 7.0 $ 22,165 20.1 $ 21,925 21.7
8.0 8.5 22,165 20.1 21,925 21.7
10.0 10.5 22,993 20.9 22,833 22.6
5.0 4.0 $ 22,165 9.7 $ 21,925 10.6
6.0 3.0 22,165 7.4 21,925 8.2
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
1
6.5 7.0 $ 16,672 26.1 $ 15,388 25.8
8.0 8.5 16,672 26.1 15,388 25.8
10.0 10.5 17,004 26.6 15,675 26.3
5.0 4.0 $ 16,672 7.7 $ 15,388 7.5
6.0 3.0 16,672 7.5 15,388 7.2
SEC
MSBNA
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 18,483 $ 18,121
13,883 13,676
SEC CFTC
CFTC
1934
E MS&Co.
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MS&Co. CFTC
SEC
MS&Co.
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
MSIP
SEC
SEC
CFTC
CFTC
SEC
MSCG

2024 12 31
MSSB
MSIP
CFTC MSIP
CFTC
MSESE
MSESE
CFTC
SEC CFTC
MSMS
0TC
CFTC MSCS
CFTC

2024 12 31

EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

MS&Co.

2023 12 31

SEC CFTC

PRA
SEC

MSEHSE

MSESE

MSMS

MSCS
SEC

( )

2023 12 31
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$ 49,914 $ 49,008
17
)
2024 12 31 2024 12 31 2023 12 31
( )

A 44,000 $ 25,000 $ 1,100 $ 1,100
c1 519,882 1,000 408 408
E 34,500 25,000 862 862
F 34,000 25,000 850 850
| 40,000 25,000 1,000 1,000
K 40,000 25,000 1,000 1,000
L 20,000 25,000 500 500
M 400,000 1,000 430 430
N 3,000 100,000 300 300
0 52,000 25,000 1,300 1,300
P 40,000 25,000 1,000 1,000
Q 40,000 25,000 1,000 —
$ 9,750 $ 8,750

30,000,000

1. MUFG
16 Tierl
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2024 12 31
3
1 2 ( ) 4
A 44,000 1,000 $ 25,000
C5 1,160,791 N/A 1,100
E 34,500 1,000 25,000
F 34,000 1,000 25,000
I 40,000 1,000 25,000
K 40,000 1,000 25,000 2027 15
L 20,000 1,000 25,000 2025 15
M 400,000 N/A 1,000 2026 15
N 3,000 100 100,000 2025 10
0 52,000 1,000 25,000 2027 15
P& 40,000 1,000 25,000 2027 10 15
Q7 40,000 1,000 25,000 2029 10 15
1. 0.01
2. A C L P Q
3. A
4. A E
F I
() )
90
5. C c
1,000 10
6. 2022 P
7. 2024 30 Q
( )
2024 2023
1,627 1,675
43) 1)
2 23 23
1,607 1,627
1.
2.
)
2024 2023
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2024

EPS

28

RSU

EPS

200

PSU

EDINETOOOO

0000000000(E05871)
0oooood
3,250 $ 5,300
2024
10b5-1
( )
2024 2023 2022
1,591 1,628 1,691
20 18 22
1,611 1,646 1,713
- 2 3
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OooooOodd
2024 2023 2022
1 1 1
A $ 1,548 $ 68 $ 1,522 $ 67 $ 1,061 $ 47
c 100 52 100 52 100 52
E 1,806 62 1,791 62 1,781 60
F 1,747 60 1,719 58 1,719 59
I 1,603 64 1,594 64 1,594 64
K 1,463 59 1,463 59 1,463 59
L 1,219 24 1,219 24 1,219 24
M 2 59 24 59 24 59 24
N 3 8,841 27 9,160 27 5,300 16
0 1,063 55 1,063 55 1,063 55
P 1,625 65 1,625 65 739 29
Q 759 30 - - _ _
$ 590 $ 557 $ 489
$ 3.55 $ 5,745 $ 3.25 $ 5,393 $ 2.95 $ 5,108
2026 15
2023 15
« ) !
( )
DVA
2021 12 31
$ (1,002) $ 245 $  (551) $ (1,794) $ - $ (3,102)
ocl (202) (4,437) 43 1,449 4) (3,151)
2022 12 31
(1,204) (4,192) (508) (345) ) (6,253)
ocl 51 1,098 (87) (1,250) 20 (168)
2023 12 31
(1,153) (3,094) (595) (1,595) 16 (6.,421)
ocl (324) 521 12 (551) (1) (393)
2024 12 31
$ (1,477) $ (2,573) $ (583) $ (2,146) $ (35) $ (6,814)
1.
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( )
2024
) C ) C )
117) $  (305) $  (422) (98) $  (324)
117 $  (305) $  (422) (98) $  (324)
736 $  (175) $ 561 - $ 561
(52) 12 (40) - (40)
684 $  (163) $ 521 - $ 521
() $ 5 $ ®) - $ ®)
20 ) 15 - 15
12 $ - $ 12 - $ 12
(729) $ 174 $  (555) 17 $  (572)
27 (6) 21 — 21
(702) $ 168 $  (534) 17 $ (551)
(99) $ 24 $ (75 - $  (75)
32 (8) 24 _ 24
(67) $ 16 $ (51 - $ (51
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( )
2023
C ) C ) C )

$  (3) $ 53 $  (0) (71) $ 51
$  (73) $ 53 $  (0) (71) $ 51
$ 1,488 $  (353) $ 1,135 - $ 1,135
(49) 12 @37 - @37
$ 1,439 $  (341) $ 1,098 - $ 1,098
$  (96) $ 24 $ (72 - $ (72
(18) 3 (15) - (15)
$  (114) $ 27 $  (87) - $  (87)
$ (1,728) $ 424 $ (1,304) (40) $ (1,264)
19 ) 14 - 14
$ (1,709) $ 419 $ (1,290) (40) $ (1,250)
$ 9 $ @ $ 8 - $ 8
16 ) 12 - 12
$ 25 $ ) $ 20 - $ 20
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( )
2022
C ) C ) C )

ocl $ (179 $ (7)) $ (3%) $ (135) $  (261)

_ 59 59 - 59
ocl $ (@790 $ (@58) $ (337) $ (1B) $  (202)
« )
ocl $ (5,720) $ 1,337 $ (4,383) $ - $ (4,383)

(70) 16 (54) - (54)

ocl $ (5,790) $ 1,353  $ (4,437) $ - $ (4,437)
ocl $ 38 $ 13 s 25 % - $ 25

22 4) 18 - 18
ocl $ 60 $ an s 43 3 - $ 43
DVA
ocl $ 1,982 $ (480) $ 1,502 $ 53 $ 1,449
ocl $ 1,982 $ (480) $ 1,502 $ 53 $ 1,449
ocl $ @ - $ @ 3 - $ 4)
ocl $ @ s - $ @ 3 - $ 4)
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( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ (4,326) $ (2,917)
2,849 1,764
$ (1,477) $ (1,153)
$ 18,303 $ 18,761
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( )
2024 2023 2022

1 $ 3,068 $ 3,408 $ 914
5,161 3,992 3,066
13,771 12,424 6,988
2 12,416 7,762 2,188
3 5,391 5,191 1,020
5,924 4,488 2,484
14 8,404 8,584 4,935
$ 54,135 $ 45,849 $ 21,595
$ 10,368 $ 8,216 $ 1,825
13,242 11,437 5,054
5 10,787 6,737 1,760
6 1,036 784 503
47 10,091 10,445 3,126
45,524 $ 37,619 $ 12,268

$ 8,611 $ 8,230 $ 9,327

2023
2023 12 31
4,432
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 3,322 $ 4,206
3,938 4,360
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RSU
PSU
ESPP

2025
2026

ESPP

RSU

2025

EDINETOOOO
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PSU
( )
2024 2023 2022
$ 1,464 $ 1,607 $ 1,827
148 91 40
10 11 8
$ 1,622 $ 1,709 $ 1,875
$ 202 $ 178 $ 176
( )
2024 2023 2022
$ 343 $ 382 $ 4
( )
2024 12 31
1
$ 510
230
38
$ 778
2025 2024



RSU

RSU

RSU

2023
2022

1. 2024 12

RSU
RSU

31

RSU

RSU

RSU
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( )
2024 12 31
109
17
2024
C D
59 $ 86.92
20 85.46
(23) 77.11
@ 90.84
54 $ 90.53
93.55
96.61
1.2
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RSU
2024
( ) C )
RSU 28 $ 89.16
20 85.46
(19) 85.96
) 90.51
RSU 1 27 $ 88.64
1. RSU
RSU 1
( )
2024 2023 2022
$ 2,065 $ 2,019 $ 2,301
1,723 2,260 2,433
1.
PSU
PSU
150 PSU
MS ROTCE PSU 2023
S&P500 MS
TSR 2023 PSU
MS ROTCE MS ROTCE
PSU RSU
2024 12 31 PSU
2.8
PSU
2024 2023 2022
MS ROTCE/ ROTCE 1 $ 83.86 $ 85.76 $ 100.12
MS TSR - 102.17
1.

MS TSR
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1.3 38.9 0.91
( )
2024 2023 2022
$ 770 $ 693 $ 761
672 668 (716)
$ 1,442 $ 1,361 $ 45
$ 287 $ 259 $ 264
( )
2024 2023 2022
$ 114 $ 44 $ 225

303/432



20

2007

@
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( )
2024 2023 2022
$ 20 $ 20 $ 19
137 140 111
(99) (99) (56)
1 1 1
21 ) 25
_ 2 _
$ 80 $ 55 $ 100
SEREP 401
( )
2024 2023 2022
$  (821) $  (716) $  (768)

(12) (100) 26

1 1 1

21 ) 25

) 3 -

9 (105) 52

$  (812) $  (821) $  (716)
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10
2024 2023 2022
4.75 4.93 2.80
4.18 3.54 1.71
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( )
2024 2023

$ 2,975 $ 2,907
20 20

137 140

(201) 79

1 _
@ (13)
(149) (164)

(18) 6

$ 2,764 $ 2,975
$ 2,422 $ 2,416
(114) 78

38 89
(149) (164)
@ 13)

(10) 16

$ 2,186 $ 2,422
$  (578) $  (553)
$ 71 $ 84
(649) (637)
$  (578) $  (553)

(
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

$ 2,740 $ 2,956
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( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 2,616 $ 2,821
2,59 2,803
1,967 2,184
12 31
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
5.39 4.75

Aa
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( )
2024 12 31
$ 7 $ - $ - $ 7
1,638 213 — 1,851
_ 1 - 1
- — 70 70
1 - 10 _ 10
$ 1,645 $ 224 $ 70 $ 1,939
NAV
27
25
13
184
$ 249
! - @ - @)
$ - $ (@) $ - $ (@)
$ 2,186
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00O00000000(E0s871)
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( )
2023 12 31
$ 6 $ - $ - $ 6
1,800 230 - 2,030
_ 3 — 3
- - 71 71
1 1 15 — 16
$ 1,807 $ 248 $ 71 $ 2,126
NAV
64
62
171
14
$ 311
1 €Y (¢X)) - (15)
$ (€)) $ (14) $ - $ (15)
$ 2,422
1.
( )
2024 2023
$ 71 $ 64
2 2
(©) 5
$ 70 $ 71
2024 2023
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

86 87
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NAV
NAV
NAV

2024 12 31
2025 2025 40
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2026
2027
2028
2029
2030

401(K)

2023

-2034
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( )

2024 12 31
$ 161
167
174
179
183
968
( )

2024 2023 2022
$ 400 $ 397 $ 355

401(K)
401(K) 2024
IRS
100,001
401(k)

( )

2024 2023 2022
$ 181 $ 173 $ 163
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( )
2024 2023 2022
$ 2,011 $ 1,190 $ 2,518
660 542 442
487 267 405
243 127 17
115 139 105
2 57 437 24
342 344 248
$ 3,915 $ 3,046 $ 3,759
$ 8 $  (295) $  (803)
® (59) (142)
42 12 55
55 12 _
9 13) 20
2 6 (43) 25
38 (53) (0))
$ 152 $  (463) $  (849)
$ 4,067 $ 2,583 $ 2,910
1. 2024
2. 2023
3. 2024 2023 2022
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2024 2023 2022

21.0 21.0 21.0
3.0 3.4 1.8
(0.6) .3 (0.9)
1.8 1.9 0.6
(0.6) @.5) @.7n
(1.9) @-3) ©.8)
0.4 0.7 0.7
23.1 21.9 20.7
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( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 236 $ 255
2,565 2,636
796 755
1,808 1,897
223 78
5,628 5,621
214 211
$ 5,414 $ 5,410
801 772
1,931 2,003
$ 2,732 $ 2,775
$ 2,682 $ 2,635

2024 12 31
50

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
405 302
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( )
2024 2023 2022

$ 1,244 $ 1,129 $ 971
202 147 256

132 141 64
(52) (73) (134)
74 79 )
“n 1) 22)

$ 1,305 $ 1,244 $ 1,129

$ 1,159 $ 1,090 $ 1,007

12
12
( )
( )
2024 2023 2022

$ 92 $ 65 $ 39
255 237 175

2017

2010

2014

2020

2018

IRS
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GAAP
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( )
2024

$ 6,170 $ 653 $ - $  (118) $ 6,705
15,967 733 9 54 16,763
406 85 333 - 824
2,905 2,478 - (289) 5,004
646 16,501 5,627 75) 22,499
607 657 14 (13) 1,265
26,701 21,107 5,983 (641) 53,150
39,332 16,247 112 (1,556) 54,135
37,953 8,934 234 (1,597) 45,524
1,379 7,313 (122) 41 8,611
$ 28,080 $ 28,420 $ 5,861 $  (600) $ 61,761
$ 202 $ 62 $ - $ - $ 264
8,669 15,207 2,302 - 26,178
10,460 5,411 2,422 (570) 17,723
$ 19,129 $ 20,618 $ 4,724 $ (570) $ 43,901
$ 8,749 $ 7,740 $ 1,137 $  (30) $ 17,596
1,947 1,852 275 0 4,067
6,802 5,888 862 (23) 13,529
136 - 3 - 139
$ 6,666 $ 5,888 $ 859 $ (2 $ 13,390

31 27 19 N/M 28
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( )
2023

$ 4,578 $ 454 $ - $  (8%) $ 4,948
14,468 823 (59) 31 15,263
177 62 334 - 573
2,540 2,279 - (282) 4,537
596 14,019 5,231 (229) 19,617
480 513 Q) 11) 975
22,839 18,150 5,499 (575) 45,913
32,383 15,015 135 (1,684) 45,849
32,162 6,897 264 (1,704) 37,619
221 8,118 (129) 20 8,230
$ 23,060 $ 26,268 $ 5,370 $  (555) $ 54,143
$ 401 $ 131 $ - $ - $ 532
8,369 13,972 2,217 - 24,558
9,814 5,635 2,311 (520) 17,240
$ 18,183 $ 19,607 $ 4,528 $  (520) $ 41,798
$ 4,476 $ 6,530 $ 842 $  (35) $ 11,813
884 1,508 199 (8) 2,583
3,592 5,022 643 Q@ 9,230
139 - 4 - 143
$ 3,453 $ 5,022 $ 639 $ @D $ 9,087

19 25 16 N/M 22
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( )
2022
$ 5,235 $ 438 $ - $  (79) $ 5,599
14,318 (432) 1) 53 13,928
(156) 51 120 - 15
2,756 2,467 - (285) 4,938
580 13,872 5,332 (206) 19,578
(295) 592 @ 12) 283
22,438 16,988 5,439 (524) 44,341
13,276 9,579 56 (1,316) 21,595
11,321 2,150 120 (1,323) 12,268
1,955 7,429 (64) 7 9,327
$ 24,393 $ 24,417 $ 5,375 $  (517) $ 53,668
$ 21 $ 69 $ _ $ - $ 280
8,246 12,534 2,273 - 23,053
9,221 5,231 2,295 (501) 16,246
$ 17,467 $ 17,765 $ 4,568 $  (501) $ 39,299
$ 6,715 $ 6,583 $ 807 $  (16) $ 14,089
1,308 1,444 162 4) 2,910
5,407 5,139 645 12) 11,179
165 - (15) - 150
$ 5,242 $ 5,139 $ 660 $  (12) $ 11,029
28 27 15 N/M 26
2023 12 31

4,432
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( )
2024 2023 2022
$ 2,378 $ 2,244 $ 2,946
3,792 2,334 2,289
90 91 90
( )
2024 2023 2022
$ 5,901 $ 4,646 $ 2,808
1,170 1,054 1,585
9,005 8,929 7,515
2,003 1,624 1,466
(1,316) (990) 554
$ 16,763 $ 15,263 $ 13,928
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 796 $ 787
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1940
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OO00O000000O(E5871)
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( )

2024 2023 2022
$ 99 $ 93 $ 211

2a-7

( )

2024 2023 2022
$ 926 $ 866 $ 910

EMEA

( )

2024 2023 2022
$ 46,929 $ 41,651 $ 40,117
7,197 6,058 6,811
7,635 6,434 6,740
$61,761 $ 54,143 $ 53,668
( )

2024 2023 2022
$12,526 $ 8,334 $ 9,363
5,070 3,479 4,726
$17,596 $ 11,813 $ 14,089

EMEA
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( )
2024 2023 2022
$ 1,870 $ 1,778 $ 2,538
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 2,628 $ 2,339
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 796,608 $ 810,506
400,848 365,168
17,615 18,019
$1,215,071 $ 1,193,693
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( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
893,170 $ 832,714
179,187 218,923
142,714 142,056
$1,215,071 $ 1,193,693
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( )
2024 2023 2022
$ 5,571 $ 5,770 $ 2,875
5,229 6,812 8,661
10,800 12,582 11,536
(827) (775) (1,143)
36 (31) 170
10,009 11,776 10,563
15,739 13,59 5,805
15,377 13,618 6,162
362 2) (357)
10,371 11,754 10,206
358 287 252
10,013 11,467 9,954
(499) (520) (456)
10,512 11,987 10,410
2,878 (2,900) 619
13,390 9,087 11,029
(324) 51 (202)
521 1,098 (4,437)
12 87 43
(551) (1,250) 1,449
(1) 20 4)
$ 12,997 $ 8,919 $ 7,878
$ 13,390 $ 9,087 $ 11,029
590 557 489
$ 12,800 $ 8,530 $ 10,540
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22,557
10,179

22,164
11,816

12,050
10,010

14,093

(12,814

14

0.01
: 3,500,000,000
:1,606,653,706

1 2,038,893,979
1,626,828,437

0.01 )

432,240,273 412,065,542
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( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

$ 19,343 $ 16,881
3,944 4,160
22,100 21,515
13,160 15,284
26,730 24,603
37,370 38,550
154,100 139,250
60,904 58,949
51,100 50,291
1,886 2,595

$ 390,637 $ 372,168
$ 100 $ 44
13,764 20,293
87,124 73,370
3,011 2,539
182,127 176,884
286,126 273,130
9,750 8,750

20 20

30,179 29,832
104,989 97,996
5,103 5,314
(6.814) (6,421)
(33,613) (31,139)
(5,103) (5,314)
104,511 99,038

$ 390,637 $ 372,168
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16

16

)l

26

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2024 2023 2022
$ 10,688 $ 24,914 $ (13,064)
(7,806) (9,362) (1,855)
- 300 676
7,444 5,479 3,814
(1,729) - (4,228)
4,402 4,003 3,434
(2,037) (1,706) (1,871)
(6,529) (8,389) 11,755
(15,191) (10,097) (10,574)
(21,446) (19,772) 1,151
995 - 994
33,385 23,783 34,431
(24,500) (22,554) (14,441)
(4,161) (6,178) (10,871)
(6,138) (5.,763) (5,401)
13,839 (3,029) 16,707
13,420 (13,741) 21,419
(200) 147 485
2,462 (8,452) 9,991
16,881 25,333 15,342
$ 19,343 $ 16,881 $ 25,333
$ 66 $ 107 $ 75
19,277 16,774 25,258
$ 19,343 $ 16,881 $ 25,333
$ 1,086 $ 1,086 $ 836
$ 15,971 $ 14,437 $ 5,955
798 599 3,132
2024 2023 2022
17
( )
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 168,413 $ 164,514
13,713 12,370
$ 182,126 $ 176,884
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 70,662 $ 60,942
( )
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 628 $ 632
2023
LLC

Intermediate holding company

IHC

IHC
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1934
13a-15(e)
( GAAP
)
GAAP
2024 12 31
(C0S0) (2013 )

2024 12 31
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(2013 )
2024 12 31

12 31

31 2024 12 31

PCAOB
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(2013 )

(

)(
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Table of Contenis
Consolidated Income Statement Morgan Stanley
) M, ASTRIT D SRR R 2024 2023 222
Revenues
Irvwissstivind Barkinyg % 6705 § 4548 § 5558
Trinding 16.763 15,263 13828
Invaakmeanis b 573 15
Cormmissions and Tees 5,084 4 537 4 508
Aadal ranagament 1,499 19617 168,578
Cinar 1,265 ] 283
Total non-sntaresl revenues 53150 45913 44,341
Inisrestincome’ 54,135 45,048 21,565
Irilress s’ 45,524 a7 Gad 12058
et inlnn sl 8,611 B340 9327
Het revenues ;i 61,761 54,143 53,668
Provision for cradit lnases 24 53 om0
Mon-interest expenses
Compartaton and benakts 6,178 24 558 23,053
Brokerage, clearnng and exchangs fees 4,140 3476 3458
Information processing and convmanicalions 4,088 3775 3,493
Prafesssonal services 290 3,058 3,070
Drecuandy ard aquiprisn 1,905 1,855 1
Marketing and business civelopment 465 fo8 505
Other 3,724 4, 138 3,591
Total noneinterest exponses 43,801 41,788 30,209
Irvcone balora provision Mo incoe Laxes 17, 584 11,813 14 08
Prenvision for incore s 4,067 2583 2410
Malncoma 5 13,529 § 8,210 § 11178
"Nt income agpkcabie 1a nonconiroling rdarests . m w3 e
Metincame applicablis B Morgan Slanlay $ 13,390 % 9,087 § 11,029
Prisferrad stock dnadends 580 557 AE5
Earnings applicable to Morgan Stanley common shareholders 5 12,800 § 8530 § 10,540
Earnings per common share
Basic 3 B.04 § 524 § 6.23
Delutad 7.95 5.18 6.15
Average common shares cutstanding
Basic 1,501 1,628 1691
Dited 1611 1646 1713
1 Z0ED wesmants s ey b B2 Conian with e comend parad presastivin. Ses Mole 2 o adeionl n'ormation
Consolidated Comprehensive Income Statement
£ in i 2024 2023 2022
Rl i $ 13,529 § #5230 § 19478
Offar comprahaéngive income (|oss), nal of tax
Foriign cumency trnslation adustmants (422) (20} {337}
Changa in nel urrealized gamns (l0sses | on available-for-aale Sacusibes 521 1,058 (4,437}
Penaices and ather 12 (BT 4
Changs in et debl valuation agustmant {5a4) {4,200 1,502
__Het change in cash flow hidges 5 a0 (#)
Yotal othar comprehansive incom (oss) 3 _ar4) 3 2 s 3233
Comprehendive incoma 3 13,055 § 8851 % 7846
Hal inconss applicabla b nonconlralling inderests 139 143 150
Oihar camprahangivi incam (lods) applicablin 1o noncantralling inlisnssis (81) {111) &2y
Comprehensive income applicable fo Morgan Stankey § 12,997 § A9 § 7078

December 2024 Form 10-K T8
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Table of Contenis
Consolidated Balance Sheet Morgan Stanley
At AL
December 31, Dacamber 31,
Asnets
Cash and cash sourvalénts 3 105,386 % B8, 232
Trading assals ol far valua (§148,945 and §162 658 were pladged o vanous parkes) 334,884 387004
InwasimEnt fecuUnes:
Avadable-for-sale at ler vahee (amortzed coatof $1049,960 and $52 148} 98,608 BE,113
Hid-bo=rbuity (fair viadus of $51,208 and $57 453) 61,071 B R
Securiins purchased under agnismants @ rigall ndudes §=— and 5T at Tair valus) 118,565 190, 740
Securiies borrowed 123,85 121,081
Custamer and offer recenvablas 88,158 80,105
Livress:
Hedd For invnisl 1t {red of all ol for cradil lodssas of $1,066 and §1 168} 225,824 203,385
Heid for sabe 12,319 15,255
Goodwill 16,706 16,707
Imangiblia assata {nal of scourmilated amorzabon of $5.445 and §4.847) 6453 7.055
Oithar assets 28,228 8,242
Total assets § 1215071 § 1160663
Liakplithes
Deposits includes $6.490 and $6.472 al fair valus) 5 IT6.007 § 351,604
Trasdfirg linbditias &l lair vidus 153,764 151,513
Securibies sold under sgresrmdnts o repurchass ([mchedes $856 and 1,020 &l far valua) 50,067 62651
Securibes koaned 15,226 15057
Oithar sacured Enancinga (incudes §44,088 and §3.699 at far valus) 1,602 12,655
Customer and ofhar payallas 175,938 208,148
Oiihar liabdites and accrund axpoenses 28,20 28151
Borrowings {inchedas §103,332 and $53.500 a1 lar valee) 288,819 3T
Total lisbilities 108643 1093711
Commitments and contingent labilities (see Note 14)
Equity
Meargan Stanley shaveholdes’ agquily:
Prafemed siock 9,750 8,750
Common stock, $0.01 par value:
Sharess awuthorioad: 3,500,000,000; Shaves issuwed: 2038883878, Bhares oulstanding: 1,606,053, 706 and
1.626,828.437 n Futl
AdciBonal paid-in capital anama 8,832
Ralsingd sarmirgs 104,889 A7 008
Emplayoe stock Irusts 5103 5314
Acturialad olher comprehansve Rcone (loas) {6.514) {6421}
Conmmon slock held in reasury ab coal, $0.01 par value (432,240,273 and 412,065 542 shares | (33.613) (31,139)
Cesriion iock mtusd 1o emplayes alock ks {5,103} {5.314)
Total Morgan Stanley shareholders’ aquity 104,511 0,034
Hanconlrding inberesta 17 EERS
Total equity 105428 0,962
Total liabilities and equity § 11507 § 1100683

See Notes fo Consclidated Financial Statements

=
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Table of Contenis
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Total Equity Morgan Stanley
iy mim 2024 2023 222
Prefemed stock
Beginning balance 5 8750 % 8750 % .50
Iadasanice of prafarmad slock 1,000 = 1,000
Erwfirgy bdlnm 8,750 8,750 B.TE0
Beginning and endng balance n Ful 0
Additional paid-in capital
Begirning balanca 23,832 28,338 28,841
Share-based awird activity 352 A5 503
Insunnce of prefarmad slock 15) = ]
Oner nel increases (decreanes) - - 1
Ending balanca 30,178 20,832 20,350
ﬁMM"-;ﬁlnp il i e
Bagirming balanca 87 995 94 862 ah4x2
Curmaalive sduatman related to the adoplion of RocouEviang sbendard updala’ (60) - -
Malncome apphicables to Morgan Sianley 13,380 9,067 11.028
Prafurrad aback dvafends’ {580) {557) {480}
Commen siack dividends’ (5,745) 5,363 (5008}
Oher nel Increases (decreases) 2 3) {2
Eruling balance 104,959 o795 4852
Employee siock trusis
Baégirming balandca 5,314 4 881 3,865
Shars-based wward activily {214} 413 6
Erufing bafanca 5,103 5314 4,881
Accumubsted other comprehe nsive income |loss)
Besgirming balance (6.421) {6.253) {3,102}
Mal changs n Acoumulaled ather comprahensive incomas (loss) {353y {1E8) (3951}
Ending balance (6,814) 6.421) (6. 253}
Common stock held in treasury a1 cost
Bagirming balance {31, 129) {26,577) {17,500}
Share-based iward activity 1,704 1,854 1,704
Rapurchases of commaon slock and amphaysa tax withholdings (4,178) (B.216) {10871}
Ervfing batance (33,613) 431, 139) 126,577}
Comman stoeh msued to emplayee sleck trusts
Begirming balace [5.314) {8,861 {3,855}
Share-based award nctivity m (433 {526)
Ervling balance (5,103) (G014} (4.881)
Mencontrolling interests
Beagirming balance 944 1,080 1,157
il ncons applicabla ta nonconirolling intires s 138 143 150
et change = Accunmdaled olher comprahensive incomes (loas} applicable 1o rorcantrolling
inileresls (B1) {111] (B2}
Ofer nal increasss (decraases) (B5) {178} {¥35}
Ending balance a7 fidd 1050
Total squity $ 106,428 § wmas 5 10133

1. Tha Fam adopind the vosimesdy - Tas Coocl Siacires accountng stndiad updabs on Janauy | 3108 Refa i Nole 2 for furdher infemation
ragarding

2 Ses Hotm 17 tor irormalicn dividends par shase for sach diss of slock
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Table of Contenis
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Morgan Stanley
£ iy g 2024 2023 22
Cash flows from operating activities
Mall incon % 13,529 % 9230 % 10479
Adfustmants o recondle nat incomas (o rel cash provided by (used o} opemalting activibies:
Dalarred income taxes 152 {8E3) B4}
Shock -Based compenaalion axanda 1632 1,708 1,875
Dapraciafon and amortisabon 5,161 4,256 3958
Prosision for cradil losses 264 532 280
Othar aparating adusimants 4 308 618
Changes in assels and kabdites:
Tradirg assals, nel of Trading liabiities 14,496 {61 56) {30423}
Securiting borowad (2,768) 12,283 (1861}
Securiting loansd 169 {622 3,380
Cusilomer and other recelvabes and olher atsats (5. 308) 802 14 B854
Customer and olher payables and othar liahidbes (25,550) (3,629 {4,857}
Securilieg purchared undar agraenmens % resall (7.825) =R 6092
_ Secunibies sold under agroements ) repurchasa {12,584) 17 HE
Mot eash provided by (used for] operating acthvities 1,362 {39.53%) {6.297}
Cash flaws from investing activities
Procesids fam [payments fe):
Cithar assets—Premisa s, eguipment and salteans (3,462) (3,412} (3.078)
Changas in loars, rat {22,618) {4,053 {23,852}
AFS Becurilies:
Purchanes {38,327) {23.078) {24.802)
Proceads from sales 5718 5828 224
Proceads from paydowns and maturities 21,089 1416 13,435
HTM sacunibes:
Purchases (3,860) - (523}
Procesds rom paydowns and maburiBes 10,475 8143 fL¥: o
Cithar irmessting acviias (1,485) {823} {447}
Mot coh provided by (used forl Imvesting ectivities {20.480) (3.084) 11803
Cash flows from firancing activities
Mal proscasda fram (paymania S
Ottheér secursd fnancings 4,358 o6 B34}
Dposits 23,955 {5075} 1.658
Issuance of prefermad slock. nel of issuance coats 085 —~ Bod
Procesds from issuance of Borowings 108,365 Th 424 T2 450
Payrwnls far;
Borrowings (80,230) (54, 805) 134,858
Repurchasas of comemon stock and amployes tax wilkholdings (4,189) (6.178) {10,871}
Canh dviderdds {6, 438) {5.763) {5401}
Oer Enancing acliviies (350) {125) {345}
MHet cash provided by {used for] financing activities 46,756 (2.726) 22714
Eflc of sxchane rale hanges oncash and cash sculvalent L R
Mel increasa {decreasa] i cash and cash equivalents 16,154 {38,855) 402
Cash and cash aquivalents, al bagening of panod £8,232 128137 127,725
Cash and cash equivalents, at end of period $ 105,386 § B2 § 128127
Supplemental Disclogure of Cash Flow Information
Cash payments for:
Intaras! 5 46,359 § 41840 § G819
_Income axes, net of refunds. 1,885 2005 a7
Sew Nobes to Consolidated Financial Statements &1 Drecemiber 2024 Form 10-K
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1. Introduction and Basis of Presentation
The Firm

Morgan Stanley 15 o pglobal fimancial services firm  that
maintains significant market positions in each of ils business
segments—Institutional Securities, Wealth Management and
Investment Mamagement. Morgan  Stanley, through us
subsaclinrses and affilistes, provides a wide vanety of products
and serviees 1o a large and diversified group of chents amd
customers, mcluding corporations, governments, financaal
institutions and individuals, Unless the context otherwise
regeures, the terms “Mosgan Stanlev” or the “Firm”™ mean
Morgan Stankey (the “Paremt Company™) together with s
consolidated subsidianes. See the “Glessary of Common
Terms and Acronyms™ for the definition of certain terms and
BCTONY NS medﬂumghmbl this Form 0K

A descripion of the clients and principal products and
services of each of the Firm's business segmemts is as
fillonws:

Instintional Secunties provides a vanety of products and
services i0 corporations, governments, financial institutions
and ulira-high met worth clients. Investmeni Banking
services consist of capital raseng and financial advisory
services, imcluding the underwriting  of debl,  equity
securnies and other produsts. as well as advice on mergers
and acquisitions, restructurings znd propect finance. Our
Bquity and Fixed Income businesses inclede sales,
financing, prime biokersge, market-making, Asia wealth
managgement  services  and  cerlan business-related
imvestments.  Lending  activities  include  onginating
corporate loans and commercial real estate loans, providing
secured lending facilites, and extending securities-based
and other fnancing 1o chents. Other activities include
research

Wealth Management provides a comprehensive amay of
financial services and solutions o individual investors and
small to medivm-sized busnesses and nstitutions. Wealth
Management covers:  financial  advisor-led  brokerage,
custody, administralive and myvestment advisory services;
seli-directed brokerage services, fnancinl and  wealth
planning services. workplace services, including stock plan
admmistration;, secunties-hased lending, residential and
commercizl real estate loans and other lending products;
banking. and retirement plan services,

Investment  Management provides 8 brosd mnge of
investment strategies and products thal span geographies,
assel classes, and public and private markets o a diverse
group of cliemts across nstiutional and  intermediary
channels. Strategies and products, which are  offered
through a vanety of mwvestment vehicles, include equity,
fixed income, altermatives and solutions, and liquadity and
overlay services. Institvional clients include defined
beneft/defined comtribution plans, foundations,
endowments, government entilies, sovereign wealth funds,

December 2024 Form 10-K
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insurance  companies, third-party  fund - sponsors  and
corporations.  Individual  clients are  penerally  served
through  mtermediarses, meluding affileted and non-
affiliated distributors

Basis of Financial Information

The financial stalements are prepared in accordance with L5,
GAAP, which requires the Firm to make estimates and
assumptions regarding the valustions of certam financial
instnments, the valuations of goodwill and intangible assets,
the outcome of legal and tax maters, deferred tax assets,
ACL, and other matters that affect its financial statements and
related dizclosures. The Firm believes that the estimates
wilized in the preparation of its fnancial datements are
prudent and reasonable. Actual resuhs could differ materially
from these estimates,

The Notes are an imegral part of the Firm's financial
siatements. The Firm has evaluated subsequent evenis for
adjustment to or disclosure in these financial statements
through the date of this report and has not sdentified any
recordable or disclosable events not otherwise reported in
these financial statements or the notes therelo.

orsolidetion

The financea] statements include the accounts of the Firm, s
wholly owned subsidiaries and other entities 1 which the
Firm has a controlling financial mterest, including certain
VIEs (see Mote 15} Intercompany balances and transactions
have been eliminated For consolidated subsidiaries that are
not wholly owned, the thard-panty haldings of equiy interests
are referred to as Noncontrolling interests. The net income
attributable to Nencontrolling mterests for such subsidiaries is
presented as Met income appli.cah[: to noncontrolling mterests
in the income statement. The portion of shareholders” equity
that 13 atnbutable to Nencontrolling interests for such
subsicharies 15 presented as Noncontrolling interests, a
component of Total equity, in the balance sheet.

For ennties where the total equity investment ab risk is
sulficient to enable the entity to finance s activities without
additional subordinated financial support and the equiy
holders bear the residual economic risks and retuns of the
entity and have the power 1o direct the actvities of the entity
that most sygmificantly affect it economic performance, the
Firm consohidates those entities 1t contreds either through a
majority voting interest or otherwize. For VIEs (ie, entities
that do not meet the aforementioned criterin), the Fimm
consolidates those entittes where it has the power 1o make the
decisions that most sernificantly  affect the cconomic
performance of the VIE and has the obligation to absorb
losses or the right to receive benefits that could potentially be
significant to the VIE

For investments in entitics m which the Frrm does not have a
contrelling financial mterest but has significant influence over
operatig and financial decisions, it applies the equity methed
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of accounting with net gains and losses recorded within Other
revenues (see Note | 1) unless the Firm has elected to measure
the nvestment at fair velue, in which case net gains and losses
are recorded within Investments revenues (see Note 3).

Equity and partnership interests held by entities quabifying for
BCCOUNLING [UIposes a5 investmenl companies are camed at
fair value.

The Firm's szignificant regulsted US amd international
subsidiaries include:

Maorgan Stanley & Co. LLC (*MS&C0.7),

Morpan Stanley Smith Bammey LLC (“MSSE™),

Morgan Stanley Europe SE (“MSESE™),

Morgan Stanley & Co. International ple (MSIP™),

Mongan Stanley Capital Services LLC ("MS3CS™),

Morpan Stanley Capital Group Ine. {“MSCG™),

Morgan Stanley MUFG Secunitses Co,, Lud. ("MSMS"),
Morgnn Stanley Bank, NA. ("MSBNAT) and

Morgan  Stanley  Prvate Bank, National  Association
{(*MSPBNA™),

For further mformation on the Firms significant regulated
LS, and international subsidiaries, see Note 16,

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Preseotation Clanges in 2024

In the fiest quarter of 2024, the Fum implemented certain
presertation changes which resulted in o deerease o both
interest ncome and mterest expense of $4.432 million for the
vear ended December 31, 2023, and no effect on net inferest
incomse, with the entire mpact to the Firm recorded within the
Institutionsl  Securities  segment. These changes further
aligned the accountimg treatment between the balance sheet
and the related interest meome or expense, pnmarily by
offsetting interest income and expense for cerain prime
brokemge-related customer receivahles and payables that are
currently accounted for as a single wmit of account on the
balance sheet. The curment and previews presentation of these
interest income and Inerest expense amounts are acceptable
and the change does not represent a change in accounting
principle. These changes were applied retrospectively to the
consolidated meome statement for 2025 and accordingly,
202% amounts were adpusted to conform with the current
presentation.

Revenue Recognition

Eevenues are recognized when the promised poods or
services are delivered to our customers in an amount that is
based on the consideration the Fim expects to feceive in
exchange for those goods or services when such amounts sre
net probable of sizificant reversal.

EDINETOOOO
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Tvestnrentt Hanking

Revenues from nvestment banking activities consist of
revenues eamed from underwnbing, primanly equily and
fixeed imcome securities and loan syndications, and advisory
fees, primanly for mergers, acquisitions and restructusings,

Underwrinng revenues are generally recognized on trade date
1f there 15 no uncertainty or contingency related to the amount
to be paid. Underwriting costs are deferred and recognized in
the relevant non-interest expenses line items when the related
underwriling revenues are recorded,

Advisory fees are recognized as advice 8 provided o the
client, based on the estimated progress of work and when
revenues are nod probable of o significant reversal. Advisory
cosls are recognized s incurred in the relevant non-imerest
expenses line tems, inchading these reimbaursed

Cenrumissions and Fees

Commssion  and  fee  mevenues  generally  result  from
transaction-based arangements in which the client is charged
a fee for the execution of itransactions. Such revenues
primarily anse from irmnsactions in equity securities; services
related 1o sales and trading actwities. and sales of mutual
funds, altemateve funds, fulures, msurance products and
options, as well as revenues from order flow payments for
directing customer orders to broker-dealers, exchanges and
markel centers for execution. Commission and fee revenues
are recognized on trade date when the performance cbligation
15 satisfied.

Asser Marnagement Revenwes

Asset management, distnbution and administration fees are
generally based on related asset levels, such as the AUM of &
customer’s aecount of the et assel valee of a fund. These fees
are generally recognized when services are performed and the
value of the assects 15 known. Management fees are reduced by
estimated fee waivers and expense caps, if any, provided to
the customer,

Performance-based fees not in the form of camied nterest are
recorded when the annual performance target s met and the
revenues are not probable of a significant reversal.

Sales commissions paid by the Firm i connection with the
sale of certam classes of shares of 115 open-end mutual fund
products are accounted for as deferred commission asscts and
amortized to Other expenses over the expected life of the
contract. The Firm periodically tests deferred commission
assets for recovernbility based on cash fows expected 1o be
received in Puture periods. Other asset management and
distribution costs are recopruzed as incurred m the relevant
non-interest expenses line items.

Decernber 2024 Foom 10-K
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ITnvestmenits Revenues—arried Interest

The Firmi 1z entithed 1o receve performance-based fees in the
form of camed interest when the return in certmn funds
excecds specified performance targets. When the Firm cams
carmed  anterest  from  funds as specified performance
thresholds are met, that carmed nterest and any related
peneral of linited partner interést are aceounted for under the
equity method of accounting and measured based on the
Firm™s claim on the NAV of the fund at the reporting date,
taking into account the distnibution terms applicable 1o the
interest held Such atems are reflected within Investmenis
TEVETILCS.

See Moete 22 for micrmation regarding the net cumulative
unréalized amount of performance-based fee revenues at risk
of reversal. See Note 14 for information regardimg general
partner puaraniees, which mclude potential obligations 1o
retum performance fee distnibutions previcusly received.

ithver Ttems

Revenues from centain commodities-related contracts are
recognized in Trading revenues when the Firm has transferred
control over the promised goods or services to the customer

Recevables from contmcts with customers are recogrized n
Customer and other receivables in the balance shect when the
underlying performance obligations have been satisfied and
the Firm has the right per the comtract 1o bill the customer
Contract assets are recognized in Other assets when the Firm
has satisfied s performance oblipatons bt customer
payment i conditional on something other than the passage of
tme. Contract labilives are recogmized n Other habilities
and accrued expenses when the Firm has collected payment
from & customer based on the terms of the contract but the
underlying pcffmma:mc abligations are not vet satisfied.

For contracts with a term of less than one year, incremental
costs to oblain the confract are cxpensed as mowrred
Revenues are not discounted when payment 15 expected
within ofie vear.

The Firm genemally presemts; net wihin revemues, (axes
assessed by o governmental aithority that are bath mposed
on and concurrent with a specific revenuwe-producing
transaction and collected by the Firm from a customer.

Cush wnd Cash Equivailents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of Cash and due from
banks and interest-bearing depomits with  banks. Cash
equivalents are highly lequid mvestments with remamng
maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date
that are readily convertible to cash and are not held for trading

purposes.
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Cash and cash equivalents alao include Restricted cash, such
as ¢ash segregated n compliance with Federal or other
repulations, nchsding minimum reserve requirements set by
the Federal Reserve Bank and other central banks, and the
Firm’s instial margin depogited with clearing organazations.

Fair Valuwe of Financial Inst ruments

Instruments within Trading asscts and Trading lishilitics are
measured at far value, either as requred or allowed by
accounting guidance, These financial instruments primanly
represent the Firm's trading and investment positions and
inglude both cash and denvative products In addition,
secuniies  classified a5 Avmlsble-for-Sabe (“AFS™) are
measured at fair value

Gains and losses on instruments carmed 81 far value are
reflected in Trading revenues, Investments revenues or
Investment banking revenues in the income statement, excepl
for gaing and Josses related to AFS securities (see “AFS
Investment Secuntis™ section hesaan and Note 70 and
derivatives accounted for as hedpes, as well &5 economic
derivative hedges associated with certain held-for-sale and
held-for-investment corporate foans and lending commitments
(see “Hedge Accounting” and “Cther Hedges™ herein and
Hote &)

Interest income and interest expense are recorded within the
income statement depending on the nature of the nstrument
and related market conventions. When mierest i incleded as a
component of the instruments” far value, mierest 15 recorded
within Trading revenues or Investmends revenues. Ctherwise,
it is recorded within Interest income or Inferest expense.
Dividend meome 5 recorded in Trading revenues of
Investments revenues depending on the business activity.

The farr value of OTC financial instruments, including
derivative contracts related to fmancial instruments and
commodities, 15 presented in the sccompanying balance sheet
o a nel-by-counterparty  basis.  when  appropriate.
Additionally, the Firm nets the fair value of cash collateral
paid or received apainst the fair value amounts recognized for
net derivative positions executed with the same counterpany
under the same master neliing agreement

Fair Value Chption

The Firm has elected 1o measwure certain ehgible instruments
at [ir value, including Securities purchased under agreements
fe resell, Loans and lending commitments, equity method
investments and certain other assets, Deposits, Securities sold
under agreements 1o repurchase, Ciher secured financings and
Bomowings.

Fair Value Measurermeni—Definition and Hierarchy

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a labality (e, the “exi price™) in
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an orderly transaction between market participants at the
mveasurem enl date

Fair value 15 3 markel-based measure constdered from the
perspective of a market participant rather than an cntity-
specific measure. Therefore, even when market assumplions
are med reachly available, assumptions are st to reflect those
that the Firm believes market participanis would use in
pricing the asset or lability at the measurement date. Where
the Firm manages a group of hnancial assets, financial
linbilities, and nonfirancial items accounted for as derivalives
on the basis of its net exposure to either market risks or eredi
risk, the Firm measures the fairr valoue of that proup of
financial  instruments  consistently  with  how  market
participants would price the net nsk exposure at the
mesurem ent date,

In determining fair value, the Firm uses varous valuation
approaches and establishes a hierarchy for inputs used in
measuring fair value that requares the most observable inpuis
b used when available.

Observable mputs are inputs that market participants would
use in pricing the asset or lability that were developed based
on market deta obtaned from sources mdependent of the
Firm. Unobservable inputs are mputs that reflect assumplions
the Firm believes other market particpants would we in
pricing the asset or lability that are developed based on the
best information available in the circumstances. The fair value
hierarchy is broken down into three levels based on the
observability of mputs as follows, with Level 1 bemng the
highest and Level 3 being the lowest level:

Level |, Valuations based on quoted prices in active markeis
that the Firm has the abality 10 acoess for identical assets or
liabilities.  Valuation adjustments, block discounts  and
discounts for entity-specific and contractual restrictions that
woubd not transfer o market participants are not applied 1o
Level 1 instruments. Since valuations are based on quoted
prices that are readily and regularly available m an active
market, valuation of these products does nol entail a

significant degree of judament,

Level 2. Valuations based on quoted prices for similar assels
or habilities i active markets, quoted prices for identical or
similar assets or labilities n inactive markets, significant
market inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for
the asset or linhility, or market-corroborated inputs

Level 3. Valuations based on inputs that are unchservable and
sigmificont 1o the overall fair value measurement

The availability of observable inputs can vary from product 10
product and & affected by & wide variety of factors, including
the type of product, whether the product is new and not yet
established in the marketplace, the lquidity of markets and
clher chamctenstcs particular o the product, To the extent
that valumtion is based on models or mputs that are les
observable or unohservable in the market, the determination
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of fair value requires more judament. Accordingly, the degree
of judgment exercised by the Firm in determining Tair value is
greatest for mstruments categorized in Level 3 of the fwir
value hierarchy

The Firm consaders prices and inputs that are current as of the
mepswrement  date, incheding during  perisds of market
dislocation. In periods of market dislocatzon, the ohservabaliny
of prices and inputs may be reduced for many istruments.
This condition could cause an mstrument to be reclassified
from Level 1 1o Level 2 or from Level 2 to Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy

In certaan cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall
o different levels of the fair value herarchy, In such cases,
the todal farr value amount is disclosed in the level appropriate
for the lowest level inpant that 15 significant to the total fur
value of the asset or liability,

Valuetion Techniques

Many cash instruments and OTC dervative contracts have bd
and ask prices that can be observed in the marketplace. Bid
prices reflect the highest price that a party 13 willing to pav for
an assel. Ask prices represent the lowest price that o party is
willing 1o accept for an asset. The Firm carres positions al the
point within the bid-ask range that mects s best estimate of
fair value. For offsetting positions in the same financial
instrument, the same price within the bid-ask spread 18 used to
measire both the long and shorl positions,

Fair value for many cash instruments and OTC derivative
contracts i derived using pricing models. Pricing models take
e account the contract terms, as well as multiple inpats,
nsludimg, where applicable, commedity prices, equity prices,
mnterest mate yield curves, credn curves, oorrelation,
creditworthiness of the counterparty, creditwonthiness of the
Firm, option volatality and curfency mtes

Whiene appropreate, valuation adjustments are mads 1o aocount
for wanous factors such as  liquidity nsk  (bid-ask
adjustments), eredit  quality, model uncemtainty, and
concentration risk and funding i order o amive at fair value,
Adjustments for ligudity sk adpst model-derived nd-
market amounts of Level 2 and Level 3 firancial instraments
far the bid-mid or mid-ask spread required to properly reflect
the exit price of a nsk position. Bid-mid and mid-ask spreads
are marked 1o levels observed i trade sctivity, broker quotes
or other external third-party data. Where these spreads are
unobservable for the particular position m guestion, spreads
are denved from observable levels of similar positions

The Firm applies credit-related valuation adjustments 1o 1ts
Bormmowings for which the fair value option was elected and to
OTC derivatives. The Firm considers the impact of changes in
s owin crecit spreads based wpon observations of the
secondary bond markel spreads when measuring the far value
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For OTC derivatives, which are recognized in Trading assets
l fair value in the balance sheet the impact of changes in
both the Firm's and the counlerparty’s credit rating is
constdered when measunng fair value. In determining the
expected exposure, the Firm smulates the distribution of the
future exposure 10 a counterparty, then applies market-based
default probabilities 1o the fguse exposure, leveraging
extermal third-party CDS spread data. Where COS spread data
are unavailable for a specific counterparty, bond market
spreads, CDS spread data based on the counterparty’s credit
rating of CDS spresd data that reference o comparable
counterparly may be wubihzed The Firm also conssders
collateral held and legally enforceable master netling
agreements that mitigate 13 exposure (o each counterparny,

Adpastments for model uncertamly are taken for positions
whese underlving models are reliant on signifscant inputs that
are neither directly mor indirectly observable, hence requinng
reliance on established theoretical concepts in their derivation.
These pdjwiments are denived by making assessments of the
possble degree of vanability using statistecal approaches and
market-based information where possible,

The Firm may apply concentration adjustments 1o certain of
its OTC derivative portfolios 1o reflect the additional cost of
closing oul & particularly large risk exposare. Where possible,
these  adjustments are based on  observable
market information, bt in many instances, significant
judsment i3 pequired to estimate the costs of closing
ol concentrated nsk exposwres due o the lack of hqurdity in
the markelplace.

The Firm applies an FVA n the fair value measurements of
OTC uncollateralized or pamslly collateralized denvatives
and in collseralized denwvatives where the terms of the
agreement do net permit the reuse of the collateral received.
Inn general, FVA reflects a marker funding sk premium
inherent in the naoted denvative mstruments. The methodology
for messuring FVA leverages the Fim's exasting creda-
related  valuation adjustment calculation  methodologics,
which apply to both assets and liabilities.

See Mote 4 for o desenption of valuation techniques applied 1o
the magor categores of Nnancml nstruments measursd a1 Gir
value.

Assers and Liabilities Measured ar Fair Valwe on a Non-
recurring Basis

Certain of the Firm s assets and labilities are measured at fair
value on a non-recurming basis. The Firm incurs losses or
gains for any adjustments of these assels or labilities to fair
value,

For assets and labilitics measured at fair value on a non-
recurring bosis, fair value s determimed by usmg vafows
valuation approaches, The same herarchy for inputs as
deserbed above, which requires thal observable nputs be
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uzed when available, is used in measuring fair value for these
s

For further infermation on financizl assets and habilibes that
are measured at fair value on a recuming and non-recurring
basis, see Note 4.

OfTsetting of Derivative Instruments

In commection with ita derivative activitics, the Firm generally
enters  imio master nefting  agreements  and collateral
agreements with its counterparties. These agreements provide
the Firm with the nght, in the evemt of a default by the
counterparty, o net @ counterparty’s rights and obligations
under the agreement and to liquidate and set off cash
collateral against any net amoast owed by the counterparty,
Derivatives with enforceable master nefling agreements are
reported net of cash coliateral received and posted

However, in centain circumstances, the Firm may not have
such an agreement i place; the relevant insolvency regime
may not support the enforceabality of the master netling
agreement or collateral agreement; or the Firm may not have
sought legal advice to support the enforceabality of the
agreement. In cases where the Firm has not determined an
apreement to be enforceable, the related amounts are not
offset {see Mote 6).

The Firm's policy 15 generally to recewve cash andior
securities posted as collateral (with nghts of rehvpothecation)
in connection with denvative transactions, imespective of the
enforceability determination regarding the master nelting and
collateral agreement. In certain cases, the Firm may agree for
such collateral to be posted by the counterparty 1o o thard-
party custodimn under a control agreement that enables it to
take control of such collateral in the event of a counterpany
default, The enforceability of the master netting mgreement is
iaken into account in the Firm's sk management practices
arsd application of counterparty credit lamits.

For mformation related to offsctting of denvatives, see Note
6

Hedge Accounting

The Firm applies hedge accountmg using vanous dernvative
financial instruments for the following types of hedges:
hedges of chunges in the fair value of assets and habihties due
tw the nsk being hedged (Gr value hedpes), hedges of
variability in forecasted cash flows from floating-rate assets
due 1o contractually specilied interest rates (cazh Mow hedges)
ard hedges of net nvestments in foreign opermations whose
functional currency is differemt from the reporting currency of
the Parent Company {net investment hedges). These financial
instruments are included within Tradmg assets—Denvative
and other contracts or Trading lmbilities—Denvative and
other contracts i the balance sheet For hedges where hedge
accounting 15 bemg applied, the Firm performs effectiveness
festing and other procedures. The change m the fair value of
the designated portion of the hedging instrument should be
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highly correlated. between 80 and 125 percent of the change
in the fair valse, cash flows, or carrymg value (due 10
translation gans or losses) of the hedged item atobaable 10
the nsk being hedged. The Firm considers the impact of
valuation adjustments related to counterparty credit spremds
and fs own credit spreads to determime whether they would
e the hedging relationship o be ineffective.

Fair Value Hedpes—{nterest Rate Risk

The Firm's designated fair value hedges consist of interest
rate swaps designated as hedges of chonges in the benchmark:
inferest e of certain fixed-rate AFS securities and senior
bormowings. The Firm also desipnates interest rate swaps as
fair value hedpes of changes in the benchmark interest rate of
certain fixed mie depesits. The Firm is permitted to hedge the
full, or part of the contractual temi of the hedged instrument.
The Firm uses repression analysis to perform an ongoing
prospective and retrospective assessment of the effectiveness
of these hedging relatiorships. For gqualifving fair value
hedges of benchmark nterest rates. the change in the fair
value of the denvative, offset by the change in the fair value
attributable to the change in the benchmark mterest rate nsk
of the hedped asset (hability), is recognized in camings each
period s a component of Intereat meome (expense). For AFS
securities, the change in fair value of the hedged stem due 1o
changes other than the risk being hedged will continue to be
reported in OC1 When a dervative is de-designated as a
hedge, any basis adpssiment remaining on the hedged asset
{liabilinyy is amortized 10 Interest income (expense) over the
remaining Life of the asset (habiliy) using the effective
interest method, For certain AFS securfties, the Firm also
applies the portfolio laver method of hedge aceounting, which
permits prepayvable and non-prepayable assets to be included
in the portfolio and allows more of the portfolss 1o be hedged.
Further, the portfolio layver method of accounting requires that
basis adjustments are maintzined at the portfolio level and not
allocated 1o ndividual stems until cemain de-designation
evenls oecwr, The amount designated as hedged is the suim of
the notional amounts of all outstanding lavers m cach
portiolio, Refer to Note & and Note 7 to the fnancial
statements for additional information on portfolio laver
mvethed hedgang.

Net fnvestmrent Hedges

The Firm uses forward foreign exchange contracts to manage
a portion of the cumency exposure relating to its net
investments m foreign opertions. To the extent that the
notional amounts of the hedging mstruments equal the portion
of the mvestments being hedged and the underlving exchange
raie of the dervative hedging mstrument is the same as the
exchange rfe between the functional cwrrency of the investee
and the imermediate parent entity s functional currency, 1t is
considered to be perfectly effective. The gam or loss from
revaluing qualifving hedges of met investments in foreign
operations ot the spod role 15 reported within ACCL The
forward poimnts on the hedging instruments are excluded from
hedge effectivensas testing and changes in the fair value of
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this excluded component are recorded currently in Interest
ineome

Cash Flow Hedges—/{nterest Rate Risk

The Firm's designated cash fow hedges comsist of interest
rate denvatives designated as hedges of vanability i
forecasted cash Mows from Nosting-rate sssets due 1o changes
in the contractually specified interest rates. The Firm uses
regression amalysis to perform an ongoing prospective and
retrogpective azsessment of the effectivencss of these hedging
relationships

The objective of this strategy is to hedge the nsk of chanpes
in the hedged item s cash flows attributable to changes in the
contractunlly specified interest rte, For qualifving cash flow
hedges of contraciually specified interest rates, changes n the
farr wvalee of the denvative are recorded in OCT and
subsequently reclassfied to eamnings in the same periods
when the hedged item affects eammings 1T cash flow hedge
accounting 5 dhscontimeed, ACCT 15 released o sarmings
immediately if the cash flow of the hedzed em 1z probable of
not occurring. Otherwise the amount in AOCT is released mto
eamings as the forecasted transaction affects camings.

Other Hedges

In addstion to hedges that are designated and qualify for hedge
accounting, the Firm uses derivatives to economically hedge
credit risk associted with cenain held-for-sale and held-for-
investment corporate loans and lending commitments, and the
related pains and losses are reported within Other revenues in
the income statement.

Fog further information on derivative instram ents and bedging
activitics, sec MNote 6.

AFS Investmend Securitics

AFS securies are reported al far valie in the balance sheet,
Interest income, including amorization of premiums and
aceretion of discounts, 15 included 1n Interest income in the
income statement. Unrealized gains ane recorded in OCT, and
unrealized losses are recorded either in OCl or m Other
revenues as described below

AFS secunties in an unrealized loss position are first
evaluated to determine whether there is an intent o sell or it is
more bkely than not the Firm will be required to sell before
recovery of the amortized cost basis. If 50, the amortized cost
basis 1s written down to the fair value of the security such that
the entire unrealized loss 15 recognized in Other Feventies, and
any previously established ACL is written off

For all other AFS securities in an unrealized loss position, any
portion of unrealized lnsses representing a credit loss is
recogruzed i Ciher revenses amd as an inerease 1o the ACL
for AFS securities, with the remainder of unrealized losses
recogrized m OCL A eredit loss exests f the Firm doss not
expect to recover the amaortized cost basis of the security.
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When considernng whether a credit loss easts, the Firm
considers relevant information, including:

= guarantees (implicit or explicit) by the U5 government;

+ the extent 1o which the far value has been less than the

amortized cost basis,

adverse conditions specifically relsted 10 the secumly, is

inchustry or geographic area;

* changes in the financial condittom of the ssuer of the

security or, in the case of an asset-backed debt security,

changes in the financial condition of the wnderlving loan

obligers,

the payment structure of the debt security and the likelihood

of the 1ssuer being able to make payments that increase in

the future;

failure of the issuer of the secunty to make scheduled

interest or principal pavments,

* the cument ratng and any changes to the rating of the
securily by 4 rling agency,

If w credit loss exasts, the Firm measures the credit loss as the
difference between the present value of cash flows expected
1o be collected (discounted at the implicit interest rate at
acqusition of the secunty or discounted at the effective yield
for securities thal incorporale changes in  prepavment
assumplions) asd the amortised cost basis of the secunty

Changes in prepayment assumptions alone are not considered
to result in & credit loss. When estimating the present value of
expected cash flows, information utilized meludes the
remaning pavment erms of the secunity, prepayment speeds,
financial conditton of the ssuer, expecled defaults and the
value of any underlving collateral

Presantation of ACL and Provision for Credit Losses

Proviakn ‘o
ACL Cradt Lossss

AFE dacuiss Conlra mveiimen] ecuritied  Olfer mysnue

Nonacernal & ACL Charge-offs on AFS Securifies

AFS securities Tollow the same nonaccrual and charge-off
guidance as discussed in “Allowance for Credit Lesses”
herein

HTM Securities

HTM securities are reported at amorized cost, net of any
ACL, in the balance sheet Refer to “Allowance for Credit
Lossezs™ herein for guidance on the ACL determination
Interest income, including amormization of premiums and
accretion of discounts on HTM secunties, 15 meluded i
Interest income m the income statement

Loans
The Fem accounts for loans based on the following

categories: loans held for investment, loans held for sale; and
loans at fair value,
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Noaacerieal and ACL Charge-aoffs on Loans

All kan categories  descnbed below  follow the same
nenacerual guidance and loans held for mvestment fellow the
charge-off guidance as discussed in “Allowance for Credit
Losses™ henein

Loans Held for Invesiment

Loans held for investment are reported at amortized cost,
which consists of the outstanding principle balance adjusted
for any charge-ofls, the allowmnée For credit losses. any
unamorized deferred fees or costs for ongimated loans, and
any unameriized premiums or discounts for purchased loans,

Intevest hrcome, Interest meome on performing loans held for
investment 15 acerued and recognized as interest income at the
contractunl rate of interest. Purchase price dicounts or
premiums, as well as net deferred loan fees or costs, are
amortized into interest income over the kife of the loan to
produce & level rate of return

Lending Commitments.  The Firm records the lishility and
felated expense for the  credt  exposure  felated 1o
commuments to fund loans. The hability 15 recorded in Other
liabilitses and accrued expenses in the balance sheet and the
expense 15 recorded in the Provision for credit losses in the
income statement. For more information regarding  loan
commuaments, standby  lefters of credit and fnancial
guarantees, sec Mote 4.

For more mformation regarding allowance Tor credit bosses,
refer to “Allowance for Credil Losses™ heérein.

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale are measured at the lower of amortzed
cost or fair value, with valuabon changes recorded in Other
revenues. The Firm determines the valuation allowance on an
individual loan basis, except for residential mongage loans
for which the valuation allowance is determined a1 the loan
product level. Any decreases m far value below the initial
carmying amount and any recovenes in fair value up to the
wnitkal carrymg amount are recorded in Other revenues.
Increases in fair value above initial carryirg value are not

recognized.

Intevest Income. Imterest income on leans held for sale is
accrued and recognized based on the contraciual rete of
interesi. Loan omgination fees or costs and puschase price
discounts or premiums are deferred as an adjustment to the
loan’s cost basis until the related loan is seld and, as such, are
ncluded in the periodic determmation of the lower of cost or
fair value adjustments and the gan o loss recogmzed wl the
tirmie of sale.

Lending Commitments. Commments 1o fund morgage loans
held for sale are derivatives and are reported in Trading assets
or Trading liabilities in the balance sheet and i Trading
revenues in the income stalement.
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For commitments to fund nom-mortgage loans, the Firm
records the liability and related experse for the fuar value
exposure below cost of such commitments in Other habilines
and accrued expenses in the balance sheet with an offset 1o
Crhser revenues in the income siatement

Becawse loans and lending commitments held for sale are
recogrized at the lower of cost or fmir value, the allowance for
credit losses and charge-off policies do not apply to these
loans,

Loans at Fair Value

Loans for which the fair value option is elected are carried at
fair value and included in Trading assets in the balance sheet,
with changes in fur valoe recognized in earmings. For further
information on loans camied at fair value and classified as
Trading assets, see Nole 4.

Lending Commitments. The Firm records the liability and
related expense for the fair value exposure related 1o
commitments to fund leans that will be measured at fur
value. The hability is recorded in Trading liabilities in the
balance sheet, and the expense is recorded in Trading
revenues in the income statement,

Because such loans and lending commitments are reponed st
farr value, the allowance for credit losses amd charge-off
pelicies do not apply to these loans.

For further imformation on leans, see Note 9. For miore
information regarding loan commitments, standby letters of
credit and financial guarantees, see MNote 14,

Allowanee for Credit Losses

The ACL for (inancial instruments measured at amortized
cost and certain off-balance sheet exposures (e.g, HFI loans
and lending commitments, HTM secunties, customer and
odher receivables and cerlaan  guaranlees) represents  an
estimate of expected credit losses over the entire life of the
fimancial instrument.

Factors comsdersd by management when determuming the
ACL include payment status, fr value of collateral and
expected payments of principal and interest, as well as
internal o external information relating to past events, current
conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts. The
Firm uses three forecasts thal include assumplions about
certain macrocconome: varables, ncludimg, but not limiated
to, LS. gross domestic product (“GDF”), equity market
indaces and unem ployment rates, as well s commercial real
estate and home price indices. AR the conclusion of the Firm's
reasorable and supportable forecast pertod of 13 quarters,
there 15 a gradual reversion back 1o historical averages

The ACL is measured on a collective basis when similar risk
characteristics exist for multiple mnstruments, considering all
available information relevam to assessing the collectabality
of cash flows. Generally, the Firm applies a probability of
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defaultloss given default model for mstruments that are
collectively assessed, under which the ACL 15 calculated as
the product of probabaliny of defauli, loss given default and
exposure ab defaull. These pammeters are forecast for each
collective group of assets using a scenario-based statistical
model.

If the mestrument does not share similar nsk characteristics
with other mstruments, ncluding when it 1s probable that the
Firm will be unzble to collect the full payment of principal
and interest on the matrument when due, the ACL 15 measured
on an mdividual basis The Firm generally applics a
discounted cash {low methad for instruments that are
individually assessed

The Fum may also elect to use an approach that considers the
fair value of the collmeral when measurmg the ACL if the
loan 1= collateral dependent (Le, repayment of the loan is
expected 1o be provided substantially by the sale or operation
of the underlving collateral and the borower = expenencing
financeal difficuly).

Addinonally, the Firm can elect 1o use an approach to
measure the ACL that considers the fair vadue of collateral
where the borrower 15 required 1o, and reascnably expected to,
continually adjust and replenish the amount of collateral
securng the nstrument to reflect changes in the fair value of
such collateral. The Firm has elected to wse this approach for
certain securities-based  foans, margin  boans,  securnitics
purchased under agreements to resell and securibies borrowed.

Credit quality indicators considered in developing the ACL
inelude:

*+ Corporate loans, securced lending facilities, commercial real
estate loans and securities, and other loans: Intemal risk
ratings developed by the CEM that are refreshed at beast
annually, and more frequently as necessary. These ratings
generally correspond to external ratings published by S5&P
The Firm also conssders transaction structure, mcluding
tvpe of collateral, collateral terms and pesiton of the
obligation within the capital structure, In addition, for
commercial real estale, the Firm considers property tvpe
and location, net operating income and LTV ratios, among
other factors, sz well as commercial real eatate price and
eredit spread indices and capiialization rates

» Residential real estate loans: Loan ongination Far [seac
Corporatton “FICO™) credt scotes as determined by
independent credit agencies m the U5, and LTV ratios.

= Emplovee loans: Emplovment status, which includes those
curremly empleved by the Farm and for which the Firm can
deduct any unpaid amounts due 10 ot through certain
compensation arrangements; and those no longer employved
by the Firm where such arrangements are no longer
applicable

Caalitative and environmental factors such as ecomomie and
businzss conditions, the nature and volume of the portfolio,
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and lending terms and the volume and severity of past due
loans are also considered in the ACL aleulations

Prasaniation of ACL and Provision for Credil Losses

Prsidon fof
ACL Crmar Lakian
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Monacerual

The Firm places financial imstruments on nonaccrual status 1f
principal or interest 18 not expected when contractually due or
i5 past due for 8 period of %0 davs or more unless the
obligation is well-secured and is in the process of collectsan,

For any mstrumeni placed on nonacerual status, the Firm
reverses any unpaid interest accrued with an offetling
reduction to Interest income. Frincipal and interest payments
received on nonacerual mnstruments are applied 10 principal 1f
there 15 doubt regarding the oltimate collectablity of
principal. [f collection of the principal is mot in doubt, interest
ineome i realized ona cash basis, 17 the instrument is brought
current and neither principal ner interest collection is in
doubt, instruments can generally retum 1o accrual status, and
interest imcome can be recopnized

ACL Charge-offs

The principal balance of a fmancal nstrument s charged off
in the perniod # i3 deemed uncollectible, resulting 1n a
reduction in the ACL amd in the balance of the financial
instrument in the balance sheet Acerued imerest receivable
balances that are separately recorded from the related
financial instruments are charged off against Interest income
when the rebated financial instrument i placed on nonacorual
status. Accordingly, the Firm elected not to mensure an ACL
for accrued mterest recervables.

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of Mnancial assets are accounted for as sales when
the Firm has rehnguished control over the transferred assets.
Any related gain or loss on sale 15 recorded 1n Net revenues
Tranafers that are not accounted for as sabes are treated as
collateralized financings. Secunibes bormowed or purchased
under agrecmients 1o resell and secunties loaned or sold under
apreements to repurchase are treated as collmteralized
financings (see Mote &)

Securiies purchased under agreements to resell (Creverse

repurchase  agreements™) and  Securities  sold  under
agrecments o repurchase  [“repurchase  agreements”),
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includirg repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements-to-
maturity, are camied in the balance sheet at the smount of
cash paid or recewved plus scerued interest except for certain
reverse repurchase and repurchase agreements for which the
Firm has elected the farr value option (zee Mote 5) Where
appropriate, repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase
agreements with the same counterparty are reponed on a net
basis. Sccurities bormowed and securities loaned are recorded
at the amount of cash collmeral advanced or received.

In instances where the Firm iz the lender in secunities-for-
securities transactions and is permitted 10 sell or repledge
these securities, the far value of the collateral received is
reported in Trading assets, and the related ohligation to return
the coliateral is reported in Trading liabilities in the balance
sheet Secunitaes-for-securities transactions where the Firm is
the borrower are not included n the balamee sheet

In order 1> manage credit exposure ansing from these
transactions, in appropriate circumstances, the Fim enters
inio masler nettaing agreements and coliateral agreements with
its counterparties. These agreements provide the Firm with
the right, in the event of a default by the counterparty, tonet a
counterpanty’ s rights and obhigations under the agreement and
e ligpadare and set off collateral held by the Firm against the
net amount owed by the counterparty.

The Firm"s policy is generally to 1ake possession of securities
purchased or borrowed in connection with reverse repurchmse
agreements and securities borrowed transactions, respectively,
and 1o receive cash andlor securities delivered under
repurchase agreements or securities boaned transactions (with

rights of rehypothecation).

For information related 10 offsetung of certamn collsteralized
transactions, see Mote B

Premises, Equipment amd Capitalized Soltware Costs

Premises, equipment and capitalized software costs consast of
buildings, leaschold improvements, fumiture, fixtures,
computer and communicalions ¢quipment, power generation
assels and capatalized software (extermally perchased and
developed for mternal use). Premises, equipment and
capitalized software costs are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and amortization and are included in Other assets
in the balance sheet Depreciation and amortization are
provided by the stragght-lme methed over the estimated useful
lifie of the asset
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Estimated Usaful Life of Assats
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Premises, equipment and capitalized software eosts are lested
for imparrment whenever events or changes in crcumstances
suggest that an asset’s carrying value may not be fully
recoverable.

Goodwill and Infangible Asseis

The Frrm tests goodwill and ndefinie-lived intangible assets
for impairment on an annual basis and on an interim basis
when cerain evenis or circumstances exist The Firm tesis
poodwill for impairment a1 the reporting unit level, which is
generally at the level of or one level below the Firm's
operating segments. The Fimi's operating  segments ane
equivalent 10 i1s business segments. The Furm tests andefinne-
Ived intangible assets for impairment at the apgrepate bevel of
management contracts. For both the annual and interim tests,
the Firm has the oplion to either (i} perform a quantitative
imparment test ar (1) first perform a qualitative assessment
1o determine whether it 15 more likely than nol that the fair
value 15 less than s camymg amounl, i whach case, the
quantitative test would be performed.

Whien performing & quantitative imparment test of goodwill,
the Firm compares the far value of the reporting unit with the
carrving amount I the fair value 15 less than the camying
amount, the impamment loss 5 equal to the excess of the
carmvang valse over the fair value, limited to the carrving
amaunt of geodwill withan the reparting unit.

When performing a quantitative impairment test of indefinie-
lived intangible assets, the Farm compares the fair value of the
wmets with the carrying amount, 17 the Fair value is less than
the carrying amount, the impairment loss 5 equal o the
excess of the carrying value over the fair value, limited to the
carmying amount of the assets.

The estimated farr values used in the quantiative imparrment
tests of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets are
derived based on valuation technigues the Firm believes
market participants would use. The estimated fair values are
penerally determined by utilizing a discounted cash flow
methoedology or methodologies that incorporste price-lo-bock
and prce-to-eamings  multiples of certan  comparable
com panies for goodwill impairm emt testing,

Intangible assets with a finite life are amortized over their
estimated useful hfe and are reviewsd for impairment on an
inierim basis to assess whether mpairment indicators are

|

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

Morgan Stanley

present.  Impairment  losses are recorded  within Other
expenses in the meome statement.

Earnings per Common Share

Basic EPS s computed by dividing eamings applicable. to
Morgen  Stanley common shareholders by the weighted
avernge number of common shares owtstanding for the period.
Earnings applicable to Morgan $tankey common sharcholders
represents net income applicable to Morgan Stanley reduced
by preferred stock dividends Common shares outstanding
melude common stock and vested RSUs where recipignts
have satisfied the relevant vesting terms. Diluted EPS reflects
the assumed conversion of all difutive securities.

Share-based awards, ncluding awards that pay  davidend
equivalents subjped to vesting. are included i daluted shares
outstanding (if dilutive ) under the treasury’ stock method.

The Firm has granted PSLUs that vest and convert to shares of
cemmon stock only if predetermined performance and market
goals are satished. Smce the Esumnce of the shares Is
coentingent upon the satisfaction of certain comditions, the
P53z are included in diluted EPS based on the number of
shares (1 any) that would be sable if the reporting date was
the end of the perlomiance period

For further mformation on diluted ecarmings (loss) per
common share, see Note 17 1o the financial statements

Deferied Coinpensation
Srock-Based Compensttion

The Firm measures compensation expense for slock-based
awards at fair value. The Firm determines the fair value of
E3Us (includmg PSUs with nonemarket performance
conditions) based on the prant-date fair value of its commoen
stock, measured as the volume-weighted average price on the
date of grant (VW AF), The fair valee of RSUs not entitled
to dividends unhil conversion 1s measured 8t VIWAP reduced
by the present value of dividends expected to be paid on the
underlving shares prior 1o scheduled conversion date. PSUs
that contn market-based conditions are valued wing «
Maonte Carlo valustion model.

Compensation expense is recognized over the vesting period
relevant to each sepamately vesting portion of the award.
Compensation  expense  for owards wih  performuance
conditions 15 recogmized based on the probable outcome of the
performance condition at ecach reperting date, Compensation
expense [oe awards  with  market-based  conditions s
recopruzed irrespective of the probability of the marketl
condition bemng achieved and 15 not reversed 1f the market
condition 1z not met. The Firm accounts for forfeitures as they
[Eeqtiy

Stock-based awards gererally comtain  clawback and
cancellation provisions. Certan awards provide the Firm
diseretion 1o claw back or cancel all or a portion of the award

December 2024 Foom 10-K
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under specified circumstances. Where award terms  are
considered to be subjective, a gram date cannot be established
and the awards are subject 1o vanable accounting which
requires thal compensation expense for those awards 1s
adjusted for changes in the fair value of the Fim's common
stock of the relevant model valuatzon, as appropriate, until
conversion, exercise or expiration. Following amendments 1o
clarify specific subjective award terms m the second quarter
of 2023, a prant date for the awards was established such that
compenzation expense for those awards i= no longer adjusted
for changes in the fair value of the Fim s common stock. The
Fim alse operstes an Employes Sock Purchase Plan
(“ESPP™) which allows elimble emplovees of the Fiom o
purchase shares of Morgan Stanley at a discount.

Enployee Stock Trusts

In connectron with certain stock-based compensation plans,
the Finm has established emploves stock trusts o provide, at
its discretion, common stock voting nghts to certain RS
holdars. Following the grant of an RSU award, when a stock
trust i utilized, the Firm contributes shares 1o be held i the
stock trust until the RSUs conwerl to common shares. The
wssets of the employee stock trusts are consolicated with those
of the Firm and are generally accounted for in o manner
samilar to reasury stock, where the shares of common stock
cutstanding reported in Common stock issued to emplovee
stock trusts are offset by an equal amount reporied in
Emplovee stock trusts in the balance sheet.

The Fim uses the grant-date far value of stock-based
compensation as the basis for recording the movement of the
aszels o or from the emplovee stock trusts. Changes in the
farr value are nod recogmacd as the Firm's stock-based
compensation must be settled by delivery of a fixed numbser
of shares of the Firm™s common stock:

Deferred Cash-Based Compensation

Com pensation expense for DOP awards is caleulated based on
the notional value of the award granted, adjusted for changes
in the Fair value of the referenced investments that emplovees
select. Compensation expense is recognized over the vesting
penod relevant 1o each separately vesting portion of deferred
awards.

The Fiem anvests directly, as a principal, in financial
instruments and other mvestments 1o economically hedie
certain of 155 oblipations under s DCP. Changes in the value
of =uch mvestments are recorded in Trading revenues and
Investments revenues, Although changes in compensation
expense resuling from changes i the fair value of the
referenced myvestments will generally be offset by changes in
the fair value of investments made by the Firm, there is
tvpacally a tming  difference between the  immediate
recognition of gains and lesses on the Firm's investments and
the deferred recogrution of the related compensation expense
over Lhe vesting period.

Diecember 2024 Form 10-K

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

MOI‘QEI’I SIEH'IIE}I'
Retirement-Idigible Employee Compensation

For year-end stock-based awards and DCP awards anticipated
to be pranted to retrement-ehigible emplovees under award
terms that do not contain a future service requirement, the
Firm accrues the estimated cost of the awards over the course
of the calendar vear preceding the grant date, which reflects
the period over which the compensation 15 eamed.

Carried Interest Compensation

The Firm generally recopnizes compensalion expenss for any
poeriion of camed interest (both realized and unrealized) that
15 allocated 1o emplovees. For information on performance-
based fees in the form of carried inmerest, which are directly
related to camed inferest compensation, see “Revenue
Recogmition—Carried Interest” heren

Income Taxes

Deferved 1ax assets and liabilities are recorded based upon the
temporary differences between the Onancial statement and
meome tax bases of assets and habilites using currently
eracted tax rates in effect for the vear in which the differences
are expected to reverse. The effect of a change in tax rates on
defermed 1ax assets and habilitres is recogmzed m income tax
expense (benefit) in the penod that includes the enactment
date. Such effects are recorded n Provision for income taxes
regardless of where deferred taxes were originally recorded.

The Fimi recognizes net deferred tax assets 1o the extent that
1t believes these assets are more likely than not to be realized.
In making swch & determination, the Firm considers all
available posttive and negative evidence, inchaling future
reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, projected
future taxable income, tax planning strategies and results of
recent operations, When performing the assessment, the Firm
considers all types of deferred tax assets in combanation with
each other, regardless of the ongmn of the underlying
temporary difference. 11 a deferred tax asset 15 determimied 10
bbe unrealizable, a valuation allowance s established. If the
Firm subsequently determimes that it weuld be able 1o realize
deferred L assets n excess of ther net recorded amount, i
would make an adjustment 10 the deferred ik assel valwtion
allowance, which would reduce the provision for income
taes.

The Firm recogmzes lax expense associfed with Global
Intangible Low-Taxed Income as 1 15 incurred as part of the
current income taes to be paid or refunded for the current
period

Uncertain x positions are recorded on the basts of a two-step
process, whereby (1) the Firm determines whether ft 15 more
likely than not that the tax positions will be sustained on the
basis of the technical merits of the position and (i1) for those
fax positions that meet this threshold, the Firm recognizes the
larpest amount of tax benefit that is more likely than not to be
realized wpon ultmate setlement with the relsted tax
authority. Interest and penalties related to unrecopnized tax
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benefits are recognized as a component of the provision for
income taxes,

Foreigh Currencies

Assets and liahilities of operations with non-U.S,  dollar
functional currencies are transleted a1 vear-end mtes of
exchange, Gains of lesses resulting from transhitimg foreign
currency financial statements, net of hedge gains or losses and
related tax effects, are reflected in AQCE m the balance sheet.
Gaing or lesses resulting from remeasurement of foreign
currency transsctions aré ineluded in net meomie, and amounits
recognized in the income statement are translated a1 the mate
of exchange on the respective date of recogmition for each
amoLunt,

Accounting Updates Adopted in 2024
Segrrent Reparting

The Firm adopted the Segment Reporting - Improvements io
Repoviable  Segment  Discloswres  mocounting  update
retroapectively, effective Jamuary 1, 2024, This accounting
update requires additional reportable segment disclosures on
an annual and interim  basis, primanly about significant
sepment expenses and other segment ems that are regubarly
provided to the chief operating decision maker and included
within the reported measure of segment profit or less, See
Mote 22 1o the fnancinl statements for dischosures on the
Firm"s reportable segments.

Tvestmerits - Tax Credit Structires

The Firm adopted the frvestments - Equity Method and Joint
Ventures - Tax Credit Strwctures accountmg update on
January 1, 2024 using the modified retrospective method.
This sccounting update permits an ¢lection o account for tax
equity nvestments usmg the proportional amertizmhion
micthod 1f certain conditions are met. Under the proportional
amortization method, the inttial cost of the nvestment is
amartized n proportion o the imcome X credns and other
income tax benelits received and recegnized net in the income
statement as a component of provision for income taxes. The
upsdate requires a separate accounting policy election to be
made for each tax credit program. Additional disclosures are
required regarding {1} the mature of our tax equity investments
and (1) the effect of our 1ax equity investments and related
income tax credits on the financial condition and results of
operations (see Note 117,

The adoption resulted m a decrease to Retamed eamings of
560 million as of January 1. 2024, net of tax, and a
corresponding reduction to Other assets,

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

Morgan Stanley
Accounting Update Adopted in 2022
Reference Rate Reforne

The Firm has adopted the Heference Rate Reform accounting
update, which extends the period of tme entities can ubilize
the reference rate reform relief gusdance from December 31,
2022 to December 31, 2024, The reliel provides optional
expedients and exceptions for applving generally acocpted
accounting principles to contracts, hedging relationships and
other transactions that reference LIBOR or ather interest rate
benchmarks for which the referenced rate is expecied to be
discontined or replaced. The Finm s applying the accounting
relief as relevant contract and hedge sccounting relationship
modifications are made during the course of the reference rate
reform tramsition peniod. There was no impast 1o the Firm's
finance | statements upon ssusnce of this accoumting standard

update.
3, Cash and Cash Equivalents

AL Al
Decambar 31,  Decensbaer 31,
§ Iy e Firid i
Conth ardd S from barkes ] 4436 £ fe e
I isras] Dadding Seposis with barks 100,950 #1500
Todnl Cash srd cash sguivelents ] 108,386 £ o
Rusiinicing ek 3 20,843 £ FHN

For additional information on cash and cash equivalonts,
ncludmg restricted cash, see Nole 2.
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4. Fair Values
Recurring Fair Value Measuremenis

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring
Basis

At Decembar 31, 2024

F i i Lol | Lenl 2 Leved 3 ﬂunﬂ;' Total
Assats at fuir valus o ' ’ o
Tratirng assaty
WS Trewwary and
ngency securilies. §54436 § #4332 § = §  — 598,768
Dg'mprm- 25410 0,960 1 — 168
w-:ll — 2,801 - - 2,802
MABS - 2,23 m - M2
Lecsrs mna Mrcing
seTianlE - TEDZ 489 = BOE
owu!pw albhar
o — 30,304 1,258 —  Mps2
Comomin equites’* 102,874 606 154 — 103,634
Dsrivation and alher conmen:
riarest M 4,154 124,300 343 — {8,808
Crmgiiy - 8,783 67 = B150
Forigh suchangs 85 108,057 L — ib8,F32
Equry 704 T2A32 445 - THGE2
Conuncdity and othar 1,388 12370 L1956 — 1583
tacing” [BATH) (261,771)  [645) (SD.BIE] [209,722)
Total cedwntivs and odar
ConiRcs 1,818 T42B0 N33 (40BN 38,569
Irvasimerts L1 #33 Tl — 1408
Prpsical sormatiins - tas = = 1w

Toul trading assats’ 185,118 174540 G240 (40,835 325,878

it vl | ot e —

G834 20TT4 — —  B8,5608
Total assms at falr value 3254040 §203,327 § 6840 $¢S0.635) 34242808
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Morgan Stanley

AL December 21, 2024

3§ il Lowai i LevelZ Lewsl3 Haiing'  Toml
Labities ot fabr vabee
Copparnatss 5 — § 8408 § 1% = § B480
Traing fabiltes:
Y adoney Dot 21,508 T
Hber soversgn
povemment obligations 20,724 3,2 B4 = mas20
Coaporate ara odhar debl — 8,032 EL] —_ 643
Coupoate scuiies’ 60,653 95 15 - E,7H3
Dwrivaties ara other coniracis
It ric 3,615 114,179 196 = 118,150
Crmdit — &,302 ] — 3472
Forsigh enchanhge 147 104,782 Eil - 10,571
Enuity 24 MO0 1A — MEan
Comenoeity are oiher 146  1HE Ly - 13,563
Hating’ (BAT1) [254,7T1) (845 (84,053) [303,340)
Total dechathon ang oher
A 1,003 7387 2333 (4408 37890
Toil iracing Uahilivies 104,875 31,499 2643 (44,951 15,764
ripurcnase - 512 ddd - 358
e pacu finaneings — A4z L — 14,508
I3 WT — Man
Hﬂﬂm S 000 § 4911 i’&ilﬂ SN
§in o Loved | LevelZ Levwdd Matting'  Totl
Assats a1 falr value
Tracing asssis:
UE. Treasiry and
agency secunes Lohas0 SR 8 - & - 10
hbmr sovermgn
peamment cbligatiors 22680 GSMA ¥ —  32E20
Sme ard muricgal
L - A k) - 282
AAARS - 1,540 420 - 2,020
Loars and lerding
T T 5 - 8,022 2068 - 988
Cospomte ard athar dabt - MBI 1583 - WBE
Compomts squites ' 128,772 90 190 — 12900
(= il ard odar
itarnat rate TR 140,030 i — e
Cmdi - (0244 ] - NGEN
Eoreign sachange 1z B0 o] — 63250
Exuity FAL - 587 —  BGTh
Commadety ard olber 1EDE 11882 2811 — 163
Haring’ (FBEN) (TR A0T) (102 (42014} (2RO
Total derivatine and other
AT 3430 TR.IES 3813 (4208} 373
Invesimants’ * TRl &8 2] — T.568
Pysical commesitias - b - - Tt
Tetl tracing nuset’ 200022 @A 8 02T WLMS) 550
Invasiamian] Sl —
ARG LR R - - Ml
Sacuntes punchases
R AQTEeMaNIE o
el - 7 - - !

Tolal assats af fair value 5267407 §215.8%1 § 0327 S{42.015) SHOETD
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Al Decarvbar 31, 1030

$in s Lovell Lewd2 Leveld Natig' Toml
Llabiimios o fals valoe o ) -
Dapasin % = % B430 § m 5 - § BATZ
Trading Gatsies:
“ﬁh:qmu:i 2F. " - =  Hria
{her soversion
governmwen! cblgaiiors ] 3,055 B - 30,750
Coaporais and other gsbt - 10560 1] - 10560
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Forsign axchargs =] Ag,RA0 238 - 5036
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CEATACE 4008  BRAS0  JBET  (AR7NT) 35276
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Morgan Stanley

Vialuation Technigues for Assets and Liabilities Measured
at Falr Value on a Recurring Basis

105, Treasury and Agency Securilies
LS Treasury Securities

Waluation Technique:

= Far valee 15 determined wing quoted market prices.

Valuation Hierarchy Classification:

* Level |—as nputs are observable and in an active market
L8, Agemey Secuvities

Valuation Techniques:

« Won-callable agency-issued debt securities are generally
valued using quoted market prices, and callable apency-
issued debt secunties are valued by henchmarking model-
derived prices 1o quoted market prices and trede data for
compmrable instruments.

The fair value of agency morigage pass-through pool

secunties 15 model-dnven based on spreads of comparable

to-he-announced securities,

= CMOs are generally valued using quoted markel prices
and trade data adjusted by subsequent changes i related
indices for comparable mstruments.

Valuation Heerarchy Classification:

* Level 1—on-the-run agency Bswed debt securites if
setively traded and inputs are observable

* Level 2—all other agency 1ssued debl securities, agency
morgage pass-through pool secunties and Ch0s af
actively traded and mputs are observable

« Level 3—in instances where the trading activity is limited
of inputs are unobservable

Orther Sovereign Government (bligations

Valuation Techniques:

* Fur value 15 determmned usmg quoted prices in active
markets when available When not available, quoted prices
in less active markets are used. In the absence of position-
specific quoted prices, fair value may be determined
threugh benchmarking from comparable instroments.

Valuation Hierarchy Classification:

* Level I—if actively traded and inputs are observable

* Level 2—if the market i less active or prices are
dispersed

* Level 3—in instances where the prnices are unobservable

Htate and Municipal Securities

Valuation Techniques:

« Fair walue 15 dJetermined using recently executed
transactions, markel price quotilions or prcing modals
that factor in, where applicable, interest rates, bond or
CD3 spreads, adpmted for any basie difference between
cash and derivative instruments

Valuation Hierarchy Classification:

* Level 2—if value based on observable market data
supported by market liquidity for comparable instruments

« Level 3—in instances where markel dma are ot
observable or supported by market Liguidity

December 2024 Farm 10-K
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Mortgage- and Asset- Backed Securities
Valuation Techniques:

Mongage- and asset-backed secuntes may be valued
based on price or spread data obtained from observed
transactions of independent extermal parties such as
vendors or brokers

When posmtion-specific external price dota are not
observable, the fair value determmation may reguire
benchmarking to  comparzhle mstruments, and‘or
analyzing expected credit losses, default and recovery
rates, andior applving discounted cash flow techniques
When evaluating the comparable instrumems for use i the
vahmtion of each secunty, sécuntly collateral-specific
attribwtes, including payment priority, eredit enlancement
levels, type of collateral, delinguency rales and loss
severity, are conssdered. [n addition, for RMBS borrowers,
FICO scores and the level of documentation for the loan
are considered.

harket standard cash fow models may be wilized 1o
moddel the specific collateral composition and cash flow
structure of each transaction. Key mpuls to these models
are markel spreads, forecasted credit losses, and defult
and prepayment rates for each msset category

Valution levels of RMBS and CMBS indices are used az
an additional dits point for benchmarking purposes or 1o
price outright index positions.

Valuation Hierarchy Classification;

Level 2—if wvalue based on observable market data
suppodted by market hquedity for comparable instruments
Level 3—if external prices or signalicant spread inputs are
uncbservable or not supported by market hauidity or i the
comparabality assessment involves significant subjectivity
related to property  type  differences, cash  flows,
performance or other inputs

Loans and Lending Commitments
Vahation Technigues,

Faar value of corporate loans 13 determined wsing recently

* The g
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Morgan Stanley

or bomower types of based on the present value of
expected future cash Mows using the Firm's best available
estimates of the key assumptions, meluding forecasted
credit losses, prepayment mates, forward yield curves and
digcount rates commensurate with the naks involved or a
methodolopy that utilizes the capital structure and credi
speeads of recent compartble securitiztion transctions
Fair value of equity margin loans 15 determined by
discounting future imterest cash flows, net of potential
lnsses resulting from large downward price movements of
the underlying marngin lean collateral, The potential losses
are modeled wsing the margin loan rate, which 15
calibrated from markel observable CDS spreads, imiphed
debt yields or volatility metrics of the loan collateral,

Valuation Hierarchy Classifacation:
= Level 2—if value based on observable market data

supported by market liquidity for comparable mstruments.

* Level 3—in instances where prices or significant spread

inputs are uncbservable or net supported by markel
liquedity or if the comparabality assessment nvolves
significant subjectivity

Corporate amd Other Debit
Corparate Bonds

Valuation Techniques:

* Fairr wvalue 15 determined wsing recently  exocuted

transactions, market price quotations, bond spreads and
CS spreads obfaimed from independent exterrml parties,
such as vendors and brokers, adjwsted for any basis
difference between cash and derivative instruments,

data used s for the same matunity as the band.
If the spread data does not reference the issuer, then data
that references comparable msuers are used When
positrm-specific external price data 1s not observable, fmr
value 15 determined based on ether benchmarking 10
comparable mstruments or cash flow models with vield
curves, bond or single-name CD¥S spreads and recovery
rates of boss given defaull as sigrificant inputs

oOoOooodn

execuled ansaclions, market pnce quedations (where
observable), implied yields from comparable debt, market
observable CDS spread levels obtained from independent
external parties adjusted for any basis difference between

Waluataon Heerarchy Classification:

* Level 2—f value based on observable market data for
comparable instruments

* Level 3—in instances where prices o sigmificant spread

cash and derwvative instruments, along with proprictary
valuation models and default recovery analysis where such

nputs are unobservable or if the comparabality assessment
mvolves significant subjectivity

transactions and guotations are uncbservable. Chos
Far value of contingent corporate lending commitments is Valuation Techniques:
determined by using executed ransactions on comparable * The Firm holds cash CDOs that tvpacally reference a

loans and the anticipsted market price based on pricing
indscations  from syndicate banks and customers, The
valuation of loans and lending commitments also takes
into account fee income that is considered an attribute of
the contract.

Fair value of morgage loans 15 determined uzing
observable prices based on transactional data or therd-party
priceg for comparable mstrum ents, when avmlable

Where position-specific external prices are not observahle,
farr value s estimated based on benchmarking 1o prices
and rates observed in the primary market for similar loan

Dicember 2024 Form 10-K

tranche of an underlying synthetic portfolio of single-name
DS spreads collateralized by corporate bonds ("CLN") or
cash portfolio of ABS/leans (“asset-hacked CDOs™)
Credit commelation, a primary input wsed to determine the
fair value of CLNs, 15 usually unobservable and denved
using a benchmarking technique. Other mode] imputs, such
as credit spreads, ncluding collateral spreads and interest
rates, are wpicnlly observable

Asset-backed CD0s are valued based on an evaluation of
the market and model nput parameélers sourced from
comparable instruments as indicated by market activity.
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Each asset-backed CDO postion 15 evahmbed
independently taking into  consideration  available
comparable  market  levels,  umderlving collateral

performance and pricing, deal structures and liquidity.

Vahmtion Hierarchy Classification

= Level Z—when either comparable markel transactions mre
observable or credit correlation wput i3 insignificant

* Level 3—when either comparable market transactions are
unichaervable or the credit comelation input 15 s fican

Equity Comtracts with Financing Features

Valustion Technigues:

= Fair value of cetain equity comtracls, whech are not
classified as OTC denvatives because they do nod meet the
net inwvestment criteria, i3 determined by discounting
future interest cash flows, inclusive of the estimated value
of the embedded optionality, The valuation uses the same
denvative pocing models and valuation techniques as
described under “OTC Denvative Contracts™ herein,

Valuation Hicrarchy Classification:

= Level 2—when the contract is valued using observable
inputs or where the unobservable input is not deemed
sigrificant

* Level 3—when the comtract i valued using an
unebzervable input that s deemed significant

Corporate Equitics

Vahuaton Technigues:

+ Exchange-traded equity securities are generally valued
based on quoted prices from the exchange.

= Unlisted equity securities are generally valued based onan
assessment of each security, considering rounds of
financing and third-party transactions, discounted cash
flow amalyzes and market-based information, mcluding
comparable transactions, trading multiples and changes in
market outlook, among other factors.

» Listed fund umits are generally marked to the exchange-
tradedd price if actively wraded, or o NAV il pet Unlisted
firnd units are generally marked to NAV

Vahaton Hierarchy Classification:

* Level 1—actively traded exchange-traded securities and
fumd umits

= Level 2—if not actively traded, inputs are observable or if
undergeing a recent MEA event or corporate action

= Level 3—if not actively traded, mputs are unchservable or
if underpoing an aged M&EA event or corporate action

Derivative and Other Contracts
Exchange-Traded Derivalive Contracts
Vahation Techniques:
» Exchange-iraded denvatives that are actively traded are
varlwed based on queted prices from the exchange.
= Exchange-raded denivatives that are not sctively traded
are valued using the same techniques as those applied 1o
OTC denivatives as noted below,
Valuation Hierarchy Classification:
= Level l—when actively traded
* Level 2—when not sctively traded
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Morgan Stanley

QT Denivative Comracts

Valuarion Techniques:

» OTC dervative contracts inclede forward, swap and
option contracts  related to  nterest mates, foreign
currencies, credit standing of reference entities, equsty
prices of commadity prices

* Depending on the product and the terms of the transaction,

the fair valwe of OTC derivative products can be modeled
using & serics of techmiques, including closed-form
analytic formulas, such as the Black-Scholes option-
pricimg  model, simulation models of a combination
thereof. Many pricmg models do not entall matenal
subjectivily as the methodolomes emploved do not
necessitate significant judgment since model inputs may
be observed from actively quoted markets, as is the case
for genenc interest rale SWAps, many equity, commodiy
and foreign currency option contracts, and certain O, In
the case of more established dervabive products, the
pricing models used by the Firm are widely accepted by
the financial services induwstry.

More complex OTC derivauve products are typcally less

liqued and require more judgment n the implementation of

the valuation technique since direct trading activity of
quotes are unobservable, This includes certain types of
interest rate denvatives with both volatility and comelation
exposure, equity, commodity or foreign  curmency
denvatives that are cither longer-dated or include exposure
to multiple underlvings, and credit derivatives, ancluding

CDS on cenain mortgage- or assel-backed secunties and

basket CDS. Where required mpats are uncbservable,

relationships to observable dsta points, based on historcal

andlor amplied cbservations, may be employed as a

technigque 1o esumate the model pat values, For further

information on  the valuation techniques for OTC

denvative products, see Note 2

Valuation Hicrarchy Classification:

# Level 2—when valued using observable inputs aupported
by market liquidity or where the unobservable input 5 not
deemed sipnificant

+ Level 3—when valued using observable inpuis wih
limited market liquidity or if an uncbservable input is
deemed sigraficant

Invesiments

Valuation Techniques:

« Investments include direct invesiments in equily securities,
ms well s various investment mamgement funds, which
inehde DEP nyvestments

+ Exchange-traded direct equity invesiments are generally

valued based on queted prices from the exchange.

For direct mnvestments, initially, the transaction price is
generally considered by the Firm as the exit price and is 1ts
best estimate of fair value.

After initial recognition, in determining the far value of
non-exchange-traded intemally and extermlly managed
funds, the Firm generally considers the NAV of the fund
provided by the fund manager 1o be the best estimate of
fair value. These investments are included in the Fund
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Interests table n the “MNet Asset Value Measurements” Securities Purchased under Agreements to Hesell and

section hergin,

For non-exchange-traded investments exther held directly

or held within intemally managed funds, fwr value after

initial recognition iz based on an assessmemt of each

underlying nvestment, considening rounds of financing

and thard-party transactions, discounted cash flow anslvses

and market-based information, including comparable Firm

transactions, trading multiples and changes n market

outlook, among other factors.

Vahation Hierarchy Classification:

= Level I—if actively traced

= Level 2—when not sctively traded and valued based on
rounds of financing o third-party transactions

+ Level 3—when not actively traded and rounds of
financing or third-pary transactions are not available

Physical Commuoditics
Valuation Techniques:
= Farr wvaluwe is determined using observable mnputs,
ineluding broker quotations and published indices
Vahmtion Hierarchy Classification:
+ Level 2—valued using observable inputs

Investment Securities—AFS Securities

Valuation Techrigues.

+ AFS securmties are composed of U5 government and
agency securities {eg., U5 Treasury sccurities, agency-
ssued debt, agency mortgage pass-through securities and
CMs), CMBS, ABS, state and municipal secunties. For
further information on the determination of far valee,
refer to the comesponding  assetliabaliy  Valustion
Technigue described herein for the same insiruments

Vahaton Heerarchy Classification;

+ For funher information on the determination of valustion
hicranchy classification, see the corresponding Valuation
Higrarchy Classification descnibed herein

Depasils

Valuation Techmgues:

* The Firm issues FDIC-insured certificates of deposit that
pay either fixed coupons or that have repayment terms
linked 1o the performance of debt or equily secumities,
indices or currencies. The fwr value of these cerificates of
deposit 15 determined uwsing  valuation models  that
incarporale  observable inputs  referemcing  identical or
comparable securities, including prices to which the
deposits are linked, imerest mate wvield curves, oplion
volatility and currency rates, equity prices, and the impact
of the Fimm's own credit spreads, adjusted for the impact of
the FDIC insurance, which s based on vanilla deposii
ISSUANCE rales.

Valuation Hierarchy Classification:

v Level 2—when valustion inputs are observable

* Level 3—in instances where an unobservable npul 15
deemed significant

Diecember 2024 Form 10-K

Securities Sold under Agreements to Repurchase

Valumion Technigues:

+ Fair value 15 computed using a standard cash flow
discountimg methodobogy.

* The inputs o the valustion inchede contractunl cash fows
and collmera] funding spreads, which are the incrementsl
spread over the OIS rate for a specific collateral mte (which
refers to the mte applicable to a specific type of security
pledged as collateral)

Valustion Hiersrchy Classification:

= Level 2—when the valuation inputs are obscrvable and
sipported by market Liquadity

* Level 3—in instances where the valuabion input is
observable bul not supporied by market liquidsty or if an
unobservable input is deemed sigmficant

Other Secured Financings

Valuation Technigues

= Other secured Nnancings are composed of short-dated notes
secured by Corporate equities, spreements to repurchase
Physical commodities, the liabilities related to sabes of
Loans and lending commiments asccounted for oz
fimancings, wnd secured contracts that are not classiled
OTC derivatives because they fail net investment criteria
For further information on the determination of far value,
refer to the Valuation Techniques described herein for the
corresponding  instruments, which are  the collateral
referenced by the other secured financing liability.

Valuastion Hierarchy Classification:

+ For further information on the determination of valuation
hierarchy classification, see the Valwation Hierarchy
Clnssification  described  herein for the comesponding
instruments, which are the collateral referenced by the other
secured financing labality.

Borrowings

Valumion Technigues

= The Firm carmies certain borrowimgs a1 fur value that are
primarily compesed off insiruments whose payments and
redemption valees are linked to the performance of a
specific mdex. o basket of stocks, a specific equity security,
o commodity, a credit exposure or basket of credn
exposures; and mstruments with various mterest rate-related
features, including step-ups, step-downs and zero coupons.
Also incleded are unsecured contracts that are not classified
as OTC dervatives because they fml mitial nel investment
criteria

* Fair value 15 determined using valuation models for the
denvative and debt postions of the instruments, These
models incorporate observable inputs refesencing identecal
or compareble secunties, including prices to which the
nstruments are hinked, interest rate vield curves, opbon
volatility and currency rates. and commodity or equity
prices,

= Independent, extermal and wraded prces are considersd, as
well as the impact of the Firm's own credit spreads, which
are based on observed secondary bond market spreads
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An  ingrease  (decreaze) to the  followmg  sigmificant
unobservable inputs would generally result in o hagher (lower)
Tair valse,
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+ Comparable Bond or Loan Price. A pricing input used
when prices for the identical mstrument are not avaalable
Sigmficant subjectivity may be involved when fur value is
determined wsing pricing data available for comparable
instrumients. Valuation using comparable nstruments can
be done by caleulating an implied vield {or spread over o
liguad benchmark) from the price of a comparable bond or
Ioan, then adjustmg that yicld (or spread) 1o denve a value
for the bond or loan. The adpustment to yield (or spread)
should account for relevant differences in the bonds or
leans, such as matrity of credit quality, Alermatively, a
price-lo-priee basis  can b assumed  between  the
comparable instrument and the bond or lean being valuwed
order 1o establish the value of the bond or loan,

Comparable Equty Price. A price derived from equity
raises, share buybacks and external bid levels, e A
discount or premium may be included i the fair value
eslimate

Comtingency Frobability. Probabality associated wih the
realization of an wderlying event upon which the value of
an assel is contingent.

EBITDA Multiple/Exsr Multiple, The ratio of enterprise
value 1o EBITDA, where emerprise value 1s the aggregate
value of equity and debt mimss cash and cash equavalents.
The EBITDA muluple reflects the value of a company in
terms of its full-yvear EBITDA, whereas the exit muliiple
reflects the value of a company in erms of its full-year
expected EBITDA st exit  Either multiple allows
comparison  between companies from  an operational
perspective a3 the effect of capital structure, taxation and
depreciation’amorizateon 15 exchuded

An  increase  (decrease) 1o the  following  sigmificant
unobservable inputs would generally result ina lower (hagher)
fair value.

» Casle-Snthetic Basis, The measure of the pnice differential
between cash finencial mstruments and their synthetic
derivative-based equivalents The range disclosed in the
previous table sipnifies the number of points by which the
synthetic bond equivalent poce 15 higher than the quoted
price of the underlying cash bonds.

« Funding Spread The cost of borowing defined as the
meremential spread over the OIS rate for a specific
collateral rate (which refers to the rate applicable to o
specific type of securily pledged as collateral).

Loss Giverr Dgfanll, Amount expressed as a percentage of
par that s the expected loss when a credit event ocours.

* Margin Loan Rate. The anmealized rate that reflects the
possibility of losses as a result of movements in the price of
the underlying margin lean collateral. The rate is calibrated
from the discount rate. credit spreads andor volatlity
MICASUNCs.
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= WACC., WACC represents the theoretical rate of retum
required to debt and equity investors. The WACC is used in
a dascounted cash flow model that caloulates the value of
the equity. The model assumes that the cash flow
amsumptions, nehuding projections, are fully reflected in the
current equity value, whale the debt to equity ratio is held
constant

An  ngrease  (decreaze) o the  following  sigmificant
unohservable inputs would generally result in mn impact 1o the
fair value, but the magnitude and direction of the impact
would depend on whether the Firm is long or short the

EXpOsre.

+ Carvelation, A pricing input where the payelT is driven by
more than one underlying risk. Comrelation i a measure of
the relationship between the movement of two varmbles
{1.e., how the change in ane vanable influences a change in
the other vanable).

= Creahit Spread The eredit spread reflects the additional net
vield an imvestor can eam from a secunty with more eredit
nisk relative 1o one with less credit nisk. The credut spread of
a particular secuniy is often quoted in relation to the yield
on a credit risk-free benchmark secunty or reference rate.

+ [nterest Rate Curve. The term structure of inferest rates
(retationship  between  interest rates and the ume to
maturity) and a market’s measure of future interest rates at
the time of observation. An mnterést rate curve is used 1o sl
inerest rate and foreizn exchange derivative cash flows and
15 a pricing mput wsed in the discounting of any OTC
derivative cash flow

Folatility, The measure of vanabiliy in possible returns for
an mstrument given how much that instrument changes in
value over time. Volanlity 1s a pricing inpaut for options,
and, generlly, the lower the volmility, the less risky the
option. The. level of volatiity used in the valuation of a
particular option depends on a number of Factors, nclwhing
the mature of the risk underlying that option, the tenor and
the strike price of the option.

* Volatility Skew. The measure of the difference in implied

volatility for options with identical underliers and expiry
dates but with different strikes.

Net Aswet Value Measuirenients

Fund Interosis
_ AR December 31, 3024 A1 Deoember 31. 2020
Ca Camyan
§ iy oniacy !."2':ﬂ L B TR W"Etn ot
Privams aguity ard othar 3 3633 % 4§ A6RS § i
Raal sxtai 3481 4 2.T65 240
Hadgs a2 2 T4 3
Total §  EME 5 0 5 BA24 § D53

Amaounts in the previous table represent the Firm's carrying
value of gencral and limited partnership interests in fund
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investments, &= well as any related performance-based income
in the form of carmed interest. The camying amounts are
measured based on the NAV of the fund takmg into account
the distributeon terms applicable to the interest held This
same measurement applics whether the fund investments are
accounted For wder the equity method o fair value

Privaie Eguity and Cther.  Amounts include private equity,
private crecit and other funds that pursue multiphe stirategies,
including leveraged buyouts, venture capital, infrastructure
growth capital, distressed investments and mezzaning capital
In additien, the funds may be structured with a focus on
specific peographic regions.

Real Extate. Funds that invest in real estate assets such as
commercitl office busldings, retaill properties, multifamily
ressdential properties, developments or hotels. In addition, the
funds may be structured with a focus on specific peographic
regions.

Investments in Private Equity and Other funds and Real
Estate Funds generally are not redeemable due 1o the closed-
end mature of these funds Instead, distributions from cach
fund will be recerved as the underlying investments of the
funds are dispesed and monetized

Hedge. Funds that pursue vanous mvestment strategies,
including long-short equity, ficed income/credit, event-driven
and multi-strategy. Investments in hedge funds may be
subject to wutial penad lock-up or gate provisions, which
restnict an mvestor from withdrawing from the fund during 2
certan imiial peniod or resinet the redemption amount on any
redemption date, respectively.

See Note 14 for informstion regarding general partver
puarantees, which include potential obhgabions to retum
performance fee distributions previously received. See Note
22 for information regarding widealized casmed interest al pisk
of reversal

Nanmedewmabla Funds by Contractual Maturity

~ Carrying Value ot December 11, 2834

$in i Privirs Exuity ars Othir Rsal Estila

Luss than 5 pears s 1,066 % 2016
FRT p—— 1432 1,334
Dover 10 yaarm 1855 "
Total 5 2651 § 3,461
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Morgan Stanley
MNonrecurring Fair Value AMeasurements

Assets and Liabilities Measured a1t Fair Value on a
Nonmcurring Basis

At December 31, 2024

501 o Lenval 2 Lt 3" Testal
fasats
Loans 5 1,607 § 4518 § 6,125
O sanis==Crher irvesimaens — =l )
Crioeer aianta—ROU aaasn 23 - bl
Tedal § 1,630 § 4._#?‘ i ﬂ
Liakiities
Criver labiides and aconied

. Landirg imaen § 48 3 3§ Ll
Taal 5 48 § 11 5§ B1

Al IDwsseritsar 31, 2000
it levei2  Leid  Total
< -

Lowans -4 4215 % a0 & a7
Cries masais—{nher imvestiments. —_ 4 &
i miaan—ROU aaiat 23 - ]
Total 5 4238 5§ 45% § AT
Liabilities
Criee linbiliien and sscnied
o Lending o i = § 110 § &0 § 170
Total 5 110§ 0§ L]

1. Fer significant Lival 3 baluncen, iter 15 Sigeifian Unstasrvibi inguts Lised in
Risaming anc) Morwecinriong Ll 3 Fair 'Wake Isimpeamenta’ section hersin
detals o the signficanl urcleermabls nputs ed or eorvecuring alr wakun
ST

Gaina {Lulm} frem  Monmecurring  Falr  Walus
Remaasuramants
Fi e ] 223 i
Laans” 3 (B 5 4} S (B3
Criwsr pssnis—{1ther imvestmenis’ (1] (L1 [ALH]
[a 7% BT

& anlen n 8} 18
Crfar misntn—BO asses® 133} 1] {113
Tetal 3 (23} % (4} {564)
Liablition
Criner habidiies and acornied sxpenses

—Langing comeiiments 5 16 5 f [LEER]
Teanl 5 19 § ™ 5 [LENH]

1 (o and risis For Lodes scl Otfs jrissts Ot arensirants ain clirmaiied in
Ot ryearss For oihes e, g s losses. aw recnided i DT revenes
f i ey s ndcd Iow i, oifvmrwise, ey arm rcodcied in. Otfvas

2 Moreeourieg changes in i G vake of loans. nd lending cormaments. which
nchics Sus ampact of 1elated sconorc hadges. e caloalabed as ‘oliows oo the
ek fow rvvesiriant cafegory, based on e valm of Ba snderying colateml and

pricH o micohsls that P kst obaarvabls inpuis whess
possitia. such as compansble loan o debt prices and C06 spraad kel aciusbed
for any basis bty cash nd dervalive Isinemanks, o defal

imapta—Prbmien epEpcent el fofwan genseally
ol PpaRTE B3 el 08 adiE-oMh reliied 0 O deposal of R Bedls
5. Lodsss ralvied &2 Othes Adssis—ROA) sadsls ncluds inpalirmnta nelaed 12 ths
[ P
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s Vs

b mn TR it ez ey e
Financial asssts o
Coak el coals pgevilenis | 105386 §105.36 § = & = F05386
irevmnlrms ol sacialay—
HTM. 14T 1B JaM0 1230 MO
Sataiing punchisad
e RLLET — A1 1,488 TiRES
SacuEies bomrowed 423858 — 4123859 - 5308
Contorrs and cliwe

LT — T 4088 TRAiT
[F.0
Hald o ivvrsirraand TaRAM —  ATAD MOR30T 0N
Held for sale: EFE ] -— B¥4 815 12439
[ Fal] oy g = X
Financiai kabiisisa
Duprarits § MS0E 3 — BTROM 3 — $3TONN
Sacwiles solf undes
Ayl 1

45911 = 48703 - &1
Bidanibien ki A8 =  A5HE - L
Dot papzansd Snancings T804 - 581 - TN
ety el stiad
[ ] 175880 — 175880 - AT EN
Borowings qa54a7 = 188,058 8% 1BE3ET

Paricnd
Ll comimitrants § ITETTA § = § 1584 § B3 § 15910

Al Dacmmber 51, 2004
Eﬂ\l'tﬂ.-

¥ = i cm“ =T I‘.lw.!l.;d I.;\!lﬁ “otnl
Finarzial ety
sk and caal wqeualeoti § s0xe SEng % - % — 3R
R T SETIA A

H™M BREAd HERT 3L 404 i85 S48

prarciuinac

R B EATIATH 12

el 19073 — 1CHH 6N NIOTRY
Shailinn barrsemd 124 61 —  1FEH — 210
o and oiher

FEtaiwidiin T4 337 = T 403 T4 1410
[F
Held for invastment a5 — N5 TR 196416
Haddl Yo sl 15355 - BEs2 BET2 15324
Ot anmpts T Tk - oM
Fingrezial Babilities
Dot § B $ — a3aE § — Eafam
Genas skl unds
o
Fipu Ehivks B1 81 - B1EM —  E1ER
Sy loared A6GaT 58556 15055
Ditheid BaCunad WM 2758 - 2756 - 2TEE
Contormes and oifwr
iyl TGRS - TCAEG o kil
Boimrwings 1ea 832 — Ti008 4 1mMm3
ot
Ao

Lendngeomclemcs 8 MBABL S — % 138§ TS 207

1 Al ke Ko e o U sk o0 ) fentecuiing bl
2 Rapressnis Landny oorimimsnts soooiniied 'or as Held for ‘meesimend and Hasld
fo Bl [For & furthad disoumsion O bndng comeemiends. s Mols 12

The previous tables exclude oll non-financial assets and
liahilities, such as Goodwill and Intangible assets, and certain
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Morgan Stanley

financeal instruments, such as equity method investments and
certain receivables

5, Fair Value Option

The Firm has elecied the fair valwe opuion for certain eligible
nstruments that are nsk managed on a fair vahie basis to
mitigate ncome statement volatility caused by measurement
basis differences between the clected instruments and their
associsled risk management transactions of to elminae
complexities of applying cenaim accounting models.

Borrowings Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

At Al

$in milicns I diar 31, 224 D el 31, 2023
Busbnass Unit Resporsible for Risk Mansg n

Ematy 8 49,144 5 L6073
Inisrest mins 34,454 1 oEs
Commadiies 14,829 12, a8
Cirwcit 3304 2ADD
Frmgr xshargs 16802 1574
Total £ 183,332 § pERL]

Met Revenues from Liabilities under the Fair Valwe Option

Teacing  Interes! Hiat
Fnr Ravenvis Expurse Revenims
nze N h
Bawrewangs 5 (118§ &3 § {1,767
Depoidis {134 EH (3761
v

Wﬂl {7,991} =3 {8,404]
Barrowings 12,370 33 12,077

A At Ao el ol ey (A o losis Sy ke aOonomes hedges

Gains (lesses) from changes in fair value are recosded in
Trading revenues and are mamnly attnibutable & movements in
the reference price or index;, interest rates or foreign exchange
rafcs,

Gains {Losses) Dua to Changes in Instrumant-Specific Credit
Rizk

A vy ﬂ:r:mumu [#.9]

Fao L

Loans ard cchar receivabies’ % 3 i
Langieg comminsies f&y) o
Dapasis - (3%
Bormowings (271 663
A

Loans are o rechivabins' 5 [RF= 1 -
Lisndirg comminsns 14 -
Craprpsics - [
Bormowings {18} (1.726)
2022

Loans ard céher recelvakias' 5 1o § -
LBnairg comminsans (R F1] -
Depasts - (24
Bomowings —_ 2 00k

104
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i 5 Fair Values of Derivative Contracts
£ b il Diecembar 34, 2024 December 31 330
Curmulative pes-oax DA gain {loss) ___ Aszats ot Decambor 31, 2024
mecognize in ADCH 8 2,068 § i2.168) S a-g;?l Closrnd Eﬁ;z- i
|mmnmmmm1utmmmq Dualgnsted au ting hudg
machuchng i non-cimdl corponmnts of gans and lsses A g i3 —3 oy i
Differance batwean Contractual Principal and Fair Value' Forsgn wetne L —
_}:\'.I _____ 183 12 —_ 31
i A [TEE—— ting hedg
£ mons Dacamber 31, P34 Daosebes 11, 2025 = p Nadiod o8 Kisint
Lowns and ciber recsivablag % 10207 5 11 ok Ernll £ - C 21
Honacomal koars” .79 R O thar dahaiies
Bormouings’ L) il ininms! min TABABD 43,483 145 128,800
¥ fergunds bradicate cordrmciusl priecipal greter thans oo {less than ] tee eplis e £™1 4,411 - §122
S :wﬂiﬂ:ﬁm:ﬂmﬂ%mlw"u mi:’nrhm Eormigr axekarga L6 430 a5 108415
a ME?WMMWFHWWMH% E-::l:lnﬂﬂ d oh ?:‘:: = I:ﬂ ::::::
and o —_
basmd on chuangss in & IeSTEN0A prica oF ndEs = pprey G BT
The previous tehles exclude non-recourse  debt  from Total gross detvathves S2CREEY R2Z05 3 SR 5338.2M
consolidated VIEs, liabilities related to transfers of financial Amouris oifest
mssels  treamted as  collveralized firancings, pledged — SRmiemenyretig (HBOES] (D2TH) @118 2B
commadities and other liabilities that have specified assels = o comvemiraiig Lk L — {40y
attributable to them. SRRt N Rt $aamny 3L daiyw sened
Amaurits net offiet’
Fair Value Loans an Nonscerual Status Financlel newumerts collaionsl (17800 — = [i7.83T)
st amounts § 1BAG6 5 B % 2315 & 20132
1 AL Mt aimserianis for witch master resang o collatenal agmaimenis i
£ mAom Diwcembar 31, 2024 Dacembar 31, 323 ool i place o gy ol be legaly sn'troasble § 3354
Honacerual bara s o7 5 ado Liabiltios 1 Decamber 31, Jd4
Tt s 3 LR U O R e
Ell]i'nhﬁnmnunlnuhldqu o o
6. Derivative  Instruments and  Hedging Intarest min 3 5 — % — % 89
Activities Forir: bchidngs 3= = 2
Tral 536 - - 536
The Firm trades and makes markets globally in listed futures, :"”“‘““'“"“::ﬂ’r‘“""““
OTC swaps, forwards, oplions and other  denvatives i : e s _ i
rcﬂ:rcncmg,. among other things, interest rates, L‘I'.ILLTLI.(‘H.. e
Wﬂﬂﬂ'm& ||'|'I:'¢'ﬂl|lﬂ'.lt Brﬁdﬁ and nm-mmm E,I"ﬂlfl'.“ Ininrasl mis 104495 13,038 124 1AT.66T
corperate ¢redits, loans, bomds, ULS and other sovereign Crecit 341 2880 - 8BM
segurities, emerging markel bonds and loans, credit indices, Faimign suchange 100730 4,085 151 104,988
ABS indices, property mdices, morigage-related and other Ernity 43357 —  E3M42 §SAT4
ABS, snd real estate loan products. The Firm uses these Commadity and o 14,584 — 1578 13809
instruments for market-moking, managing foreign curmency et LIS MM 55358 41034
and credit exposure, and assetTability munagement. Totnl gross dehatives $264ET1 ST & 55338 §344,770
Amourts offsat
The Firm manages its market-making positions by employing CoUnparTy PRt (IBB,070) (20,2760  (51,968) [259,514)
a variety of risk mitigation strategies. These strategies include Cank collateral ruiting __W3AZ6) (1,200} = (43,328
diversification of risk exposwres and hedging. Hedging Total in Traing Sabiiites $ 33478 § n 8 423 § 37830
sctivities consst of the purchase or sale of positions in related Amouris net offset’
securities and financial instruments, including a variety of Finianciel i colxiul e — @A) (5604
Wit amounts $ 27037 % 235 & 1472 § 28,004

dervative products (eg, fures, forwards, swaps and
opions), The Firm manages the market risk associated with
it market-making activities on o Firmwide basis, on o
worldwide trading division level and on an individual product
basis.

105

Mt amounis for which master nesing or collaieral apesmants are
s oomabla

ot i plascas or masy e B bagaly § 43+
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Aty ol Decsmber 31, 2E

Somiw __m_m_e‘#H'_f.,...__
Desigrated as aooounting hedges. - o

Ininas: min 5 - - 5
Fotslion dchangs ] 5 = L}

- el s T == =

Hok dasl as b -" '.

Ecomomic hedges of lnams

Tt 2 7 - 0
Cirev darivatives

Intamst min 127414 1wl and  paB RS
Creit 6012 006 = IGB08
Fomsigh aschanga BOES4 2,670 15 03240
Ecnity 20350 - ITII BAOTH
Commosity and ather 13528 - 2383 1820
Total SEAOE 27807 40080 341G
Totnl gross Serbatives SIA07E X7 412 § 40580 S3ME.40
Amaunts ofust
Countsmarty nelling OBLSET) (20851 (MBS0 (240004
Lushoobiwaloateg (AR @I0)  _  (i2.00)
Todal in Trading assets $ M2 S MM % 24m0 § AT0ND
Amounts net oM’

Finmnial msrumens. colanl {15 B0} - — {66003
Nt amourts 5 18342 § A3 S 2450 5 DAY
Wat amournss for which masier resing or col aiemi BT A

ot I ez of My Poovl B lagaky enderoeable g Jadi

Linbidies ot Ducemnbear 31, 30E3

o O T Famd tew
o I- ‘_d- L L d--

Intmrest min 5 4575 —§ — 5 487
Fomsign axzhangn did &3 _ 57
Teval &A1 43 - 24

et < 42 ML L

linldulgm : l;lilllﬁﬂﬂmﬁﬂh‘l-ﬂ.ﬂil:”
Ecoromic badges of loans

Crasit 43 o - 145
itfbar darivatived

Intems! min 120AN 1R 560 FIAATY
Creil aE0 AT - N34T
Fomsign mschangs BT 04 ZEDd 108 AHM
Exury 31840 - TS BAAN
Coammodty and oher 12,237 —_ 2830 i50a7
Tesal ZHTALY 26,002 408TE R0
Tedal groas derkatives SILEIM SIAME £ J0A7E §I24054

Amounts ofsel
Counimary nalling (184 553 (JR.851)  (3ASI0) (246.014)
Cash eollateral nattieg 1 OEZy  PRa) — {4065}
Total in Tracing RabBles  § %2659 § 311§ 2088 § dndis

oo RS ] o
$ h835 § N3 5 208 8

Wil amaoures fior which master neing of colmiem| agreamisnts dm
_ matin place of may £l B legally enorosable t

1. Arnoals relvis 10 Poshel meing sresrents and collsierl 309RRmenis Tl e
baen delenrained by the Fim 15 be lsgally sriomsabis in the meend of defsull bt
whers cetain oifsr refting crilmls ww nof mef I accondancs adh applcable
offsaming AcCounling el

See Note 4 for informanion related to the unsettled fair value
of [utures contracts not designated as accounting hedges,
which are excluded from the previous tables,
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Morgan Stanley

Notionals of Derivative Contracls
Bimsml Clams Exchargs.
5oy pimons T oTC Trag Texal
Desil d & ting hodg
Inlerms! e - — % 184 § e 168
Forsigr: suchangs 14 4 - 18
Totel 14 112 _ 126
W Oesreedoe seeong et
Evoamic hidged of foams
= - — - — —
Oivav denvatives
Ininrst min LT 4T 482 #5232
Corwesit 208 143 - as7
Eorsigr axchangs AL 1" 8 7
Ernity B84 - Gog 1,200
Commaody and oher 137 = 7 214
el TGS 468 1437 13,150
Total gross derkratives § 7330 54799 3 1137 § 1336
Lisbilities at Decambar 31, 2024
Bimaml Clanes Exct
i oy O oTc Tiad Todal
Dualgnated as Bing hedg
Inlnradl mis 5 24 1938 — % 18
Foreigr sxchangs 1 —_— —_ 4
Tl E 193 - 196
o ‘__“ _.|_:...: .
5, e hpcges of loams
Cresit H i) — 2
Otfvar derivatives
Intsmstmis 1,524 4,483 417 8,511
Creesit 2an 113 - ]
Forsigr sachargs 3raa L] 18 2858
Ernity o4 - Bh 1,580
Gommadiy and other 10 - Ba 183
] TATE 4,789 1360 13004
Total grose deivatives § TATE 5 4992 § 1,350 5 13830
Avsais &1 Decambar 31, 2023
TBimeml  Clared Excharges
Fiy b QTG oTc Traced Todal
Deslgnted as Sing hadg
Intsnes! i $§ =5 3 - % @2
Foraigr suchangs 1 1 - 2
4

Tl ] 53 -

Ecaramie bedged of leans

e - ] - 1
Ditvevr denivatives

Inimrmst mitn 4153 837 560 13070
Crasit e - 00
Forsigr sxchargs Ta78 165 T ]
Eouty pan -- aan o8
Commadity and ofer 142 - [} =T
Tl BAG 868D 1072 18,86
Total gecie didbealbvai £ BAIR S A M2 § 1072 § 1683280
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Liskalizied ot Dacamber 112023

Bdateral Clmarsd Exchargs-
$ i b D"[I: L‘.I"I'E- Trln-d_'_l'nh_l__
Deslgrated as acoounting hedges o
Inimras: min & 3% A % - 185
le-w !Fhlpql L8 3 — 17
— e - — = =
Hok dasl as b -l' '.
Ecomamic hedges of lnans
Cresit F F-4 - o
Cufrer devivatives
Inisms! e 4830 887 4 13
Coraecit il 165 - Bl
Fomigh exchanga 2408 1E? 33 1808
Ecnity s == iz 1200
Fﬂ'ﬁﬂ‘&l and ofher iﬂ'l | Th 180
Tacal GOHA A L2 1hsEs
Total greds dedivatives i 63 SAavy 5§ 12 £ 1008

The nottoral smounts of derivative contracts generally
overstate the Firm's exposure In mosl circumstiances,
notional amounts are used only as a reference pomt from
which to caleulate amounts owed between the parties to the
contract Furthermore, notional amounts do not reflect the
benelnt of legally enforceable metting asmangements or nsk
miligating tansaclions.

Gains [Losses) on Accounting Hodges

Sroewow WM R R

Falr vahus hedges—Recognized in k in

IniBnes! fAls CorTROS £ X305 (BTE S 150m
Investmen) Becurises—AFS st B 1.838)

Fair vElus hadgas-—=F
Intmmest min corracs

gnized in Intarest

e

8 @S 3ES S{NE1EE

Dapasits (7% 18 14
Wﬂ# 223 JREAL,  (AD4Z
Mot humhadn-—l‘w'hn axcharge m
Rucsgrized in OCI £ 1084 5 (18§ BAr
Forward poirs axchioed from hacgs
wmmlﬂ ;ﬂm—ﬁmﬂ n
H4 i {33y
Cash flow hidg mute eorimets’
Reosgrized in OCI § He s 85 )
Lazs: Reakned gains {osses]) {pe-m
s ned Tt AC0TA o5 imRras] i oo (Tl 118 —
Hat o i cash Tiow Facgns itchoes
within ACE| 1) F) [LH

¥ Fior the year saded 2004, Then wans no orscased s e Tl telsd Io Do
Ths el orasas ] aasccaved with canly fow hadges mapeoied 1o by peciaaitsd
frem | within 12 months as of December 11, T34 s approsimatsly 511 milion
Tha reaskuss langth of Bme gvs which fomcasted canh Sows ae hedged b 28
mondhis
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Fair Value Hedges—Hedged Homs
A i
Decamber 31, Decsmber1,
§ iy o Fird] parrs]
Irwesimant sezuftos— AFS
hds-:i ik L] 800 5 ATNTH
Banix adurneents irchaded in smodized oo § (7as) 5 {732
Depensits.

bedged AT % 28,504 § LR

Basks AdRaTeents irclutet in CaTyieg
oL

wmceri $ 5 )
g ey .
Camying smoun! aurmendly or previcusty

L 5 1718 5 158,650
Basls ket in

sl oo s s omosrns 2
Berais acj rokasad in i ool

—Tarmerated hadges 5 (en) £ 1B 1)

1. Carying amcunt rigassents e srcrined codl. ne of alirwanca if sppiicabis A8
Cacarmbar 11, X1, the srodiesd cost of the portiolo layer mefhod ciosad
posticos was 530 maion, of which $178 miion was desigraisd ws hedged. The
cusmulivin arunt &f baske adprstrents was S0 millen i of Oacaribar 31, 20
Flavter b bote 3 ancd Mot T for additional inforration

2 bscge accounting hanis aduirents am primanily related o ouistanciing hidges

Gaina (Losses) on Economic Hedges of Loans

1 vy itk Furad ks
Recognized in Othes revenues
Grecit cormos’ frat] floreal f1.-a8

1 Arcunis relaiec) & hedges of crrtain held i dvmsbmsnt s Held for sals loans

Derivatives with Credit Risk-Relted Contingencics

Hat Derivative Liabilities and Collateral Posted

At Al
Dacambar 31, Dacendsr 31,
Snmmons 2024 Fliral
Het darivaivn Rakdins wih oot msk:
emlaned conlirgent faaiunes 8 22414 5 21847
Collataral postes 16,2562 15,285

The previous table presents the apgrepate fair value of certain
derivative contracis that contain credit risk-related contingent
features that are in a nel habahy posiion for which the Firm
has posted collateral m the normal course of business.

Incramantal Collateral and Termination Paymants upon
Potantial Future Ratings

Al
December 31,
§ 4y matinns 2024
Cera-nolch domnGrade £ 23
w h Grengrade 411
mll. 1 g in the ansunis
oy ) 5 st
1. Amcart the Firey and othes partiss wharns upon

Him crengrace of cre gy, B doangraded pay mat delves collatmd 1 the
MF:LM: m-mnmmmme
n w W

The additional collateral or termination payments that may be
called in the event of a future credit rating downgrade vary by
contrsct and can be based on ratings by Moody's Investors
Service, Inc, S&P Global Ratings and'or other rating
agencies. The previous table shows the future potential
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collateral amounts and termination payments that could be Pratection Purchased with COS
mJIud_or_mr.luirgd by counterparties or exchange and clearing Hoikrat
organizations in the event of one-molch or  two-notch Ty T
:;:ﬂamdf t:;cgr::m based on the relevam contractual ks Gecambge3n, | Dasarivey 51,

U Sirgla name k] 186 2 166
Maximum  Potential Payoutiotional of Credit Protection b O Lo =

Teaal 5 7T 5 A5
Wears to Maturity at Becember 31, 2024
5 i o <1 19 34 Overs  Toll F':'“m“'h:m
Single-nnms COS Ducember 39,  Daecamber 300
Invetmsn) griade 5 15 % ¥ 5 AT s i § 93 finmmom L
Hon-invesimant grde [ 1 Sheglanmna L 12092 5 (2.790)
Tetal § 225 47 3% s 5 41 8 121 Indied anct baaket {654y (1 .208)
Ingex and basket COS S o S T adowt §pes) (1012
Invaatmmen! Grade § 3% 12§ WE —§ Joanl 3 {4,308 § (5.016]
Hon-mvesimien grade 11 a3z 154 16 anT
Teval $ 4% M % 145 15 % 3 The Fum enters into credit denvabives, prmcipally CDS,
Total COS sald 4 33 B 1._:11 § 3T % 364 under which it recerves or provides protection agni.ml the rek
P croct o yacs - - - 2 1 of default on a =2t of debt obligations ssued by o specified
Joalcredhtprotectionscdd 5 38 5 81 3 321 3 30 5 388 reference  entity o entities,. A majonty of the Fiom's
Co5p 3ok with i J it purchased 5 counterparties for these derivatives are banks, broker-dealers,
Vs i M ey ol Decenber 31, 2023 and insurence and other financial mstitutions

£ b S < 1.3 b Owmrh Tolal
Single-nams COG. The fair value amounts as shown in the previous tables are
Invasimen grade 2 0% 23 w3 v o prior 1o cash collsteral or counterparty netting.
Hon-nvesiment gmde 7 14 17 1 an
e T HE BE BE 1E i The purchass of credit protection does not represent the sole
Indsx ard basket COS manner m which the Firm risk manages iis exposure to eredit
Investmen grade 3 04§ 19§ 85§ 45 18 derivatives. The Firm manages s exposuwre to these
Mon-mvesiment grade A dervative comtracts through a vanety of nsk mmgation
Total $ 16 % 3§ 05 N5 sk srategies, which include managing the credit and comelation
Yol G048 sold $ 42§ 765 s 5 32 8 388 risk across single-mame, non-tranched indices and baskets,

Total creditpiatactionacdd 2 42 2 r6 3 3k & 06 5 A0

Fair Valun Asset (Liability} of Cradit Protection Sobd"

AL A&
December 39, Decsmbar 11,

£ v i 2024 o]
Bingle-nams COS
Invasimasn grade 5 1,800 5 1.5004
Hon-dresamen grade ks Iebeh
Indsx and baskst COS
Invesimeni grads 5 T 5 1,025
W -irvs imisn] grade L 4
Joul s tams  1em
Total COS sold % ATE 3 Lr i
Lebor crecit conrnets i oL
Todnl credit proteoton sold 3 1896 5 4501
] " ] walowmnd gracks i basad on B inleenal

conlt rading o B ptance irabeeial crachit pplingm saren gy the CRM

ogation
g o cracil sk Sncl P Basis o @ corgarabenaien Shelt BT ek
sl 13 control comt fak. The Mem uses quantitatvs modely and judgment
antiriite His varicus ik pancerse mlated 1 iash chiigen
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tranched indices and baskets. and cash posttions. Aggrepate
market risk imits have been established for credit derivatives,
and market risk measures are routinely monitored against
these hmits. The Firm may also recover amounts on the
underlying reference oblation delivered 1o the Firm under
CI08 where credit profection was sold.

Single-Name CDE A CDS protects the buyer against the boss
of principal on 2 bond or loan in case of a default by the
issuer. The protection buyer pays a periodic premmum
{penerally quarterly) over the life of the contract and s
protected for the period. The Firm, m tum, performs under 2
CDS if o eredit event as defined under the contract occurs,
Typical credit events inchide bankruptey, dissolution of
inselvency of the referenced entity, fmlure to pay and
restructuring of the obligations of the referenced entity

Index and Baxket CDS. Index and basket CDS are products
where credin protection 15 provided on a porfolio of single-
name CDS. Generally, in the event of a default on one of the
underlving names, the Firm pavs a pro mia portion of the total
notional amount of the CDS.

The Firm alse enters into tranched mdex and basket CDE
where credit protection is provided on a particular portion of
the porifolio less distribution. The most junior tranches cover
initeal defaults, and once losses exceed the notional of the
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tranche, they are passed on to the next most sentor franche in
the capatal siruciure.

Other Credil Comracts The Firm has mvested in CLNs and
C[M¥, which are hybrd instruments containing embedded
derwvatives, m which credit protection has been sold 1o the
issuer of the note. I there 5 a credit event of a reference
entity underlying the instrument, the principal balance of the
note may not be repaid m full to the Firm.

7. Investment Securities

AFS and HTM Securities
At December 31, 2024
Amonises  Leresirsd  Uniesabzed  Far
£ in miicom Cait Chaifi L. Wilia
AFS ascurtes
ULE. Treasury eecuriies % TO1E0 § B2 8§ 388 GIEM
US. agency sacurtses’ 24,113 & FA - R
Agbrcy CAES 5,704 - 388 538
Emmw g 1373 " 4 1,367
FFELP iucent lasn ARS" 612 1 ] (2]
“mlw 2 z - -
Tenal ARE securites 104, b0 [T YT T
HTM securities
U Trasswry securths 18,805 = 1082 18800
US sgmncy sacuriies” 41,582 4 8597 32,984
Aperoy CMES 1,154 — 88 1088
Hon-agercy CMBS 1,450 3 13 1Me
Tosal HTW securties B1,671 T BATS 81,009
Total Investmant securities § 163,001 § 95 & 13,316 148811

A Deomber 31, 200

G Groms
Amartired Unmalzed  Urredized  Fair

& iy i ﬂarl_t‘ _Gl.r:l Lossas  Value

WS, Tregiory shouniies - 5 sB484 3 o 1,003 Shrdin

UE. spency securfins’ 5853 & - T

Aoy CMBS san - sl bl

’*m{“‘ sl 1,032 46 5 11m

FFELP stusden knar ABS L] - L fu]
Tonal ARS sacuriies 2048 M 4110 88113
HTM ascuritles '

UE, Traaury seeurting 332 - 1285 2198

UE. agenoy sacurtes FL.EnT H TEGD 33108

Agerry CREBS 1557 - iFal 1218

Hon-agency CMBS 1.2341 2 ] 1,105
Tival HTM sacuriies & Aol 2 0243 mrdsd

Total investment securkles § 158243 § 76 5 13353 5145566

¥ FAergounts e vt o ey ACL

2 IMS ageecy securfties consil Pamnly of Meecy Momgage paes-teough pool
it G0 and agmersy- aund deb

A Lncharhyieg ksann aem Ducked by & guirantes, ulicsitsly rem T 15, Depanrsm
of Educsticn, of o sl B5% of the prncipal Dakeios wnc indised oiAssnding

4 RAnpreststs e ot o sl birysr Pwaithed Baviis
rblaind A2 AFS shcoritid hacged i B Sldeed portfols Porisks s msthod b
sty e neol alocated fo indbvichisl securies Fefar o Mole 2 sad Mols & or
ol Eiormation

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
Morgan Stanley
Irvestment Sacurities in an Unrealized Loss Position
At Dacamber 31, a1 Dacembar 38,
E . wa
Ganas. Goas
Falr  Unreabeed Ear  Unrealized
Si s Vil Lossea  Veke  Losks

WS, Treasury secundes

Liics than i3 mawtthe 51818 5 G5 § 14298 £ 2

12 menths or lorger 1980 323 I3458 1,081
Txtal AT ET 388 47 T5E i, 103
ULE. agercy sscusiies

Less Fardd months TES 11 4197 a3

12 manthe o lorger 18,958 20681 12450 485
Tl 19,761 2662  E2es 2628
Agercy CWIS

12 masntha o lorgee Lrat] L1 HaA16 455
Tl 5018 388 405 455
Eiaie anc munkckpal secundes )

Lecis rand2 monihs 4z 2 E24 a

12 manths o loegar =] ) 3 2
Teerad T & ] ]
FEELP saent loan ABS i

Lasa mardd months = — (3 1

12 months of loeger Fre o B8 W
Tatal ddd il & L)
Tolal AFS securiies in an wnrealized loss posislion

Lass than 12 mamhs 19,145 T 1A =]

12 months or langer 44,147 3,363 &7EE3 4,041
ol $ 345 §  dadi 3 rrdss § 4l

For AFS securities, the Firm believes there are no secunities in
an unreahized loss position that have credit hosses after
performing the analysis desenibed n Mote 2. Addinonally, the
Firm does not intend 1o sell these securities and is not likely 1o
be required to sell these secusities prior 1o recovery of the
amaortized cost basis. As of December 31, 2024 and December
31, 2023, the securities in an unrealized loss posiion are
predominantly investment grade.

The HTA securities net camrying amounts at December 31,
2024 and December 31, 2023 reflect an ACL of 352 million
and 344 million, respectively, predominantly related 1o Non-
agency CMBS, See MNote 2 for a descriiption of the ACL
methodology used for HTM Securitics

As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, 98% of
the Firm's portfolio of HTM secuniies were investment grade
1.5, apency securities, U5, Treasury securities and Agency
CMES, which were on accrual status and for which there is an
underlying assumption of zero credit logses. MNon-investrent
grade HTM securies primarily consisted of certain Mon-
apency CMBS securities, for which the expected credit losses
were msignificant and were predominantly on sccrual siates
at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023,

See Note 15 for sddtional information on secunties 1ssued by
VIEs, including 1.5, agency morigage-backed secunties, non-
agency CMBS, and FFELP student loan ABS

Diecember 2024 Farm 10-K
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Invesiment Securities by Contractual Maturity At Becembar 31, 2034

Arryakead
At Decembar 31, 2024 Fair
. L, RS smmee i R

£ mpcs ot Vs Ve HTM gcurities

AFS sacurites LIS, Treasedy Secusiias;

L5, Traasury seousties: Dug withic | ymar $ 4B § 4558 12%
D withic: § yaat % 18,575 § 15333 23% Aftar 1 yoar ihough b years: 10,494 ERrrd 23%
Afier 1 year fwough b years A, 520 i35 L% Aftne 5 yoars reough 10 yean 503 414 1%
Al 5 years troush 10 yoars 5,050 BB FEL™ ATtor Al yoars 1,856 1654 3%

Toml o Toi8n  eham Toul 10,885 45803

U5, agehey tacuing: LS, ngency securiies:

Drim within 8 year 11 11 1.0 % Afhir 1 i thioigh 5 e 8 3 18%
Al | yoar Bough 5 years 54 21 16% Aftr & yuars Frouph 10 years 223 HE 21 %
Afur b ysars Frough 10 years 414 250 15% Aler 11} yoars 41,354 32778 21%
Actinr 10 years Ve R ) 1% . _ALEeE 3R

Teeal 24,111 1,487 Apency CHEBS

Agney CHBE Cum withic: § ymar 298 - ] 18 %
Afer | year Sunugh b years 4,054 3,299 20% Alinr 1 yaar through 5 years 63z Ll 12%
Afier b ysars rough 10 years BAT =15 1.6 % Altar & years Frough 10 yean ira 144 18%
Afes 10 yean 1,103 FTe3 15% After 10 ywars 62 43 13 %

Tecal 5,704 5318 L 1184 1 b6

Biae ared muricpal secutieg: Hon-agarcy CWBS:

Dun withie: § ysar Fer) e Ty D withies 1 ymar 146 124 15 %
Afiar 1 yoar Tuough 5 peirs 215 4 AT After 1 yoar though & yean: L1 €18 5%
Afmr b yaars eough 10 years &9 48 BEW Alier 5 yoars Prough 10 yean. &55 403 DY
Alni 10 pmars 257 i A Aftar 3 yoars 204 184 A%

Toval 1,373 1,347 Tanad 1,450 1,40

FFELF wiusent lnan ABS: Teial HTW sacucting 81,071 51,208 2%
Cuin withie: § yaar 12 41 53% Tetal Investmant sacuritian $ 163001 § 41 28 %
Al | yoar Facugh 5 yaar 113 110 [Ty 0 et sl o AL
Afer b years Frough 10 yeams 24 n 54 % o Mumqqmnmmn-m,uﬂ waighisd barsed on
Adar i yaars e e B the amorioed cosd of sach sscly The afective yiell & sbown practas and

tha e%ect of eelaied hedgang desatiees

Teodal B2 [0 3. M Decsmbar 11, 7024 the sreabzed sverage peld nckicing the adenssl rais
iooanes basls acksman T wvep aconal of relited haciges, was T for AR setiaiey conackaaly maheng

o = b, r L] rd = witun 1 e ancl 3% for ol AFS secaritien

Tietal AFS sacuries 101,960 38,648 LI% & Rspresents e amounk of unaliccated portiola lays bavsis acumtrisnts

= muusmwunuw wwwm
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i e il Flarier 1 Bdotn 3l Bistn B &
el n'mrraten
Gross Realzed Gains {Losses) on Sales of AFS Securities
£y opiiacns 24 foera] 0
Gnas realirnd gars 5 w2 % m s L[
Genms alired (lowsas) — 21} {5}
Total' 5 52 % 45 § 1]

1. Amalleed gons and bsses am mecogalzed i Other reversss i Be income
AM Ak

B, Collateralized Transactions

The Furm enters into securities purchased under agreements to
regell, secumities sodd under agresments 1o repurchase,
securilies hosrowed and securities Joaned transactions to,
among other things, acquire securities 1o cover short posilions
and settle other secunities obligations, to sccommodate
customers” needs and to finance its inventory positions.

The Firm monitors the fair value of the underlying securities
as compared with the related receivable or payable, including
accrued interest, and, as necessary, requests additional
collateral, as provided under the applicable agreement to
ensure such transactions are adequately collaterahzed, or
returns exeess oollateral.

(1]
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The risk related to & decline in the market value of collateral
pledged or received s managed by setting appropriate markel-
based margm requirements. Increases in collateral mangin
calls on secured financing due te market value declines may
ke mitigated by increases in collateral margin calls on
seurties purchased under agreements to resel] and securities
borrowed  tansactions  with  similar  quality  collateral
Addmonally, the Firm may request lower quality colbateral
pledeed be replzeed with higher quality collateral through
collateral substitution rghts in the underlying agreements

The Firm actively manages its secured financings in a manner
that reduces the potential refinancing nsk of secured
financings of less liquid assets and also considers the quality
of collateral when negotisting collateral eligibility with
counterparties, The Fim  wlilizes shorter term  secured
financing for ghly Bguid assets and hos established longer
tenor limats for less hiquid assets, for which funding may be at
risk i the event of a market disnuplion

Offsetting of Certain Collateralized Transactions
i Bacamber 31, 2024

Balencs  Amounis
Groas  Amensie  Shest Nal N Mat
Ofsat Cifzat’

F 4 ity dounis Amounis Admeaanis.

Annnby
Epcunihes purchases

5 rasal’ SA0RES SIHLOTHVS 1IBSES MUIGISTI S 2408

Byt borrovwnd AESE4Z (41, TRY]  qzaBER  [19T.573) 8,286
Liskitlon

ﬂllhl“l'irl-k‘lﬂml-ﬂtﬂ

repurchais SN SEANTH F SO06T B (45,5205 § 4547

Sﬂ.mlnhumd 57 03 ur.ru] "I!.ZDE

Nﬂlmfﬂmm“ﬂﬂﬁﬂ nmmnuhpﬁu«m
it be lagally srifoecnabis

Bazuitionn punchatss crder grsanmeia o rnal § 2,084
Becurithes bomovwed 2,079
SaeCurithes 2000 LNCAr AGTRETHTCS 10 MepUIChass 3,848
Sairitiod laened -

[‘II\,!'I:'I! 18

2 Decnmber 11, 2020

Balenoy  Amounts
Amouris  Sheel Nat Hot | Hei
AR

# iy i Amounts  Offset  Amouns " " ]
Securilisd urchass

Lrdar By

= resall S0 T S(109502) % 110,740 108803 1047
Becuritien borrowed 142453 (21362 121001 (180600 S22
Liabdlties

Seeiaitined okt Lrcer

ARSI

FERAICh S Sasz 1 S[1BS60F) § G268 § (BROGT) § 4204
Emcuimthes bnsned IE41D {21,363} 15,057 1 15.,048) 11

Mot amaunts for which master natt resmarts sre not in place or
nod be legally arforcea bls -~ el -

Egcuriliss purchassd yrder soresments (o ressl £ LI
Sacunithe bommwad B
Sacyritih 20k) LN AgmRTECT 10 MpUchabe 1014
Sacurithes lasned 2

| Amounds relals 1o masler efiing sgresmients hat hoes Basn defarmensd By the
Firrm 1 bow gy nrvicrndibiss in e mvisnt ! et bt wharn Sartan ctfer sriteria
am nel et in actordincs. walh apphcable Satting acciunting gudancs
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Morgan Stanley

For information related to offsetting of denvatives, see MNote
&

Groas Secured Financing Balances by
Caonfractual Maturity

R Emaini ng

_At Decambar 31, 2024

Cvermigh: Less fan 3000 Crver D0
AncOpen 30Deys Dayy  Days  Towl

& oy e
S 50k Lraer
Wiﬂﬂ.ﬂ
raprurchais 180,793 $904.881 E25,071 $30,7IF S8137
] 42473 - M7 14,8 57,009
Tooal inchuded in the
ofsating dhckaurs SRR 300 S904.554 5I53BE 544541 3308.148
Traing bablss—
Dibgatian o e
ARl ey
s colaienal _ ABpET = AT
Total $241,303 5904551 S25.80 584,041 416,211
Al Dmosmibae 51, 0TS

Crvernighs Lese thar 3000 Qe 0
ELL and Opan_30Dmys Days _ Dap Toi_
Sty nokd urder
EprRRTa S
rapurchass 5 BDATS SUN4828 525510 531,441 5252153
SacL et |narad 21 508 1345 4 12857 WA
Tl irchuded in the
ofsatiing disclosure S101884 SUNEITI 526219 544208 S2EAeTR
Trasing lahicas—
Dbligation 15 ftuie
AT TSR A
coliatmral 13 AER - - = 13Ad
Total 116412 SUIEITT S26.210 44000 $3Q. 100

Groas Secured Financing Balances by Class of Collateral
Pledged

AL Al

Decembar 31,  December 31,
A vy e 2024 2028
Securities sodd under agresments o repurchase
LLE. Treamury and agency secuides ] ATTAGL & ahaTy
(riee sovaiminh Sovarrener oblisatinng 135,506 122,342
Crovpoanis souities 14,553 18,744
Ote _ team
Total 3 3‘1 137 I o]
Securities leaned
O soivanigh gonsremes! ohizations ] 1,805 § 135
Compernle elusing o 14 b AR
Ot R EO6
o 3 wom s A
Tordd rchuded in the ofuecing disdoses  § IBB148 § ZBASTZ
Trading liabiites—Oblig 18 return aini Iyad as o
Corprenie epading 3 18050 § 13502
Crfar B 6
Tl 5 18067 5§ 13sea
Teaal 3 MEMI 5 waa

Carrying Value of Assels Loaned of Pledged without
Countarparty Right to Sall or Repledge

At A1
Decembar 31, December 31,
557 o 2024 203
Trasify assels § 326? -3 Ar i

The Firm pledges certain of s trading assets to collaterafize
secunties sobd under agreements to repurchase, securities

Diecember 2024 Farm 10-K
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Ioaned, other secured finencimgs and dermvatives and 1o cover
customer shon sales

Pledged financaal instruments that can be sold or repledged by
the secured party are identified as Trading assets {pledged to
vanous parties) in the balance sheet Pledged financial
instruments that cannot be sold or repledged by the secured
party are incleded within Trading Assets, but not wdentified as
pledeed assets parenthetically 1n the balance sheet

Fair Valus of Collateral Received with Right to Sell or
Rapledga

AR Al
December 31, December i1,
Collamml received wit right to sl or repladge § XM 5 135,830
Collateml that was 5ok oF repledg ; T24.977 553,385

§. Does nob ivciids secaiess imad 0 mies fedend regulations dor the Fmvs LS.
bk daalers

The Firm receives collueral i the form of secunlies in
connestion with secunties purchased under agreements 1o
resell,  secunties borrowed, secunibies-for-securitics
transactions, denvative fransactions, customer margin loans
and secunities-based bending. In many cases, the Firm is
permitied to sell or repledge this collateral 1o secure securinies
sold under agreements to repurchase, 1o enler Mo securtics
lending and  derivative  transactions or to deliver 1o
counterparties fo cover shom positions,

Securities Segregated for Regulatory Purposes

Ax Al
December 31, Cucembar 31,
] 2024 FLlra
Seprugaied sscusiise’ s ®M 5 20A0
1 Shcarits geagatnd wncher fncerl ingulstions. for the Fert's U S b deakars
an seadcnd oy Securith Pariad il og i rasall and Trading
st il Badares b

Concentration Basad on the Firm's Total Assats

A Al
Decomber 31, Decamber 01,
2024 3

uwm-n -;u agenoy securities l.nd

Trasing aszats’ 11 % 12 %

Off balanics shest—Colaiaal iucedved” L% 1%

1 ol REreislBign GErTIEMNE inchadnd i Tindng iaaeds pricianly o
of cbgations o this LUK, Japis el Dracit

2 Collatend received is primaly lsed |0 Secuities puithasad under agresmenis in
reall i Sercisiies ESorswd

The Firm s subject to concentrstion fisk by holding lasge

positions i cenain iypes of secunities, loans or commitments

1o purchzse secunties of o single mswer, meluding sovereign

governments and other entities, issuers located in a particular

country of geographic area, public and prvale issuers

iwelving developing countries of issuers engaged in a

particular industry

Positions taken and underwriting and laancing commitments,
inchading those made in connection with the Firm's private
equity, principal investitent and lending activities, often

Diecember 2024 Form 10-K
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Morgan Stanley
involve substantial amounts and significant exposure to
individual sssuers and businesses, including invesiment grade
ad non-investment grads issuers

Customar Margin and Other Lending

A A
Ducamber 31, Decanbar X1,
3 iy rmiltacy 234 HEE
Margin and oter lerding 3 SR § 4 A

The Fim provides margin lending armangements that allow
customers o borrow agamst the value of qualifving securities,
Recewables from these amangements are included within
Customer and other receivables in the balance sheel Under
these amangements, the Firm recerves collateral, which
includes U3, government and agency securities, other
sovereign government obligations, corporate and other debt,
and corporate equities. Margin loans are collateralized by
customer-owned -securities held by the Fimp. The Firm
meonitors requared margm levels and established credin terms
daily and, pursuant to such guidelines, requires customers 1o
deposit additional  collateral, of reduce positions, when
MECEssAry.

Margin loans are extended on a demand basis and generally
are ned committed faciliies. Factors comsidered in the review
of margm foans are the amound of the loan, the imended
purpose, the degree of leverage being emploved in the
account and the amount of collateral, as well as an overall
evaluation of the portfolio to ensure proper diversification or,
in the case of concentrated posttions, approprinte lquadity of
the underlying collateral or potential hedging strategies 1o
reduce nsk. Underlyme collsternl for marpin loans s
reviewed with respect to the bouidity of the proposed
collaternl positions, valuation of securities, historic trading
range, volaulty analyss and an evaluation of industry
concentrations. For these transactions, adherence to the
Fim's collateral policies significantly  limits it credit
exposure in the event of a customer default. The Firm Y
request additional margin collateral from  customers, if
appropriate, and, if necessary, may sell securities that have
not been pard for or purchase securities sold but not delivered
{from customers.

Also included w the amoumts i the previous table is noa-
purpose securities-based lending on entitics in the Weahh
Management business segment.

Other Seeured Financings

Other secured financings melude the habilities related 10
collateralized motes, transfers of fimancial assets that are
accounted for a5 financings rather than sales and consolidated
WVIEs where the Firm is deemed to be the pnmary beneficiary.
These liablities are generally pavable from the cash flows of
the related assets accounted for as Trading assels (see MNotes
13 and 15} Additionally, for ceram secured financing
transactions that meet apphcable netting crtena, the Firm
olfset Other secured financing liahilities against financing
recervables recorded within Trading assets in the amount of

112
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5437 mullion &t December 31, 2024 and 53,472 million at
December 31, 2023,

2. Loans, Lending Commitments and Related
Allowanee for Credit Losses

The Firm's held-for-investment and  held-for-zsale  loan
portfolms consist of the following types of loans:

+ Covporate.  Corporate includes revolving lines of credat,
term doans and bridge leans made to corporate entities for &
vanely of paposes

Secured Lending Faciliies,  Secured lendmg facilities
include loans provided to chents, which are collaterahzed
by variows assets, including residential and commereial real
estate morigage loans, investor commilments for cagital
cills, corposate loans awd other asssts

+ Commercial Real Estate.  Commercial real estate loans
include pwner-occupied loans and income-producing loans.
Residential Real Estate.  Residential real estate loans
mamly include non-conformmg leans and HELOC
Securifivs-based Lending and Cither.  Secunties-based
lendimg includes loans that allow clients to borrow money
against the value of qualifying securities, generally for any
suitable purpose cther than puschasing, irading. or carrying
securities or refinancing margin debt. The majority of these
loans are structured as revolving lines of credit. Cther
primarily mcludes certain loans onginated in the tailored
lendeng business within the Wealth Management busingss

segment
Loans by Typa
At Decembar 31, 2024

X iy i HFI Loans HFS Loans  Totad Loans
Corpotate ] &5 & 8183 § g4
Secyured lendieg faliing LB BT 2,507 51,340
Commarcial real s2tats 8412 520 040
Rasiiantial el nogs 5,713 - BE, TR
Eacurities-hased brding and

Ohar BE 019 1 04,0320
Tieal ke EF 15,18 Fr Rl ]
AL 01,048) 11,008
Total lsans, nit $_Zashd 6 13010 % 3B}

Laans i non-LLS, bomowans, el § T

Al December 31, 203

4,763 §  25,00e

£ Iy oo HFiLoans  HFE L?l.ﬂ! Totad Loans
Corporate $ emsas nss s mem
Sacyred lanoirg facliies 048 3,161 42 BE
Commarcial real esam BT F- LR
Faaxinntisl mal naaie BOATS a2 0,357
Secuntiss-bassd snaing and

Cihar 245 1 B, 245
Teal bars 0 15, 255 19,800
ACL (1.184} (1. 180}
Tetal lears, nst 4 200 £ AL 5 DA

Loans s nordl 5. bonmsers, nat § 21,152 § 5043 § FoRET)
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Loans by Inarest Rata Typa
Al Decamdber 3, 2024 At Decennbar 31, 3020

Floafng o Fioadng or
Finied Rlain *ﬁ-z“ Finnc Rlas Wﬁ:ﬂ.

5 iy mang
Corperta k] — % 16471 § — & 18620
Sacuned landirg facities - 51349 - 42 650
Commancial real ssm e - B84 141 7
Rsitaninl raal nsiae e ST ZIM J14R
Secunizes-based knang

and Orhar AT 05T & B5.323

Totalleans, bofore ACL & 95452 § 18727 §  s2.007 § I66EI2

See Mote 4 for further mformation reparding Loans and
lending commuments held at fair value. See Note 14 for
details of curment commitments 1o Jend an the future.

Credit (uality

The CEM evaluates new obligors before credit transactions
are imitally approved and st least anmally thereafier for
corporate and commercial real estate lcans For Corporate,
Secured lending facilities and Other loans, credit evaluations
typically invelve the evahmtion of financial stalements,
assessment of leverage, hoquedity, capital strength, asset
composition and quality, market capialiabon and access to
capital markets, caish flow projections and debt service
fequirements, and the adequacy of collateral, if applicable,
The CEM abso evalustes strategy, markel position, indusiry
dynamics, obligor’s management and other factors that could
affect an obligor’s risk profile.

For Commercinl real estate loans, the credit evaluation is
focwsed on property and transaction metrics, including
property type, LTV ratio, occupancy levels, debt service ratio,
prevailing capitalization rates and market dynamics.

For Residential real estate and Secunties-based loans, the
initeal credin evaluation typically meludes, bt is not limited
to, review of the ohliger’s income, net worth, liquidity,
collateral, LTV rawo and credit bureau  information.
Subsequent credit menitoring for residential real estate loans
15 performed ot the portfolio kevel. Securities-based loan
collateral values sre monitored on an ongoing basis.

For nformation related to credit quality mdicators considered
in developing the ACL, see Note 2
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Lﬂll‘raiﬁl':lld ot I;mnl bafors Allowanca by Cradit Quality At Dacambaer 31, 2034
and nalion Year F
Syt hasad L
M Becember 31, 2024 A1 Dwosmbar 31, 2023 ShmEr lendirg L) Nig Toeal
Coponte Fl.m 1 TEAXZ § 6,342 § 1,851 § 84,325
5 iy Mg [ HIG Tl 1B HIG Tecal mz4d 1,201 fak ] 453 2483
Ravobirg % 2460 § 3,080 § GOGM 5 250 § 2063 § 621 A fadd 424 885 2088
24 " 8 13 Mz 440 iz 1,059 1,074
0 — 80 5 — i - 02 400 14 %13 552
2022 - b2 1) - 166 185 i s L3 yiid ed
2021 15 = 1% 1 B o Prior Lol 1, 1388 382
2020 3 3 u 0 5 = el 5 TAS1 3 D4 % 7427 8 DEDA
Prio o nd re e 13 T Az Bwcambar 31, 202
Todnl 5 T3 e % 52304 § 4364 £ B7HE
270 § 4, 6,855 aetetec  oter
At Decembar 31, 2074 A1 Decersber 31, 2023 F&mie eding - Licuid Ao
Sacumed Lendng Faciiss Fimoking & T1474 § 5200 § 1362 §  7B.OGE
£ meom [ NG Toul [ HIG Tl i 1412 B2 Eot 1585
Reveldng 8 11,488 § 27,751 § 30158 £ 0404 § 22240 $31,7M e 1128 M 04 2748
2024 &8 3881 asm 202t 185 a0 7 812
202 13T 1358 ATM TAIR 140 206 i = 435 444 Bag
203 o fe08 A 30¢ 2a00 TR Prior a5 2008 00 1Me 0 408
2021 — 168 168 £ Ak ¥ Total 5 TAmGL £ anM £ BT § A5 245
20 = — — - B} &0 1 lEremtria Grnde
Price 1% L L BT DB 1007 1add re A o <o s
Tuw 3 13973 8 34080 % ABBAX SITVV § 27721 §30408 Duscarnbar 31, ZH04 and Dacani 31, 202, thass ms ww gradomasnly vl
For Hha ACL alynd o L
At December 31, 2028 At Dwosmber 31, 2023 Rl e e AR b i
Comerarzial Real Essata :mmmmmummammwm
[y I Pt — sl
grmmess G WG Towl G MG Tou it ot -
Favbirg 8 22— 8 1M %3 1M F — 5 100§ 1m
2024 147 2,02 EETY Past Due Loans Hald for Investment before Allowance®
2023 51 w2 1.1 2% 261 i T 1,338
2022 W8 nase TR ond 1?@ 240 e ASCRCHRIAF I 0 7, L Doy 1, R >
! t ; t [ 3 — 5 ar
2021 Rl 1,803 1, TEE arn 1404 i.B54 Gomn o — m 186
o - i) o byt s ™ Fissidartio real nitate 186 160
Price - L TET oh 2181 2378 g s
Teasl S M0 8 7443 § BAIZ 5 1110 5 7568 § AATE e Oy ’ =" 9
At Decambar 31, 2024 Lo 3 e 3
Resigenisl Roal E 1, A of Dimcember 11, T024. e magory of e amounts mm B0 deys oF mom pas
EI.'.'D dun As of Dacerbar 31, 02 B magsity of e arounts e past s for g
by 5“:“"“' parics] of s Buan 90 Ay
5 iy miiom o a0 m m 1.1 Tl
Pavobirg % 136 § 30 % o §  im Nonaccrual Loans Hald for Imastrmant bafoss Allowancs'
2:: 5778 :ﬂ: ;: 13:: § o st ALD beer 31, 2024 At Dwcmmbesr 31 422
2022 13,794 2,298 arg 12,56 meﬂaﬂ_ﬂ 4 1‘: ¥ z
2021 WM 2T 2 13084 = ; H'_“,__ pri 2
et b rlnd 1348 g T4 Rasatartial regl asos 16 5
Prioe 1504 B8 304 iREDE gar 13813 S
Tosal 553,458 § 11,793 §1.488 § 61557 § 5,181 5 GATXS mnd Cithar ] 174
Tl £ 1018 £ &
Monaconesl |oars without
an ACL 4 -] [
i TFocal ! Thers wen no losns hald for nsesiment that wens B0 days o mor past dus and
s W peindeg) i o Dmcaebae 91 2900 ond Ditaritan 31, 200 For bthie
Ramh-g 5 149 ior on thi Fm's | policy, wie Mke ks e Snancial slidacsns
2023 &8s 068 a.1ar
022 12680 1000 1374 Loan Modifications to Borrowers Experiencing Financial
2021 12ea ear 13660 Difficulty
2020 BO9IE 1 430 04 BT &33 450 _ . ) .
Price A4 A43 438 4A0E 1103 18,205 The Firm may madify the terms of certaan loans for economic
Teaal S4058 § 101 51406 5 55853 5 4527 5 BOATS of legal reasons related to a borrower’s fmancial d.i!TLqu!i.r_-i,
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insignificart  payment delays or a combnation of these Financial Impact of Modifications on Loans Hold for
aforementioned modifications. Modified loans are typically Investmeant
evaluted individually for allowance For eredn losses. Year Endwd Decembar 31, 2024
hlhnl'll:ﬂl-t Ininrest
Modified Loans Held for Investmant EuT“"T P rh';-r'hl n.g.':
Parkad Jodlovwl 1 ansion LUl et [« g}
ondloans held for investment moclfied durieg the fofiowirapardods — \Moriha)  Monihe)  (Semiions) (%
Yaar Endesd Decembar 31, Al e M Hiwtna
e Corpariia " o8 _ —
Sncuned landirg
Amorized  %eof Totel  Amorized % of Totd “acilise z ] - ]
5t i Cost [ Gosy Lowrs” £ il real
Tarm Extersion wilile 1" -] - -
Corporale 5 Fa g A% § 10a 27 % Resaiantial real sscale ] -] — 1%
Escured lsndirg faodias a R ) —_ Sncundes-haied
Commercial raal wscain 7 2% e zaw Janding srd cu il L =-___—%
Multiple Modificstions - Tems Extenslon snd lrisres Rubs Reduciiion
Ruesaiensal real ssas 2 — i 0%
2 Commenciall eal
Hecuitis-baied lerding st &1 ] - %
it Crdhar 138 a1 % 145 % Foasitandsl rea ™ o 1%
Total 5 862 0% 5 58 03 % =
Othar-ehandnsl gaiflcant Payment Delsy ) Yaar Endad Dacesnbas 31, 2023
S rilis-burind barding Otfipr-than-
and Crtbar 5 - —% 3 7 LILY Inslgnificant
Totml 35— %3 0 ma% Ext o Paahees Madumos
Intereat Rate Reduction R Momtks)  (Months] (3 milllors) [
Rasidential mal sses 5 3 —% 5 == —_— Single Modiflzations
Teasl 5 z —-% 5 - - Corporae 3 o3 - -
s T Bt " etk Gommanzial
Wultipls Kadif Tarm and Rats ";h real i & = .
Commarcial el sstae § L] 10% £ - -% R T iy A 8 _ —%
Fmsidantial real wxcate 1 — 1 - i
Teaul 5 az BI% % ' - fonding ard Ciber i & - .
Wudtipls Modificstions - Term [ don and Ctkar-than-inslgnificar Iluljpul\naﬂn-uom Tnt_mnul-nnmﬁm-lwlhm
Paymeert Dalay Payement Dalay
Commercial real ssiaie 5 — —% 3 FI) R Gl real
T!.“_ - “' = — ’_ 7 B3 sLale . -? : LI-S -—‘ _ —-%
Towsl Modificstions 5 846 B3% 5 64 0% Mulkiple Madtfl - Tam and Rats
Fasidanial real ssiuis 130 -3 ] - %

1 Lmncling corwmstmenty 42 borowern o which the Fum has modfied e of the
recatenble during The yada mmmmmm-am:mm
and §1. 062 rillien, b of Decariber 31, 2024 ancd dva 51, 2023
2 Parcsnbige of fotal ko ipresnts i prrcantagn of reciisd i ot ke
Fd o vt ey b by

1 in inastancén whars mors than one loan woas modifisd modiicsion impsd s
prasntad on o waighted. seaimgs hass

Past Due Loans Held for Investrent Modifed in the Last 12
manths
At Decombar 31, 2024

0-R0 Da S+ Drirys
§ ¥ s Past D.r st Do T

Commarial ral satats ] - &5 56

A1 Dacambar 31, 2003
3040 Diays G days

£ iy il Prast Dus Prast Due TFoinl

Commarncial real wste H = 3 3 % 45
H:udﬂ'!ludmn - 1 L]
'I'nill 5 24._; 25--5 45

A December 31, 2024, there were two commercial real estare
loans held for owestment with a total amortized cost of
556 million that defaulted during the year ended December
31, 2024 and had been modified in the 12 maonth penod prior
te default There were no loans held for inwestment that
defaulted during the vear ended December 31, 2023 that had
been modified in the 12 month peniod prior.
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Allowancs for Credit Losses Rodlforward and Allocation—
Laans and Londing Commitmants

Yaar Erded Decsmbar 31, 2024

Sinoured

Lending Fasidemial _mand
L “Porporide Faclia . CHE: - nel Exlihe Oy Thisl
ACL—L carms
Begnningbalance § 241§ 153 $463 3 0o 2T o
Groas charge-ots % 1) (163 - (27 (242
Biooovene — - 4 - 3 T
al {Ehanga-eTa)
W""E" g 3% 1) ey i ]
Prrsdadan (peledan) z 1 L LES] B o
Ctar 4] L/ = (1 14y

Endirg balance 5 M 5 140 BITA % 97 5356 51066

P of s to
ol s 3%  nW 4%

ACL—Lending commitmants
Begnrirgbalnce § 4N 3 10 SM % 4 osm e

2% 43N 100 %

Provision jribsasa) 26 w8 - ] 18
Crbar el {1 =] e - (i3
Endirgbalsrcs 3 887 § BS540 % 4 317 5656
Teasl anding

balsnes i 7oy & 20 S413 % LU kO S

Sacurnd SBL
Lsnging Fasdamal and
§11 Corpovals Facdies CRAE  Raal Extce Ober  Total
e e e s e
Begnningbalanos § ¥ 3 163 Siie 3 aF 3 00
Gnss charge-afs {4} = {12 —_ 4}  {RETH
oo 1 S i - 2
et {chaga-ofa)
PRt Rting 133} - 1) i ) {HBa)
Provision (reesse) ar - 34 LE] 124 488
Chbar 2 = 3 {93 k] T

Endirg balsrce § 241 § 1563 5461 F 100 5212 51,060
Paeve of lgkna ta
Al by

3% s AN
ACL—Lending commitmants
Begrringbalance 5§ 411 5 81 S 0§ 4 53 e

I A% D%

Prosdsion frebeesa ] 1] " - (LU

Otbar 4 1 - - @ 3

Endingbelince § 431 5 70§38 S 4 s® ssst

Tetsl anin

el £ Er: S e £ g 423 S1rm
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YoarEnded Deownbes 3%, 3082
sBL
Landing Raakisngal  and
Bl o Corparate Facliies CRE Real Eslie OFsd Towl
AL =i s
Baginningbalance £ 184 % 1A f204 % LU T
(ross chirge-offs - [k ¥ = (2 {3
Ruscorarias & B, == g it 7
Mt [hna-aay
PRGOS & (i LI S R o
Prroveision (releasa) -] [T ] ] CET- 111
b L S L | el 1. N L/ 5
Ending balance § ¥ % 433 5275 % BT &0 k]
Piwicer: of laars ts
ol lnars’ 3% % 4% It AR % 100 %
ACL—Larding commitmants
Bagrringbalarca § D28 0§ 44 53 5 i %6 AbiL
Provision, (relesss) & LR 3o
W = = = = i
Ending bslanos g 411 5 8 15 5 4 523 pat)
Tedal andin
qu-lulﬂell d 5 B8 5 24 £290 % 21 £192 51843

1. Porcant of ka1 20l koo aeprasents isarm el tor ameestrssnt By s Gps 10
ot Moy haskd for Eywewieseng

The allowance for credit losses for loans and lending
commiments was relatively uncharged in 2024, reflecting
provisions for ceram specific commercial real esiate loans
and growth in the corporate loan portfolio, offset by charge-
offs related to commercial real estate lending, mainly in the
office sector, and improvements 1n the macrocconomic
cutlook. The base scermno used in our ACL models as of
December 31, 2024 was generated wing a combination of
consensus cconomic forecasts, forward rates, and internally
developed and validated models, This scenasio assumes
continued economic growth as well as lower interest raies
relative to the prior vear forecast The ACL calculation
incorporates key macrocconomic variables, including U5,
real GDP growth mte. The significance of  key
macroeconomic vanables on the ACL caloulation varies
depending en portfolio compesition and economie conditions.
Other key macrocconomic vanables wsed m the ACL
caleubation include corporate credit spreads, interest rtes and
commercinl real estate indices,

Bee Note 2 for a description of the ACL caleulated under the
CECL methodology, meluding crednt quabity indecators, used
Tar held-fos-nvestment loans,

Groas Charge-offs by Origination Year
Yar Enced Dacombaer 31, 3034

S e Rpsientiadl  SEL

Larding Rl i
Fnymiigns Comorste Faclities CRE Exigls  Oiher Totad
Ravaddng 8 AHs —3% —8 - % =35 (3171
maz e — el "
o — - [14] - ] (16
SR - nyp = - = {11
ot e O e 1L B9 . § i,
Teral 3008 )N — 3ams i242)

e
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Vaar Enced Docamber 31, 2029 10, Goodwill and Intangible Assets
S-numl. 4 Rasicential S8L
Brain anc
Snmeon  Copomte Fackies CAE  Esaw  Otbe  Toul Goodwill Rollfarward
i B T R Nom =¥ il LT 5 WM M Toul
0 - = .= . bl P 5 439 310202 § BOI1 SIRESZ
2 = = . == AN ) Foesigr cumency 5 2 7 1
Pricer - — ) - - (44} Auined o= —_ 56 58
Total 5 @S = sems =5 @5 e Disposals = i i (6
g-ﬂﬂﬂﬂ:ﬁ““ &t Decenbar 31, 20230 £ 424 $10199 § G084 SHET07
~=Camiey- g Eormigr cumency [3F3] = e 23
Selected Credit Ratios Adgitad z = = L2
Disposals. — 5] = i
Decamsber 31, Ducembar 31 AR Dacambar 34, 2024" § 435 510,990 § 6081 516,708
AL for boara o total HF| foans BT T 05 % A g g BPACE oo RTop WD
Moracenaal HFI kbans o total HF] s [T 4 % 1 Oslscces reprenant the arcond of the Fec's goodwll afer scosmulaed
AL foe lGars 0 nonasxual WF et 1048 % £339 % 2 .,,_‘ -m-’mqﬁm:wumwmum
Employea Loans Intangible Assels Rollorsard
AL A
o # by 15 W I Total
[Prem—— 4 i 3 0 " At December 31, 222 £ 35 % 3911 5 3671 § TEE
Currendy smployed by the Fam’ 5 4394 3 FET Arnuined == o 37 T
o krgac arpkayed by the Pt = b -
Employes loans . . % FET I ] FET™ Amorimtion eepense (LI P VI 1T 111
AL (12 (121) e L (PR | TR, RS
Erployes kans, ra: of ACL % 4378 § T3 Al Deosmber 21, 2022 5 75§ 3437 5 2E02 5 TASE
Ramairing mpayerie] jen, weghied ~ | Aoguired 12 =+ - 13
Rl it LE LI Dispoat — ] - 1]
1 Therss budns e pracersrtly T AfaiEa ! isd fapeanee L] [T FRLE (602
2 Thess loms mn pradorsantly paed dus for s peeosd of 85 days o moem s [ [ ) i
At Decembar 31, 2024 $ 27 % 7515 § 1487 § 6,453
Emplovee loans are granted in conpumction with a program
tsiabit.shcd pr.lmant:r to recruit certain Wealth Man@cm:.m Intangibio 2 by Type
financial advisors, are full recourse and generally require
penodic repayments, and are due i full upon termination of Mer-amedizabh __ Amoriirabl
emplovment with the I-1rm Thcs:: loans are recorded in Pl . i
Customer and other receivables in the balance sheet. See Note # i i ; A _Ameues  Amoniraton
2 for a description af the CECL allowance mehodology, A1 Drecember 31, 2024
inchuding credn quality imdicators, for employes loans. Wanagemae contricts - § L2 % s 3 i
Cusiomer nlatiorshigs S 8,746 5131
Triass Fnies - TED 223
Crihar - 26 L]
Total & 2112 § O,7B6 § G406
A Decambar 31, 2023
Managamen sorimsts 2113 245 T
Cusiomes relatiorships — k] 4,502
Trads raes - &7 1
Crther - 14 R
Tetnl 5 2113 $ 8,780 $ 4847

117

Intangible Assets Estimated Future Amortization Expenss

% i el At Decemb-sr 39, 2024

- T
Mk I
Foir b
i 16
00 prt]

The Firm's annual goodwill and non-amortizable intangible
asset impairment testing as of July 1, 2024 did not indicate
any imparment. For mose mformation, see Note 2
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11. Other Assets and Leases

Equity Mathod Investments

Ay A
Dacember 31, Deosmber 31,
Fial

] ik

Invesimenis 5 1,880 § 1,985
¥ it miea N porsl Fiires
Incoms (oss} 5 241 % 14 5 e

Eguity method investments, other than investments in certain
fund interests, are summanzed above and are mchuded
(rher assets in the balance sheet with related income or loss
included in Crher revenues in the income ststement. See “Net
Asset Value Measurements—Fund Interests” in Note 4 for the
carrving valwe of certam of the Firm's fund imeresis, which
are composed of general and limited partmership mterests, as
wiell as any related carried interesy

Japanese Securities Joint Venture

£ 1% m 2024 0 il
Incomes (Bag) from Pveaneent i MUMES 5 a8 5§ 10 % b

The Fim and Mnpsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Ine
(“MUFG™) formed o poiml venture in Japan comprising their
respective nvestment! banking and securities businesses by
farming two joint venture companies, Mitsubishia UFJ Morgan
Stanley Securities Co., Lad, ("MUMSSE™) and Morgan Stanley
MUFG Securities Co., Ltd ("MSME™) (collectively, the
“Joint Venture™). The Firm owns a 0% coonomic interest in
the Jont Venture, and MUFG owns the other 60%%.

The Firm’s dPs voting interest in MUMSS is accounted for
under the equity method within the Instindsonal Securities
business sepmend amd 15 meluded i the eguity method
investment balances above, The Firm consolidates MSMS
into the Institutional Securitics business sepment, based on its
1% voling mterest,

The Firm engages in transactions m the ordinary course of
business with MUFG and its affilistes; for example,
inwestment banking, financial advisory, sales and trading,
denvatives, investment mamagement, lending. secuntization
and otheer Minancial services iransactions. Such ransaclions are
on substantially the same terms as those that would be
avialable to uneelated thisd  parties  for  comparable
IFAnEACHions,

Addinonally, during 2024 the Frm further expanded ms
alliance with MUFG to collaborate in the foreign exchange
trading and Japanese research and equity businesses for
institutional clignts,

Tax Equity Investmenis
The Firm invests in tax oquity mvestment interests which

entitle the Firm to 4 share of tax credits and other meome tax
benelits generated by the prgects underlying the investmens.

Diocember 2024 Form 10-K
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Morgan Stanley

Effective Jamuary 1, 2024, the Firm made an electton 1o
aceount for certain renewable energy and other tax equiy
investments programs using the proportional amortustien
method under newly adopted sccounting guidance.

Tan Equity Invastments under the Proporional Amanization
Method

AL A
Dlacamber 31,  Dcenibar 31,
Low-income bousierg' 5 1,787 § 1 85
Farmiablis sr-sgy 4ra oar &7 =
Teal' ] 188 § 1,600
1. Arounis confribufions of $613 milion and 661 millon o
&f Dt 1, 022 ot 1. 20ES, resg g
Eabiiin o the cortmlimants 1o fund Huks equity. cinbiaicrm aoe retindad in
[+ =0 st s Asp Tha riapuity o Bass corimitnmnts
axpitind b b bchicd vl £ o
2 Pty 15 adphion & the & - Tikx Gl 83 it e
danogty 1, 204, Ravewibie iy Mnd dthie iesdlminls win scsunied B0
il Uk ity et

3 M Disisbat 31, 2008, ha afidonl aethadid $48 Sl &F i aguly HreiiEens
wificy it o whizh B P sledted M gropatane amerboken et
it do nob sl B Coniond B apply the propoiionel arriiEstion o
P i Socrarsied Ind o equily athod disiranin

Income tax crecits and other income tax benefits recognized

as well as proportional amortization are included in the

Provision for income taxes line in the consolidated income

statement and in the Depreciation and amortization line in the

consolsdated cash flow statement.

Mat Banofits Attributable to Tax Equity Investments under tha

Proportional Amortization Method

§ in wmilaony Foorcd HRA WP

Inconsys fMx credia and other ncoms tax
[

E] o1 5 ol Foi

Proporional aserization (23] LI (174)
Nt Banafis 5 62 5 A0 5 ]
Lenses

The Frrm's leases are principally non-cancelable operating
real estate leases.

Balance Sheet Amounts Related to Leases

Ll ou 3l
s mssais—ROU asses % 4im 5 4.
Crier bl Gas 200 SCCILB0 RIS S ET=—
Lnisin labii s 4,007 417
Weigh!sg averags;
Femainicy naws m. in yess Ba B.r
Cesconeni rate a3 % a0 %

(LE
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Laasa Liabilitios Uningurad Mon-U.3, Time Deposit Maturitios
A Al At
Ducomber 31, Decsmber 31 Dcembar 31
F by e A i 2024
2024 5 a13 Lz than 3 monthe & 2,855
2028 5 e B 3 - & months 411
2026 790 il B - 12 poniks W0
2027 EETS rin Crear 12 manths s
028 TiI6 4 Tetal 5 3,480
2020 52 S0
Tharsaber 2408 2137 Deposits in U.5. Bank Subsidiarias from Non-U.5. Deposilors
Total uncisoounted cash: foss 5941 6530
Injrited miares! (1,044} (1113 At Decomber 31,  A: Dacniiber 31,
Amour on balance shew: 3 4997 5 5417 Enaow. 203 023
Commed lmases not yet commenced 8 CIE 2 AL — a0
Leasa Costs
§1 memom 2024 23 e 13. Borrowings and Other Secured Financings
Fined coss. 3 97T 5§ g 5§ B4l
Warlatie coss’ 151 206 170 Maturities and Terms of Borrowings
Lass: Subdaase noome 5] (1] i B Gomrgary ok
Toal kst coal, nat $ 1 £ i § 1004 T Fimas  Vewbie  Flag  Wansbie L}
' — e R VEEP Dl P ey Oy
Uil COMeRN MRS MR T i ot ikl cosls rod inchaad T LT T p———
i s mssasmen of RO assets snd lesas kab@fes Piasd 17 BrooriFs 5 — % — & 188 % 4385 § A2 a8
ol waturien greater than
Cash Flows Statemant Supplomantal Information g e 3 i
) $ 88T 3 BN B IATI PNIH B mam 523
M. i A P nam tam am sam 700 B
Laph tafiows—Laass MaEvitns: P oME s 823 Bh 007 WAL MG 4m RAR 40 EoE
hon-cash=FR0U) asse recomad for new fe) 14T 1366 3808 BOET e el
_ g mocified lemsay (489 loes b pee) WA e 13T EsE3 26448 2184
[Forsafiar BT TSt WA 35484 135,488 30 AFT
Occupancy lease agreements, in ad!:lman to base rentals, TR % 0 PR ¥ e
gcnchIJ_l.-' prmul: for rent and operating expense escalations okl MTITEL §E3T IAD BPEDMO B MM 8 marw
resultmg from increased assessments for real estate taxes and e
other charges. F kg W% AR RI% BN 1% 5%

1. Fisacl ratn Borrawings neuds sty with shap-up. shep-oem and rere tougen
12. Deposits
2 Wwiskls isbe Boirwingd Pohut Bea Il Bl beiel based on 4 vieey o
Daposits sy, inchutiery SOFTE and fecberal furts ses i hBlisn 18 cotae nete carind
ol fa wakod Wil waridm plyrul Sk, indoding nsbin kel B the
At At prartcreuanen of 0 SpRCEE indax, & basked F sincks, & Speci aquty sacuy, &
Dassanbar ¥, Dansmbar 31, cornnebly, & crmcll magioen oF bardl of S Epein
£ e L L it i gt covf 7 gL e et e g
Sxvings and demand deposit 3 209,808 § WA m%vmmummmumm
Turinh Capeein 7,108 A AR i this faw vl opticn min sleied. See Tosed o Boeowings with Oviganal
- Mafusiiers Graater e Cnim Vs Labia fenmin for Mo in'onmaton
Total deposits 5 37R00T 5 351804
Daposits subjec i FDIC inswance § 288,351 % 7R85 Berowings with Original Maturities Greater than One Year
Depasits rod subjest to FINC insumncs 3 17,656 % 78,206 At "
Decomber 31, Decembsr 31,
Time Dopasit Maturities 311 o ] 3
At = 5 ITOEBd % 2B.1T4
Decombar 39, Suboringced Jari 1zan
£ i i 2024 Toial 3 _E_J.Hli' 3 Db Aekd
Blieh E e WA IR SGTS tabid ity B vy A L]
s A Ry T T e en
et e e Certain senior debt securities are denominated in various nons
:2 :::: 115, dollar currencies and may be structured to provide a
return that s binked to equity, credit, commodity or other
Thareater 419 g .
e T 71 indices (e.g., the consumer price index). Senior debt also may
Se— be structured (o be callable by the Firm or extendible at the

1

option of holders of the senzor debt securities
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The Firm s Borrowings inchsde notes camed and managed on
i [air valwe basis. These include instruments whose paymenis
and redemption vahses are hinked to the performance of a
specific index, a baske1 of stocks. a speaific equity secunty, a
commaodity, a credit exposure of basket of credit exposures;
and instruments with varous inferest rate-related features,
including step-ups, step-downs and 2er0 coupons.  Also
included are unsecured contracts that are not classified as
OTC dervatives because they fail mmal net mvestrent
criteria. To minimize the exposure from such instruments, the
Firmn his entéred inle vamous swap contracts and punchased
opions that effectively comvert the bormowing cosls mio
Moating rates. The swaps and purchased options used 1o
economically hedge the embedded features are derivatives
and also ase carried af fair value, Changes in fair value related
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The Firm’s use of swaps for asset and liability management
affects its effectve average borrowing rale

DHhar Secursd Finandings

L1} AL
December 3%, Cwcmmber 30,

5.y 2024 ure]
Ooigiral mdriie
G ymar or lass 5 1793 5§ 5732
Curmariand [han oha yedr A8 L)
Total k] bl i 12655
Trarsfars of sutels socounbed for &

aared frarcings 10278 5,040

Maturities and Terms of Othar Secured Financings®

A . 3 Al Deosmber M, 2024 &t
1o the notes and economic hedges are reported in 'I_'mr.img Foad ._‘.R,:j. Dacernber 31,
revenues, See Botes 2 and 3 for further information on Simdom Raw Fotal o
borrowings carried at fair value. Oehgirisl vimaiurithna of gria yuar o gy
Ml'ﬁm'-‘]_‘-_!_____ 5 3055  § 13,951 § 7,008 5 A
Senior Debt Subject to Put Optiens or Liquidity Obligations Original maturitias graater Chin cewp year:
. g4 §  s0es
. "‘hm . M . An $  — & 330§ 3 5
£ it e 0B ma ik T 63 630 e
Put ofrions senbsta in deb &3 5 420 5 1871 H2¥ - 107 107 =y
Wiouity obbgations” § amer s A i = A i o
i = R i il
' e s s Tharater T e e e
Subordinated Debt Total 5 14 3 437 5 43H 5 £ 796
Weigh!sd averags
=1 22 SRl Al R -aed? 4.8% 49% 4.6 % 5.8 %
Contraciual weighled Faemmps coupon 48 % 43%

Subordinated debt generally i= issued to meet the capital
requirements of the Firm or itz regulated subsidiaries and
primarily s US  dollar  denominasted.  Maturites of
subordmated debt range from 2025 0 2039,

Ratas for Borfowings with Original Maturities Graater than
Ona Yaar
Al Devsrbst 31,
0 MR R
Contractuil weighied werage coupon’ 41% 38% 3z%
bl fimr adging
mm:m coupan o grg

BE% BE% 51 %

1 Wighisd averags coupon was caltelsind utilizing 15 and non-L) S, dollae intecwsd
s dnd smchuien Snancial natnaments for wheck ths faer vales option was sleched

In general, other than securities inventones and customer
balances financed by secured funding sources, the majority of
the Firm's assets are financed with 2 combanation of deposits,
short-term funding, floating rate kong-term debt or fixed rate
long-term debt swapped 1o a Aoating rate. The Fim uses
interest rate swaps to more closely match these bormowings 1o
the duration, holding period and imerest eate characteristics of
the assets being [unded and to manage imerest rate msk. These
swaps eflectively convert certain of the Frrm's fixed rate
borrowings into fleating rate ohligations, In addition, for non-
LS, dollar currency borrowings that are not used to fund
assels in the same currency, the Firm hes entered inlo
currency swaps that effectively convert the bomowings mio
1.5, dollar oblipations.
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Other secured [inancings melusde the habilines related 10
collateralized notes, transfers of financial assets that are
accounted for as financings rather than sales and consolidated
VIEs where the Firm is deemed 1o be the primany beneficiany,
These Lakalities are generally pavable from the cash Nows of
the related assets apcounted for as Trading aswets, See Wote 15
for further information on other secured financings related to
VIEs and securifization aciivities.

Maturities of Transfers of Assels Accounted for as Secured
Financings’

At M
Daettmbar M, Decenstss 31,
& i e 20 XY
24 5 -3 5748
028 10,184 %
2126 a2 36
027 8 2
nzA 12 1
2020 5 3
Trarnatior zr 12
Toml 5 10278 § 5848

1 Enchiies Sécuritien sckd urd sgrsiinnts b iapurchans i Sadmiiss kaned
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For transfers of assets that fail to meet accounting criteria for
a sale, the Firm continues 1o record the assets and recognizes
the essocisted liabilities in the balance sheet,

14. Commitments, Guarantees and

Contingencies
Commitmants
Yeare to Maturity ot Decamber 31, 2034
& n meo Im’:l 13 Ak Oy B Total
Lendirg:
Coporle $ 17303 540370 §GARS § 8087 $120.07a
Secured berding
L BB8L EB4E TG 3874 24,583
t&nmi and
e 762 404 128 i 1,703
Snfurtins-hinad
larging ard Other 1AL 3418 3 612 21,271
Fw-u-am
122,538 1503 - - 424,038
Caniral courfspary 300 = — 74T 24,047
It Bctivities 1,509 107 a4 466 2166
Latems of oresit ard
e ianaal
e e O A
Toanl S165,885 % 52453 § TL.018 532471 $323,820
Lendirg comminaris parispcss 1o iRin? paries & 10,850
1 Thess amous nchicls St Sancing neosvaiss yal 45 et aa of

primanly
Drrsrsbes 30, 2004, withh Sailariant Goned ully GO0Tng sdthan Sies business des
These amousts also nchide commdments bo snfer inlo ceran colisralred
fnancing Frsnsactions

Since commitments associzted with these instruments may
expire unused, the amounts shown do not necessanly reflect
the sctual future cash funding requiremerits,

Types af Commitments

Lending Commitments.  Lending commiuments primarily
represent the notional amount of legally banding obligations 1o
provide funding 1o chents for differemt tvpes of loan
transactions. For syndications that are led by the Fim, the
lending commitments accepted by the borrower but not vel
closed are net of the amaounts agreed 1o by counterpartees that
will partacipate 11 the syndication. For syndications that the
Firm participates in and does not lead, lending commitments
seoepled by the borrower but not vet closed include only the
amaunt that the Firm expects it will be allocated from the lead
symddicate bank. Due 1o the natre of the Firm's obligations
umder the commitments, these amounts mclude certam
commitments participated 1o third parties.

Forward-Starting Secured Finotcing Receivablex  These
amounts inclede secuntics purchased wmsler agreements 1o
resell and secunbies borrowed that the Firm has entered into
prior to the balance sheet date that will settle after the balance
sheet date. These transactions are primanly secured by
collateral from U5, government agency secunties and other
sovereign government obligations when they are fundad

Central Cownterparty.  These commitments relate to the
Firm™s membership in certmn  cleannghouses and  are
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contingent upon the default of a clearinghouse member or
other stress evenls.

Underwriting Commuiments. The Firm provides underwnting
commiments in conmection with its capital rasing sources 1o
a diverse group of corporate and other institutional clients.

Investment Activities.  The Firm sponsors several non-
consoldated inwestment management funds for third-pany
investors where it typically acts as peneral partner of, and
investment adviser 1o, these funds and typecally commits to
wvest g mineaty of the capital of swch funds, wiah
subscrnibing third-party mvestors contnbating the majority.
The Firm has contractual capital commutments, puarantees
and counterparty  armngements  with  respect to these
investment management funds.

Letters of Credit and Other Financial Guaraniees. The Firm
has outstanding letters of credit and other financial guarntees
isaved by third-party banks to certmin of the Fim's
counterparties. The Firm s contingently liable for these letters
of credit and other financial puarantees, which are primanly
uwsed to provide collateral for securities and commodities
traded and to satisly vamous masgin requirements m lieu of
deposating cash or securities with these coumlerpariies.

Guarantees
M Dacember 1. 2034

Maimaam Pobantiasl PayootSotional o 4

rru : .n. h ﬂu‘“?" - Ao

Lan A
§ dn ol w1 13 35 Owver5  (Liabity)
e crmn e s 1000382 EE0NT 132534 400337 (40.849)
BRancy lefters of cradi

sl ciher francial,

o ki ! 1593 TR 1,531 a1 18
Limuuckby faciition 2483 - - =
\Whade ko pales

iy 4 B = 2mams =
Seriiarticn

T

- - — W73 -
(hansral padiner Quarantess 188 L5 a3 52 Ll
Cherd clacring gusianiney HE = s — ¥

1 Tha canrying arsants of darfaalisn Contrach thist mast Be accounting defndion of
& pewanies aw shown on & gross bases For darthes nfonmation on descheathen
condincty, sae Miols

2 Thenm armcunts inchude certiin mased stancky e of Sl paniipsted 1o Sad
ety Eotalog $3 0 bilon of notional and collatalincouns. dun 15 T ndfam of

e Farm's cbligeticam wnde fin arsngements
3 Aaal Dy B 51, 2004 M ,,maluﬁﬁyhﬂ.ﬁﬂ-&ﬂuﬂﬁ
Branzial sl v Feat 2l Ronasns, of §50 muliien

& M.Muemmi m&umwhﬂuh&ﬂmﬂ:&-
Tipes of Guarantees

Now-Credit Derivatives. Cerlain derivalive contracts meet the
accounting definition of a guarantee, including certain written
options, contmgent-forward contracts and CDS (see Note 6
regarchng eredit dernvatives i which the Firm has seld eredat
protection to the counterparty which are excluded from the
previous table) For non-credit derivative contracts that meet
the accounting definition of a guarantee, the notional amount
15 ised s the maximium potental pavoul for certan dervative
contracts, such as written mlerest rate caps and written foreign
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currency options. The Firm evaluates collateral requirements
for all derivatives, including derivatives that do not meet the
seeounting defmition of a gusrantee. For the effects of cash
collateral and counterparty netting, see Note 6,

In certain situations, collateral may be held by the Firm for
these contracts that meet the definiion of a guarantes.
Generally, the Firm  sets  collateral regurements by
counterparty 5o that the collateral covers vanous transactions
and products and is not allocated specifically 1o individual
contracts. Alse, the Firm may recover amownts related 1o the
unddeclying asset delivered 1o the Firm under the derivative
contract.

Stawraly Letters of Credit and Ciifver Frarciel Guaranfees
Issned Generally, in connection with its lending businesses,
the Firm provides standby letters of credit and other financial
guarantess to counterpartics. Such armangements represent
chlipations to make payments to third parties if the
counterparty fails o fulfall s obligation under a borrowing
arrangement or other contractual obligation. A majonty of the
Firm®s standby letiers of credit are provided on behalf of
counterparties that are imvestment grade. If the counterparty
faniks to fulfill its contractual obligation, the Firm has access 1o
collateral ar recourse that would approximate ws obligation,

Ligwidity Facilities The Fum has entered o hguedity
facilities with 5PEs and other counterparties, wherehy the
Firm is required 1o make certmin pavments if losses or defauits
cceur. Primanly, the Firm acts as liquidity provider 1o
municipal bond securitization SPEs and for stand-alone
municipal bonds in which the holders of beneficial interesis
isgued by these SPEs ar the holders of the individual bonds,
respectively, have the nght to tender therr imterests [or
purchase by the Firm on specified dates at a specified price.
The Firm often may have recourse to the underlying assets
held by the SPEs in the event pavements afe sequired under
such liuachty facilities. as well as make-whole or recourse
provisions with the tnet sponsors. The recosirse amount olten
eiceeds the maximum pofential payout amount of the
guarantee, Substantially all of the underlying assets in the
SPEs are mvestrment grade, Liquidity fecilities provided to
municipal fender option bond tnsts are  classified as
denvatives.

Whale Loan Sales Ciuaramtees The Fim has provided, or
otherwise agreed 10 be responsible for, representations amd
warranties regarding certamn whole loan sales. Under certain
circumstances, the Firm may be reguired to repurchase such
assets or make other pavments refated to such assets if such
representateons and wammmtics are breached. The Firm's
maxmum potential pavowt retated 1o such representataons and
warranties 15 equal to the current UPE of such loans. Since the
Fimm no longer services these loans, it has no mformation on
the currert UPE of those loans, and, accordingly, the amount
inchuded in the previews table represents the UFE at the time
of the whole loan sale or a1 the tme when the Firm last
serviced any of those loans. The current UPB balances could
be substantially lower than the maximum potential payout

Dicember 2024 Form 10-K
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amount mcheded m the previous table. The related liabilny
primarily relates 1o sales of loans 1o the federal mongage
ARENCIES,

Secnrfization Representations and Warranties. As part of the
Frm's  Institutional  Secunties  business  segment’s
securtizations and related sctvites, the Firm has provided, or
otherwise agreed 1o be responsible for, representations and
warmanties  regarding  certon assels tmmsferred  in
securiization ransactions sponsared by the Firm. The extent
and mature of the representations and warranties, il any, vary
amang different secunitizations, Under certun circumsiances,
the Firm may be required to repurchase certain assets or make
other payments related to such assets if such representations
and warranties are breached. The maximum potential amount
of future payments the Fum could be required 1o make would
be equal 10 the current culstanding balances of, or losses
associated with, the assets subject to breaches of such
representations and wasranties. The amount included in the
previous table for the maximum potential paveut inchedes the
currenl UPE or hastorical losses where known and the UPE sl
the time of sale when the current UPB 15 not known,

Cewreral Parteer Guaramiees, As a general panner in certain
investment mansgement funds, the Firm receives certain
distributions from the pannerships when the retem exceeds
specified performance targets according to the provisions of
the partnership agreements. The Fim may be required to
return all or a portion of such distributions to the limited
pariners i the event the hmited parners do not achieve a
certain retum as specified im the vanous  parnership
agreements, subject to certain hmitations.

Cliemy Clearing Graratees. The Fim 15 a sponsoring
member of the Government Securities Divasion of the FIOC s
Sponsored Cleanng Model. Chents of the Fum, as sponsored
members, con Wansacl in overnih and term securities
repurchase and resale agreements, which are cleared through
the FICC, As spansoring member, the Firm gumrantees to the
FICC the prompt and full payment and performance of its
clients” ohligations. In 2020, the FICT s sponsored clearing
meodel was updated such that the Firm could be responsible
for hguidstion of a sponsored member’s sccount and
guarantees any resulting loss to the FICC i the event the
sponsored member fails to fully pay any net liguwdation
amount due from the sponsored member to the FICC
Accordingly, the Firm's maximum potential pavoul amount
reflects the wial of the estimated net hquedation amounts for
sporsored member accounts. The Firm minimizes eredi
exposire under thiz guarantee by oblaming a secusty interest
in s sponsored member clients” collateral and  their
contractunl rights under sponsored member transactions.
Therefore, the Firm's exposure 15 estimated 1o be an amount
substantially lower than the maximum potential payout
amount. The collatesal amount in which the Firm has a
seciarly mterest s approxmately equal to the maximum
potente] payout amount of the guarantes.
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In the mormal cowrse of busingss, the Fum  provides
guarantees and indemmifications 1n a vareety of transactions.
These provisions generally are standard contractual terms.
Certain of these guarantees and  indemnifications  are
described below,

* Indemmities. The Firm provides standard indemnities to
counterparties for certain comtingent exposures and taxes,
including U5, and foreign withhelding taxes, on inlerest
and other payments made on denvatives, securities and
stock lending transacthions, certain annutty  products and
oiher firancial amangements. These indemmity payments
could be required based on a change in the tax laws,
change in interpretation of applicable tax nidings or a
change in factual circumstances. Ceraim conmacts contaimn
provisions thal enable the Firm to terminate the agreement
upon the occumence of such events: The Firm may also
provide indemnities when it sells a business or assets 1w a
third-party, pursuant 1o which it indemmifies the thrd-party
for losses meurred on assets acquired or liabilities assumed
of due 1o actions taken by the Firm prior to the sale of the
business of mesels, The Firm expects the nsk of loss
associated with mdemnities related 1o the sale of businesses
or assels to be remote. The maximum potential amount of
future payments that the Firm could be required to make
under these indemnifications cannot be estimated

Marvet Valwe Guarantees. Market value guaraniees are
issued to guarantee timely payment of a specified retum to
imvestors. in certain affordable housing tax credit funds,
These puarantees are desspned to refurn an investor's
contribation to & fund and the investor’'s share of 1ax losses
and tax credils expected to be penersted by a fund.

Exchange Clearinghonse Member Guarastees. The Firm is
a member of vanous exchanges and clearinghouses that
trade and clear secunties andor derivative contracts.
Associated with its membership, the Firm may be required
1o pay @ certain amount s defermined by the exchange or
the cleannghouse in case of a default of any of its members
of pay 8 propecionate share of the fmancel chlipations of
another member that may defaull on s obligations to the
exchange or the clearinghouse. While the mules governing
different exchange or cleannghouse memberships and the
fores of these gunrantess may vary, in genceal the Firm's
obbgations under these rules would arse only af the
exchange or cleannghouse had previously exhausted its

TCS0UNCES,

In addnicn, some clearinghouse pules require members o
assume a proportionate share of losses resulting from the
cleaninghouse s Investment of guarantee fund contributions
and mitial margin and of other losses unrelated to the
default of a clearning member, i such losses exceed the
specified resources allocated for such purpose by the
cleannghouss,
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The maximum potential payout under these rules cannot be
estimated. The Firm has not recorded any contingent
lighihity in its fmancisl statements for these agreements and
believes that any potential requirement 1o make payments
under these agreements 18 remote,

= Futurgs and Chver-the-Comnter Denvatrves Clearing, The
Firm provides cleanng services on central counterpany
cleannghouses (“CCPs™) for clients that need to clear
exchange-traded and OTC derivatives contracts with CCPs.
The Firm acts as an agent in its role as clearmg member for
these client transactions. As such, the Firm does not reflect
the underbying exchange-traded or OTC  dervatives
contracts in s Consolidated Financial Statements. See
Mote 6 for a discussion of the Firm's derivatives sctivities
thet are reflected in s Consolidated Financial Stalements.

As a cleanng member, the Firm 15 responsible 1o the CCP
for the performance of its clients, collects cash and
securities collmeral (marging as well as any settlement
amounts dus from or to clients, and remits them 1o the
relevant CCF or chent in wheole or part. There are two types
of margin: {1} vanation margin 15 posted on a daily basis
based on the value of clients” derivative contracts and (2)
initail masgin is pested at meeption of a dervative contract,
generally on the basis of the potentisl changes i the
variation margin requirement for the contract.

As a clearing member, the Firm is exposed 1o the risk of
nonperformance by s clients 1o CCPs ban 15 not hable to
clients for the performance of the CCPs. Where possible,
the Finm secks to mitigate its risk to the client through the
collection of appropriate amounts of margin at m:ptim
and throughou the hife of the transsctions. In the event of
nonperformance by & client, the Firm would close out the
client’s positions and access available margin. The CCP
would wtilize any margan it halds to make asel§ whobe, wih
any remmning shortfalls reguired to be paid by the Fom as
a clearing memberdt s dificult o estimate the Firm's
maximum possihle exposure through s role as a clearing
member as it depends on the nature and volume of clients
future transactions, market conditions and potential chent
defaults, However, based wpon historical expenence, the
Firm's exposure 1s significantly metigated by the credi nsk
mitigants availabic to the Firm. As & result, management
believes that the risk of materinl boss 1o the Firm 15 expected
1o b remote

= Merger and Acguisition Guaranfees. The Firm may, from
time to time, 0 its role as investment banking advisor be
required to provide guarantess in connection with certain
European merger and pequisition transasctions. 1§ required
by the regulating authoritics, the Firm provides a guarantee
that the acquirer in the transaction has or will have
sufficient funds 1o complete the transaction and would then
be required 1o make the acquisition payments in the event
the acguirer's [unds are msulficient at the completion date
of the transaction. These arrangements generally cover the
time frume from the transiction offer date to its closing date
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and, therefore, are generally short term in nature. The Firm
believes the likelihood of any pavment by the Firm under
these arrangements is remole piven the level of s due
diligence in its rele as investment banking advisor.

In addition, m the ordinary course of business, the Firm
guarantees the debl andior certam wrading  obligations
{including obligations associated with dernvatives, foreign
exchange contracts and  the setthement of  physical
commaodities) of certain subsidiaries. These guarantees
generally are entity or product specific and are required by
investors or ading counterparties. The activities of the
Fim's subsidianies covered by these puarantees (including
any related debt or trading obligations) are mcluded in the
finsincial statements.

Finance Subsidiry

The Parent Company fully and unconditionally guarantecs the
securities issued by Morgan Sunley Finance LLC, & whally
owned finance subsidmry, No other subsidiary of the Paremt
Company guarantees these securibies.

Contingencies
Legal

In addition to the matters described below, in the normal
course of business, the Firm has been mamed, from time 1o
time, as a Jefendant in vanous legal actions, including
arbatrations, class actions and other ligation, arising in
connection with its activities as a global diversified financial
services institution. Certam of the actual or threatened legal
actions include claims for substantial compensatory andior
punitive damages or claims for indeterminate amounts of
damages. In some cases, the third-party entities that are, or
would otherwise be, the primary defendants in such cases are
bankoept, i financinl distress, of may nol honor applicable
indemnification obligatrons, These actions have mcluded, b
are not limited to, antitrust clams, claims under vanous false
claims act stamtes, and matters arising from our wealth
management businesses, sales and wading businesses, and our
activities in the capital markets.

The Firm 15 also invelved, from tme to time, mnoother reviews,
investigations and proceedings (both formal and informal) by
governmental or other regulatory agencies regarding the
Firm®s business, and mvolving, among other maners, sales,
financing, prime  brokemge. market-making  activities,
iwestment  banking  advisory services, capial markets
activities, financml products or  offerings  sponsored,
umderwritten or sold by the Firm, wealth and imvesiment
manngement  services, and accounting and  operational
matters, certan of which may result n adverse judaments,
settlements, fines, penalties, disporgement, restitution,
forfeature, mpmctions, miations on o ability © conduct
certamn business, or other relief.
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The Firm contests liability andfor the amount of damages &s
appropriste  in each pending matier. Where  available
information indicates that it is probable o labaliy had been
incurred a1 the date of the financial stlatements and the Firm
can reasonably estimate the amounst of that loss or the range
of loss, the Firm accrues an estimaled loss by a charge 1o
income, including with respect 1o certain of the individual
procecdings or investigations described below

$ormibonn M4 eR I0E3
Lagal sxpanses ¥ OWE S 483§ 443

The Firm's legal expenses can, and may in the future,
fluctuate from peniod to period, given the current environment
regarding povemment or regulatory agency investigations amd
private htigation affectung global financm] services - [irms,
including the Firm.

I myany legal peoceedings and investigations, it iz inkerently
difficull 1o determine whether any loss 15 probable of
reasonably possible, of to sstimate the amount of any less In
addstion, even where the Firm has determined that a loss is
probable or reasonably posstble or an exposuse to loss or
range of loss exists in exeess of the linhility already secrued
with respect to a previously recognized loss contingency. the
Firm may be unable to reasonably estimate the amount of the
loss or range of loss. It is particularly difficult 1o determme if
a loss s probable or reasonably possible, or 1o estimate the
amount of loss, where the faciual record 15 being developed or
contested or where pluntiffs of government entities seek
substantial or mdetermimate damages, restiution, forfeiture,
disgorgement or penalties. Numerous ssues may need 1o be
resolved in an investigation o proceeding before a
determination can be made that a loss or addiional loss (or
range of loss or range of addiional loss) 15 probable or
reasonably possible, or to estimate the amount of loss,
ingluding  through  potentimlly  lengthy  discovery o
determination of impontant el maters, determaation of
1ssues relsted to class cerification, the calcubation of damages
or other relief, and conssderation of novel or unsettled legal
questrons relevant to the proceedings or investigations in
question.

The Firm has sdentified below any indwidual proceedings or
investigations where the Firm believes a matersal loss to be
reasonably poessible. In cerain legal proceedings in which the
Firm has determined that a matenal loss is reasonably
possible, the Firm 15 unable to reasonably estimate the loss or
range of loss. There are other matters in which the Firm has
determined a loss or range of loss 1o be reasonably possible,
but the Firm does not believe, based on current knowledge
amd after consultation with counsel, that such kosses could
have a material adverse effect on the Firm's financial
statements as a whole, although the outcome of such
procesdings of investigations may sigmBicantly ampact the
Firm's business of resulls of operations [or any particular
reporting penod. or cause sipmilicanl reputational harm .
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While the Firm has sdentified below centain proceedings or
investigations  that the Firm  believes 10 be  material,
indavadually or collectively, there can be no assurance that
material losses will not be incurred from claims that have not
vet been asserted or those where potential losses have not vet
been determined (o be probable or reasonably possible,

Antitrust Related Matiers

The Fiem and cther financial institutions are respondmg 104
number of governmental investigations and cwvil litigation
mvatiers related to allegations of anticompetitive conduct in
vanous aspects of the financial services industry, mncluding
the matiers described below,

Beginning 1in February of 2016, the Firm was numed as a
deferdamt in multiple purported antitrest class actions now
consolidated into a single procesding m the United States
District Count for the Southern Distnct of New York
(SENY™) styled Mo Re: fmierest Rare Swaps Antitrust
Litrgations. Plaintifls allege, inter alia, that the Furm, together
with & mumber of other financil msttution defendants,
viclated U5, and New York state antitrust laws from 2008
through December of 2016 in conneetion with alleped efforts
to prevent the development of elecironic exchange-based
platforms for nterest rate swaps trading Complants were
filed both on behalf of a purported class of investors who
purchased interest rate swaps from defendants, as well a5 on
behall of three opesators of swap execution facilities that
allegedly were thwarted by the defendants in their efforts 10
develop such platforms. The consolidated complaints seek,
inter aliz, certification of the mvestor class of plaintiffs and
treble damages, On July 28, 2007, the court granted i part
and derned in part the defendants’ motion 1o dismiss the
complants. On December 15, 2023, the court demed the class
plamtiffs” motion for class certification. On December 29,
2023, the class plaintifTs pettioned the United States Court of
Appeals [or the Second Circunt for beave 1o appenl that
decision. Om February I8, 2024, the parties reached an
agreement in principle to seftle the class claims. On July 11,
2024, the court granted preliminary approval of the
aettlement.

The Fim is a defendant in three antitrust class action
complaints which have been consolidated info one procecding
in the United Seates District Coun for the SDNY under the
caption ity of Philadelphnia, of ol v Bank of America
Corporation, ¢f ol Plaintifls allege, inter alia, that the Firm,
together with a number of other financial instintion
defendants, violated U1S. antirust laws and relevant state
laws i connection with alleged efforts to artificially inflate
interest rates for Vansble Rate Demand Oblpgations
VRDO™). The consolidated complamt secks, inter alia,
certification of the class of plamtiffs and treble damages. The
comphint was fbed on behalf of a ¢lass of municipal Bseers
of YR for which defendants served as remarketing agent.
Cm November 2, 2020, the courl granted in pant and demed in
part the defendants’ motion to dismiss the consolidated
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complaint, dismissing state law claims, but denying dsmissal
of the U5, antitrust claims. On September 21, 2023, the coun
granted plaintifls” motion for cluss centification. On February
5, 2024, the United States Coun of Appeals for the Second
Circust pranted leave to appeal that decigion.

Eurapean Matters
Tax

In maners siyled Case number 153637 and Case nnmber
134333 the Dutch Tax Authority ("Duich Awhonty™)
challenged in the Dutch courts the prior set-off by the Firm of
approximately €124 million (approximately 5128 million)
plus accrued nterest of withholding tax credits against the
Firm's corporation tax labilities for the tx vears 2007 10
2012, The Dwich Authority alleged that the Firm was not
entitled to receive the withholding tax credits on the basis,
inter alia, that & Firm subsidiary did not hold legal title 10
ceftain securities subject to withholding tax on the relevant
dates. On Apnil 20, 2018, the Diswict Coun o Amsterdam
1ssued 8 decision diEmissing the Dudch Authonty’s clams
with respect to certain of the tax vears in dispute. On May 12,
2020, the Court of Appeal m Amsterdam pranted the Dutch
Authorty™s  appeal i matters  re-styled  Case mwmber
1200318 and Case number JE0E1S On Jamary 19, 2024,
the Dutch High Court granted the Firm's appeal m matlers re-
atvled Case number 20001884 and referred the case w0 the
Courrt of Appeal in The Haguee On Movember 11, 2024, the
Firm reached an agreement 1o settle the Duich Authoriny’s
challenges for the tac years 2007 to 2012 and made payment
of the prior set-off amounts and interest indicated above. The
case has been withdrawn,

On June 22, 2021, Dutch crminal authorties sought varows
documents in connection with an investigation of the Firm
related 1o the civil claims asserted by the Dutch Authosity
concerning the accuracy of the Firm subsidiary’s tax relums
for 2007 to 2002, The Duich enminal authorities have
requested additional information, end the Fimm is continuing
io respond fo them in comnection with their ongoing
investigation, and 15 engagmg with them as the criminal

LK. Government Hond Matter

On February 21, 2025, the UK, Competition and Markets
Authority announced a settlement with the Firm, as well as
other financial mstibstions, In conmection  with 1=
investigation of suspected anli-competitive amangements in
the Financinl services sector, specifically regarding the Firm's
activites concerming certain liquid fixed meome products
between 2009 and 2012, Scparately, on June 16, 2023, the
Firm was ramed az @ defendant in a purported antitrust class
action in the United States District Count for the SDNY sivled
Ciclafroma Firgfighters Pension and Refirement System v
Dietsche Bank Aktiengesellschafl. o al, alleging, inter alia,
that the Firm, topether with a number of other financial
institution  defendants,  violated US.  antitmest laws in
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connection with their alleged effort to fix prices of gilts traded
in the United States between 2004 and 2013, The complaint
secks, inter alia, cenification of the class of plomffs and
treble damages. On September 16, 2024, the coun granted
defendants’ joint motion o0 dismise, and the complaint was
dismasmed without prejudice, The Firm and certmin other
defendants hove resched an agreement in principle to senle
the LLS. lingation.

(Mher

On August 13, 2021, the plaintilf in Camelol Event Driven
Fund a Series of Frank Funds Trust v. Movgan Stanley & Co
L, et al filed in the Supreme Court of the State of New
York, New York County (“Supreme Court of NY™) &
purponted class sction complaint alleging violatons of federal
securties laws spainst ViscomCES (“Viacom™), certain of nt=
offtcers and directors, and the underwriters, including the
Firm, of two March 2021 Viacom offenings: a 31.7 hillion
Vigcom Chiss B Common Stock offering and a 51 billion
offersng of 5.75% Series A Mandatory Convertible Preferved
Stock (collectively, the “Offerings™). The complaint secks
certification of the class of plantiffs and unspecified
com pensatory damages and alleges, inter alia, that the Viacom
offering documents for both issuances conained material
misrepresentations and omissions  because they did not
disclose that certain of the underwmiters, including the Firm,
had  prime brokerage relationships and'or  served o
counterparties 10 certain  derivative  trensactions  with
Archeges Capital Management LE (“Archeges™), o fund with
sigruficant exposure to Viacom securities across multiple
prime brokers. The complaint aleo alleges that the offering
documents did not adequately disclose the nsks associated
with Archepos™s concentrated Viscom positions st the variowss
prime brokers, including that the unwind of those positions
could have a deleterious impact on the stock price of Viascom.
On November 5, 2020, the complamt was amended 1o add
allegations that defendants filed to disclose thm certain
underwniters, meluding the Firm, had imtended w0 unwind
Archegos’s Viacom  positions  while  smmulianeously
distributing the Offerings, On February 6, 2003, the court
issued a decsion denying motiors o dismiss as 1o the Firm
and the other underwrters, but granting the metion to disomss
as o Viscom and the Viacom mdividheal defendants. Om
February 15, 2023, the underwriters, including the Firm, filed
their notices of appeal of the deninl of their motions 1o
dismiass. On March 100 2023, the plannfl appealed the
dismassal of Viscom and the individual Viacom defendants
On April 4, 2024, the Appellate Division upheld the lower
court’s decision s o the Fiem and other underwrer
defendants that had peime brokernge relationships andior
served as counterparties to certain derivative transactions with
Archegos, disnissed the remaming underwriters, and upheld
the dismissal of Viacom and its officers and directors. On July
25, 2024, the Appellate Dhivision deraed the plantil s and the
Firms respective motions for leave 1o reargue or appeal the
Apnl 4, 2024 decision. On January 4, 2024, the court granted
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the plamtiff's moton for class cemtification, which the
delendanis have appealed.

On MMay 17, 2013, the plamtiff in [KE Interrational 84 in
Liguidation, et al. v. Morgan Stanfey, ef al filed & complaint
against the Firm and cenain affilintes in the Supreme Court of
WY, The complant alleges that defendams made material
misrepresentations and omissions in the sale 10 the plantiff of
certin | morigage  pass-through  certificates  backed by
securizalion trusts containing residential mongage loans.
The wdal amount of certificates allegedly sponsored,
underwritten and'or sold by the Firm to the plamtifl was
approximately 3133 million. The complaint alleges causes of
action against the Fim for common law fraud, fraudulent
concealment, mding and abetling el and peghgent
misrepresentation. and secks, mter alin, compensatory and
puniive damages. On October 29, 2014, the court granted in
part and denied i part the Firm’s motion to dismiss. All
chims regarding four certificates were dismissed. After these
chismissals, the remmimng amount of certificates allegedly
1ssued by the Firm or sold 1o the plainuff by the Firm was
approximately $116 million. On August 11, 2006, the
Appellate Division affirmed the trial court™s order denying in
part the Firm's motion to dismiss the complant. On July 15,
2022, the Firm filed a motion for summary judgment on all
remaming clamms. On March 1, 2023, the court granted in pan
and denied in part the Firm s motion for summarny judament,
narrawing the alleged misrepresentations at issue in the cose.
Om March 26, 2024, the Appellate Division aflirmed the trial
court's summary judament order. On August 27, 2024, the
plaintiff notified the court that in light of the court”s rulings to
exchude centaen evidence at trial, the plaintiff could not prove
15 clams a1 tmal, and requested that the court dismiss the
case, subject 1o 1t nght to appeal the evidentiary rulings. Cn
August 28, 2024, the court dismissed the case, and judgment
was entered in the Firm’s favor, The plaintiff has filed notices
of appeal

Beginning in February of 2024, Morgan Stanley Smith
Bamey LLC ("MS3B") and E*TRADE Sccurities LLC
("E*TRADE Secwrities”), amang others, kave been mamed as
defendants in multple putative class actions pending in the
federal district courts for the Distnct of New Jersey amd
SDNY. The class action claims have been brought on behalf
of brokerage, advisory and retirement account holders,
alleging varkus contractual, Dducary, and statutory claims
(inclucing under the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt
Organizations Act, 18 ULS.C. §1962(c)-(d)} that MSSE and'or
E*TRADE Securities failed to pay a reasonable mfe of
interest on s cash sweep products The cases ase at an early
stape with motions for consolidation and transfer currently
pending. Together, the complaints seck, mter alia,
certification of a class of plaintiffs, unspecified compensatory
damages, equitable and imunctive relief, and treble damages.

The Fum has been engaged with and 15 responding 10 requests
for mformation from the Enforcement Division of the SEC
regarding advisory account cash balances swept to the
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affilise bank deposst program and compliance with the
Invesiment Advisers Act of 19440, and from a stne securities
regulator regarding brokerage account cash balamces swept 1o
the affilisle bank deposit program.

15 Variahle Interest Entities and Securitization
Activities

Overview

The Fiurme is involved with vanous 3FEs in the nommal course
of business. In most cases, these entities are deemed 10 be
VIEs.

The Firm's variable intereats in VIEs include debt and equity
inferests, commitments, guarantees, dervative instruments
and certain fees The Fim's involvement with VIEs anses
primarily from:

* Interests purchased m commection with market-making

activilies, sccurittes held o s Investment  securitics

portfelic and retained interests held as & resuli of

securflizaion  activities, includmg  re-secunitizlion

transaciions.

Guaraniees Bsued and residual interests retained in

connection with municipal bond securitizations.

* Loans made te and mwvesments in VIEs that hold debt,

equity, real estate or other assets.

Derivatives entered into with VIEa

Structunng of CLMs or other asset-repackaging noles

designed 1o meet the myvestment objectives of chients.

* Other structured  transactions designed to provide fax-
efficient yields to the Firm or 1t clients.

The Firm determanes whether 1t 1% the primary beneficiary of a
VIE wpon iis mitial mvolvement with the VIE and reassesses
whether 11 15 the pnmary beneficiary on an ongoing basis &
lomg s it has any continuing involvement with the VIE, This
determination 15 based upon an analysis of the design of the
VIE, including the VIE's structure andd actavities, the power 1o
make significant economic decisions held by the Firm and by
other parties, and the vanable interests owned by the Firm and
other parties

The power to make the most sipmiicant economic decisions
may take a number of different forms in different types of
VIEs. The Fimm considers servicing or collateral management
decisions as representing the power to make the mest
sipraficant  economic decisions i transaclions suwch &
securilizations or CDOs. As a result, the Fim does not
consolidate securitizations or CDOs for which it does not act
a5 the servicer of collateral manager unbess 1 holds certain
other rights 1o replace the servicer or callateral manager of 1o
requare the higuadation of the entty. If the Firm serves as
servicer of collateral manager, or has certain other rights
deseribed in the previcus sentence, the Firm analyaes the
inferests in the VIE that it holds and consolidates only those
VIEs for which 1t hobds a potentially sigmificant interest in the
VIE.
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For many transactions, such as re-securitization ransactions,
CLNs and other assei-repackaging notes, there are no
significant econome: decisions made on an ongoing basis. In
these cases, the Firm focuses s analysis on decisions made
prior 1o the mitial closing of the transaction amd at the
termanation of the ramsaction. The Firm concluded m most of
these tramsactions that decisions made prior to the initial
closing were shared between the Frm and the imtial mvestors
based upon the nature of the assets, including whether the
assels were issued in a transaction sponzored by the Firm and
the extert of the information available 1o the Furm end 1o
investars, the number, nature and involvement of investors,
olher nghts held by the Fim and investors,  the
standardization of the legal documentation and the kevel of
continuing involvement by the Firm, including the amount
and type of interests owned by the Firm and by other
investors. The Firm focused its control decision on any right
held by the Firm or investors related to the termination of the
VIE Most re-securitizalion transactions, CLNs and other
assel-repackaging nobes have no such tlermination rghts.

Consolidated VIE Assels and Liabilities by Type of Activity

AL D beer 31, 2024 Al Dacember 31, 2023

§ v madary: VIE Assals  VIE Liatiiies VIE Assets WVIE Lisbiities
MARS" H L i % wr 3 o]
Invesiment vebides’ e 189 ™3 ]
MTCH we BTh o L]
Crivas 156 4 TR a7
Totnl 547 3 %bOT S G0 5 1ar
MO0~ Murscipal bancler opfion bords

fjage ke
rierigige lBane and Sthee s ! ki, eheing consumen oF ormensil
amaby wnc) muy ba in loen o security B The wilie of dmseb i Selerriiees]
Eanad on the far walus cf S kabiltery and the intsmsiy cemied by e Firm in sch
WIES n il Far vl Toof ol Bibslitiies dcd inbaimits dwraid M0l ol Sbasrvabls
3 Artounis skl Freicteient fusc snd CLOw

Consolidated VIE Assets and Lisbilities by Balance Shael
Caption

4 Al
Ducomber 31, Cwcmmber 31
iy iz piir A
Aazats
Cash and cash ecuivaiens ] w5 164
Trading aibnli 41 lae vilus 1,385 1557
Invesimant seourises e &0
Secunber pumhases urder acrasmenis i
sl BT
Customier and o recelables 18 26
Crisd misais 2 d
Total i 1T 8 LA10
Linkilties
O sacured financings g 1 5 1,222
Criae Babdites s BConied Axparses [+ 121
Bonckrice — 32
Total & 1,007 £ 1.ATE
— —
_l‘hmmmlﬂmh 5 42 5§ g

Consolidated VIE assets and liabilities are presented in the
previeus tables after mtercompany eliminations. Generally,
mest assets owned by consolidated VIEs cannot be removed
unilaterally by the Firm and are not available to the Firm
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while the related liahilities issued by consolidated VIEs are
nen-recourse o the Firm, However, in certain consolidated
VIEs, the Fum either has the unibateral nght 1o remove assets
or provides additonal recourse through derivatives such as
total return swaps, guarantees or other forms of invalvement

In general, the Firm's exposure 1o loss m consohdated VIEs 1=
Iimited o losses that would be sbsorbed on the VIE net assets
recognized i Ms fimancial statements, nel of amounts
absorbed by third-party variable interest holders

Han-consolidated VIEs

At Dacamber 31, 300
WIE assain (LUPEY S4T5.888 54831 53854 53 B0 § 74885
Maximum sxposure to loss’
Disht and squity irtsress §28074 & B2 &8 — 92067 S42.007
Dwrivative and oher coniracds — —_ 2 - 3,636
Commimmens, gusanisss and
e

Totnl $ 3520 § 83 R4s4 43T 316888

Carrging value of varisbla intereat s —Assstn
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The Fim's maximum exposure 1o loss 15 dependemt on the
nature of the Firm's vaniable inferest in the VIE and 35 limited
1o the notienal amounts of certwin liquidity facihities and other
credil support, tolal retern swaps and writlen put optaons, as
well as the fair valwe of certmin other derivatives and
investments the Farm has made i the VIE,

The Firm's maximum exposure to loss in the previess tables
does not nclude the offsetting benefit of hedges or any
reductions associated with the amount of collateral held as
part of a transaction with the VIE or any party 1o the VIE
directly against a specilic exposure 1o loss

Lisbilities mssued by VIEs generally are non-recourse to the
Firm,

Detail of Morgage- and Asset-Backed Securitization Assets
At December 31, 2024 Al Deceniber 01, 20025

Daglgu Dkt dridd
Lt sk
1 vy e Inimmsts UPR |I"1I|'Il¥|.|.

Runaiacial morgages § 17,38 § 24T § 17346 § 3355

Dbl and sty interasts $26074 %5 B2 5 — S1EM $ 42087 Commenzial magages BT B4y TA500 [
LS. agency collaterdited
Gty mnd sihar coninecty i = & = Ferigack CEGASHNE WMT 6260 43917 EBTS
Todal §28074 § A2 § & 91.EM §13830 Dither consumer o
Agstionl VIE ssats pwnad § 15,777 comimercial loans 40,323 2772 10,053 2831
Carrying valee of varisble Interests—Llabdkles TeAal SATRAMG 5 ST S14a 006§ B
Darvcaiies ard ochar conirass § - % = § d § — § aap
Securitization Activities

A Decarmiber 31, 2023

£ it i MARE' GO0 MTOB  O8F  Other
WIE aspets UPE) Sl44.006 1528 SIA8F §302 § GODST
W aximum sxposure o loss"

Dbt and scuity interess 52203 § 52§ — 52040 5 DOTE
Durivative and ocher conirass - — Ineg —  AdE2
CommiTientz, GuEranises e
Lr g g

435 —

Total $aifd2 § B2 $2002 S5040 8 11500
Carrging walue of varishls interssts—Assms

Dbt and scuty intrests $21209 5§ 52 § — S16% § 00T
Drathiive and olar conirasis —_ — 3 —_ 100
Total 521203 5 53 § 7 S1GED 10405
Adcitionsl VIE assets pwned § 16002
‘Carrying valus of varisble interests—Liabdities T
Daraive ara ohar conrass § — 3 — & 3§ — § 452
1. Amounds nclade backad by figage lomns. Coramercial
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3 Chhew Eimady ochides epomess G corunenced mal spisbe propsiy  and
vt fuecls.

A Wi netical arcnnts mie oilioed 0 quandylng Be ey opcuas nelated
?ﬁh such arpais @ ned reflect charges in lar walue iwctarded by the
T

4. AodSrierl ViE misets crarind cepiuiidnts e Sormyiing vk of il egseuis i non-
ondckdated WViEs b whih Be mackrm aepeaons 13 Ees B e Bon speis
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Afd pranaEy Eeleded B TieSey bde W ieeElieid dtuilies Gl i

i b iransacions enugh comdnaobusl faciltes, Quarwiess 0 samalar destotives

The previows tables mclude VIEs sponsored by unrelated
partics, as well as VIEs sponsored by the Firm, examples of
the Firm's inwvolvement with these VIEs include its secondarny
market-making sctivities and the securties held m 1=
Investment securities portfolio (see Motz 7).
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In a securiization transaction. the Firm transfers assels
(generally commercial or ressdential mordgage loans or
securities) o an SPE; sells 1o investors most of the beneficial
inferesis, such as notes or certificates, Bseed by the SPE: and,
in many cases, retains other beneficial interests. The purchase
of the wansfermed assets by the SPE is fnanced through the
sale of these interests

In many securization transactions myolving commercial
mertgage leans, the Firm transfers a portion of the assets 1o
the SPE with unrelated parties transferning the remainmg
assets. In addition. mainly in secuntization transactions
invelving residential morgage loans, the Firm may also enter
info derivative tmnsactions, primanly interest mte swaps of
nterest rate caps, with the SPE.

Although not obligated, the Firm generally makes a market in
the secunties issved by SPEs in securitization transactions. As
a market maker, the Firm offers 1o buy these secunties from,
and sell these secunities Yo, mvestors. Secunties purchased
through these market-making activities are not considered to
be retained nterests, these beneficial interests peneeally are
ineluded in Trading assets—Corporate and other debt and are
measured at fair value.

The Firm enters into derivatives, penerally interest rate swaps
amd nterest rate caps, with @ senior pavment prorty 0 many
securlization transachions. The nsks associated with these and
similar denvatives with SPEs are essentially the same as
similar derivatives with non-SPE  counterparties and are
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managed as part of the Fimm's overall exposure. See Note 6
for further informiation on dervative instruments and hedging
activilies,

Tmvestment Securities

The Fum holds securties sued by VIEs within the
Inwvestment securities portfolio, These securities are com posed
of those related to trarsactions sponsored by the federal
mortgape agencies and predominantly the mos senior
securities isswed by VIEs backed by student loans and
commercial morprre loans, Transaclions sponsored by the
federal mortgage agencwes nclude an explicot or mphen
puarantee provided by the U5, government. Additionally, the
Firm holds cemain commercial morgage-backed securities
issued by VIEs retamed as o result of the Firm s securitization
sctvaties. See Note 7 for funber information on the
Investment securitics portfolio.

Municipal Tender Option Bond Trests

In & mumcipal tender option bond trust transaction, the client
transfers & municipal bond 10 a rust The trust 1ssues short-
term securities that the Firm, as the remarketing agent, sells 1o
investors, The chent generally retmns o residual mierest. The
short-term  securities are supponted by a hquidity faeility
pursuant to which the investors may put their shon-term
interests. In most programs, a third-party provider will
provide such liquidity facility, in some programs, the Firm
provides this lguidity facility.

The Firm may, in lieu of purchasing short-term securities for
remarketing, decide to extend a temporary foan 1o the trust
The client can generally term inate the trmrsaction at any tlime,
The liquadity provider can generally terminate the transaction
upon the occwrence of certain events. When the transaction 15
terminated, the municipal bond = generally sold or retumed 10
the client Ay losses sulfered by the liquidity provider upon
the sale of the bond are the responsibality of the client. This
chligation 15 generally collateralized. Liquadity facilitics
provided to municipal tender option bond trusts are classified
as denivatives, The Firm consolidates any municipal tender
option bond trusts in which it holds the residual imerest

Credis Protection Purchased through Credis-Linked Notes

CLM imnsactions are designed 1o provide investors with
exposure (o certain credit nsk on referenced pssets, In these
transactions, the Firm transfers nssets (generally high-quality
securities of money-markel investments) to an SPE, enters
into & derivative transaction in which the SPE sells protection
on an unrelated referenced asset or group of assets, through a
credit denvative, and sells the secunties ssued by the SPE 10
investors. In some transactions, the Firm may also enter into
inferest rate or currency swaps with the SPE. Depending on
the structuse, the asets and linbilities of the SPE may be
consolidated and recogmized i the Firm's balance sheet or
accotinted for as a sale of assels.
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Upon the occurrence of a credit event related to the referenced
assel, the SPE will deliver securnies collateral as payment to
the Finm, which eéxposes the Fom 1o changes in the
collateral’s value

Denvative payments by the SPE are collateralized. The rsks
associgled with these and similar denvatives with SPEs are
essentially the same as those with non-SPE coaunterparties and
are managed as part of the Firm's overall exposure.

Cther Structiered Financings

The Finm mvests in tax equity invesiment interests issued by
entities that develop and own low-income communities
(including low-income housing projects) and entitics that
construct and own feeilities that will generite energy from
renewahble resources. The mierests entitle the Firm to a share
of tax credits and tax Josses penerated by these projects. In
addstron, the Firm has 13sued guarantees to investors in cerain
low-incomie houstng funds. The guarantees afe designed 10
return &n investor's contribution 10 a fund end the investor's
share of tax losses and tax credits expected to be generated by
the fund The Firm is alse imvolved with entities designed to
provide tax-efficient vields to the Firm or its clients,

Celtateralized Loan and Debt Qblipations

CLOs and CIX3s are SPEs that purchase a pool of assets
consisting of corporate loans, corporate bonds, ABS or
symithetic exposures on similar assets through denvatives and
1ssue muluple tranches of debt and equity secunties 1o
investors. The Frrm underwrites the secunities issued in
certain CLO transactions on behalf of unaffiliated sponsors
and provides advisory services to these unafTiliated sponsors.
The Firm sells corporate boans 10 many of these SPEs, in
some c@ses representing A significant portion of the total
assels purchased. Although not obligated, the Firm generally
makes o markel in the securities issued by SPEs in these
transactions and may retain unsold securities. These benehicial
wnderests are mcluded in Trading assets and are measmed at
fair value.

Equity-Linked Notex

ELMN transactions are designed to provide investors with
exposure to certam risks related (o the speaific cquity security,
equity index or other index. In an ELN transaction, the Firm
tvpicadly transfers to an SPE either a note assued by the Frm,
the payments on which are linked 10 the performance of a
specific equity security, equity index or other mdex or debt
securties iasued by other companies and a denvative contract,
the terms of which will relate to the performance of a specific
cquity security, equity index or other mndex These ELN
transactions with SPEs were not consobdated at December
31, 2024 or December 31, 2023,
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Transferred Assels with Continuing Involvarment continuing  involvement and received sales treatment The
AL P wransferred assets are carried at fair value prior to
US, Ageney  GLN ang securtization, and any changes in fair valee are recognized in
F i i RlL L afb Cibar the income statement. The Firm may act as underwriter of the
SPE asaats (UPB)" ! SO STANIZ 8 BT 3 2728 beneficial interests issued by these securitization vehicles, for
Wi which Investment banking revenues are recognized, The Firmi
it it o nd L L Wrr - may teinin interesis in the securitized financial assets 05 one
:E:"""’m'“"" 1.:5-__‘_'.'3?_.—:.--—3— or more tranches of the sécuritization Cerfain retained
- — ’_ mn "'“, L Lt S interests are camried at fur valoe mthe balance sheet with
PP e 2 T“ § G MR o changes in fair value recognized in the income statement. Fair
Rttt g 3 H et = value Tor these interests is measured wsing techniques that are
Yo s 8 533 O consistent with the valuation lechnigues applied to the Firm's
e ey P — ——r major calegories of assets and habilities s desenbed in Notes

Drwrtvaivs Babiltias ok = = 460 Zand 4. Further, as permitted by applicable gudance, certain
transfers of assets where the Firm’s oaly continuing
inwvolvement 15 a derivative are only reported in the following

A Dimoernber 31, 3023

P — T s * e+ Assets Sold with Retamned Exposure table.
SPE aiaacs (UPRYF 54550 STUME £ 120k £ k4l
Retalned Interests Procesds from New Sacuritization Transactions and Sales of
Invasiment grade $ 405 e $ PP - Loans
Wandnvasiment grade a3 Tas — ED £ milom 2034 2029 W
Toid 3_ThE 3 1A g i Mew rErsacions’ $ M3 § 208 £ 22
[l purchasad in the dary mathat Aistained ntenests 7,050 431 4082
P P oWE 13 a: - Sabes of corportn koars 1o CLO SPEs"? - M #2
Nonsnvesiment gmde = L] - -
= SRS TG " e e o covon o 0010 s e
Darivaiee dasets 5§ =5 -5 - § 1073 2. Sponsoend by non-afilvies
Darivative Babiltios ] — — 44
The Furm has provided, or otherwise agreed to be responsible

— {:HTH!!WH:?:? for, representations and warranties regarding certain assets
F e e lf!_ansf:md in securitization transactions sponsored by the
Invesiment gmde 3 108D § — % 108 Firm {see Mote 14)
Hon-nvesiment grada T 5O LFa]
Total S Tw s s ian, TEoGeih e Crpove
1 purehasad in 1he cinry merhat A At
Invesiment grade Y 158 § - 158 — Wﬂ:m'ﬂ- Dﬂggﬁ-'-
Hon-mesimen] grade 18 " ) 'a;l:';h—"-“- !:f;“_t;:;‘f:ﬁ_ﬂ;‘__i Ia,-u_i_;_m_mf
Toal $ 176 5 1 % 187 e
MY - B i =% i Assnis unks 3 92,880 5 H2E
Durivacios Batileins 400 e 0 e e

Fair Vale at Dhscarmber 31, 2023 L e i
(Ll Lowi2  Lwd  To dancn shemt e eeain the wn w
Retsned Interests
invaainent arsde i FT g oty ' :mmwmmummwumm
Hon-nvaatmen] grade 10 54 L]
Toisl L] hEE S L ok The Firm enters into transactions m which it sells securities,
Interaats purchased in the secandary marhet’ primarily equities, and contemporanecusly enters into
i it L § LT ] 2 ] L bilasteral OTC derivatives with the purchasers of the
hion imvegamen grde 12 A 10 sacurities, through which it retsing exposure to the sold
Tedsl £ & £ ns ] S
Diarivative anssis E-1 1073 § -_— 1073
Drtvahe Bntikins I - [

ML~ Femscieniial monigags ks

CML —Comraimial rsorgags loars

b Amoainds vclpds CLO Wanaachons: managsd by uneslated thicd pates

2 Ferviaunds vucs sty i e by anmbned tonsisom

A Arounds ndhads ranesciions whees the Fam aiss holdy retnned intesrests & pard
af T ranatm

The previous tables include transactions with SPEs m which
the Firm, acting as principal, transferred financeal assets with
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16. Regulatory Requirements Capital Buffer Requiremants
. At Dacambar
ftory O I F k
Regulatory Capital Framewor Hu“ " :m 5 :1.2:;;;.{1
The Firm is.an FHC under the Bank Hobding Company Act of Barardeed . Diacardiad  ASanced
1956, as amended, and s subgect o0 the regulation and Capltal basflars '
oversight of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve Capiiall consarvation batar iE - 25%
Syatem (“Federal Reserve™). The Federal Reserve establishes sCH o s4% A
capital requirements for the Fim, inchuding  “well- G-EIB eapial surcharge L% 3% %
capitalized” standards, and evaluates the Fim's complinnce S’ o % %
with such capital requirements. The OCC establishes similar G tall buTor reguinemnent 0% BA% 5%

capital requirements and standards for the Fimi's U3, bank
subsidiaries,  inchuding, among  others, MSENA and
MSPENA  (together, “US  Bank  Subsidiaries™), The
regulatory capital requirenients are largely based on the Basel
11l capital standards established by the Basel Committes on
Banking Supervision and also miplement certain provisions of
the Diedd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection
Act, In addstion. many of the Fums regulated subsidhares are
subyect to regulatory capatal requirements, including regulated
subsidiaries registered as swap dealers with the CFTC or
conditionally registered as security-based swap dealers with
the SEC or registered as broker-dealers or lutures comm ission
merchants.

Regulatory Capital Requirements

The Firm 15 required to maimtain minmum risk-based and
leverage-based capital ratics under repulatory  capital
requirements. A summary of the calculations of regulatory
capital and RWA follows.

Rigk-Based Regwlptory Caprial Risk-baged capital ratio
requirements apply to Commoen Equity Teer 1 ("CET17)
capatal, Tier 1 capital and Total capital (which mcludes Tier 2
capital), each a5 a pereentage of RWA, and consist of
reguilatory minomwim reguired mtios plus the Firm's capatal
bulfer requirement. Capital requirements require certaim
adjustments to, and deductions from, capital for purposes of
determining these ratios

CECL Dferral, Beginming on Janwary 1, 2020, the Fim
elected to defer the effect of the adoption of CECL on s risk-
based and leverage-based capital amounts and ratios, as well
a5 RWA, adasted average assets and supplementary Jevermge
exposure caleulations, over a five-vear transiton perwsl, The
deferral mpacts began to phase in at 25% per vear from
January 1, 2022 and were phased-m at 75% from January 1,
2024, The deferral mpacis were fully phased-in from January
1. 2025,

(k]|

1 Tha CO8 can b sl g 1 35% Bt i Suimantly sl By e Fadersl Rstaie o
P

The capital bulfer requirement represents the amount of CET1
capital the Firm must maintsm above the minimum rask-based
capital requirements in order to avoid restrictions on the
Firm’s ability to make capstal distributecns, ncluding the
payment of dividends and the repurchase of stock, and to pay
diseretionary boneses 1o executive officers. The Fum s capital
buffer requrement computed wnder the  standardized
approaches for caleulating credit risk and market nisk RAWA
(" Standardized Approach™) is equal 1o the sum of the 5CB, G-
SIB capital surcharge and CCyB, and the capital bulfer
requirement computed under the applicable  advanced
approaches for calculating credn sk, market nsk and
operational risk RWA (" Advanced Approach™) i equal to the
sum of the 25% capital conservation buffer, G-SIB capital
surcharge and CCOvB.

Risk-Basad Regulatory Capital Ratio Requirements
At Dacambar

1] Ai M, 2024 ars
Dacambar 31, Decamher 30, Decambear 31,
Riegulat 2024 2023 Hz3
o Miimum  EandirGred  Soarcarcoed  Adeanoed
I
Raquirgd
GETY captal
ratio 4.5% 15% 1L 100%
Thaa 1 capital
i (A 15.0% 14.4% 1158%
Tl capital
Falis 0% 170 184 1345%
LI T T —— P ragulslory Puseion phe e capal buter
e
Risk-Weighred Assets

EWA reflects both the Firmi's on- and off-balance sheet risk,
as well as capital charges attnbuiable 1o the nsk of kess
arisifg from the following:

+ Credit Rugk: The failure of a borrower, counterpasty or
isswer to meet its financial obligations 1o the Firm,

= Market Risk: Adverse changes in the level of one or more
market prices, rates, mdices, volatlities, comrelations or
other market factors, such az market liquidity; and

+ Operational Risk: [nadequate or failed processes or systems
from himan fetors or from exstemal events (eg., [raud,
theft, legal and comphance nisks, evberattacks or damage 1o
phivsical sssets).
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The Firm's nsk-based capital ratios are computed under both
(i) the Standardized Approach and (u) the Advanced
Approach. The credit nsk RWA calculations between the two
appreaches differ in that the Standardized Approach requires
enlculation of K'WA using prescribed risk weights, whereas
the Advanced Approach utilizes models to caleulate exposure
amounts and risk weights. At December 31, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, the differences between the actual and
required ratio were lower under the Standardized Approach

Leverage-Based Regnifatory Capital, Leverage-based capital
requirements include a minimum Tier | leverge mtio of 4%,
a minimum SLE of 3% and an enhanced SLE capital buffer
of at least 2%.

Tha Firm"s Regufatory Capital and Capital Ratios
Risk-basad caphal

Stardardlzed -

At Decomber 31,  As December 31,
5 i ot 4 2033
Risk-Basesd capital
CETH caganl 3 TEO0S £ A, 448
Tier 1 capiial B4, T80 a0
Tl capital 95,567 a.a7a
Tenal RWA AT1, 83 456,063
Risk-bosed capivs] rato
CETH cageal 155 5%
Tior 1 capital 18.0% 1%
Tecal capital 20,%% 155
Required rath’
CET1 cagml 135% 12:0%
Tieer 1 capital 1800 14.4%
Tecal capital 17.0% 16.A%

1 Piwsprnd ven den koo o any Bu'lers appaable a1 ! e date preented

Leveraged-beved capital

M Dacembeer 31, A1 Decenster 31,
£ 1 i 2024 2023
Laveraged-bassd capital
Agpeied averigs assam’ 3 1,223,778 5 1,155 630
Segplmanian e miage axpasure’ 1,617,687 1AE 82
Lawarnged based eaplial retie
Theer 1 levirage: [ % &%
e 5o% 55%
Raquired ratin® o
Thaar 1 lvrage A 4.00%
R Al L ]

1 Aduivied gwerage aesets iepressnts Be denominator of The Tier | leverags oo
and s composed of Be average daly balwos of conachdaied on balance stee
ansnts Gt gquintin sacing on the repective Bakines shest datis, edused by
dinaficend goodwill, inbgibls seesby, il o coversd Aandh, deficed
baraft peomion plan ssssby aherbis gan oo sals boei gsesbl ol inda
sEerlicaliond, ErorEiteit i oo San el Bslfumist SR S8fred e
aninth e e cagbal dec rticn

¥ ¥ g map in thay mam of Adpsibed eaiigs st oed in
e Tite 1 lecaoge rabin el ot priesady. () o
o ¥ i it g o vt it reenl grin gl il 5!
scld crml potackcn offast by quubfying purchiesd credl pestection, {i) tha
Coundepanty CoRER fih for repo style mansactions. and (E) ha credl scquiakent
et o 7. Bikrece shesel mapOsSiHeS

3 P i ien incheibo o iy Butiers of

a5 o thes dade =
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1.5, Bank Subsidiaries” Regulatory Capital and Capital
Ratios

The OCC establishes capital requirements for the U5, Bank
Subsadiaries, and evaluates their compliance with such capital
requirements. Regulatory capital requirements for the U5
Bank Subsidiaries are calculated in a similar manner to the
Firm's regulatory  capital requirements, ahhough G-SIB
capital surcharge and SCB requirements do not apply to the
1.5, Bank Subsidiaries.

The OCC's regulatory capital framework mchedes Prompl
Comrective  Action  (CPCA™) standards, incleding  “well-
capitalized” PCA standards that are based on specified
regulatory capital rtio minmums. For the Firm 1o remain an
FHC, itz LS. Bank Subsidiaries must remain well-capiialized
in accordance with the OOC"s PCA standards. In addition,
fatture by the U15 Bank Subsidiaries to meet minimum
capital requirements may nesult in certain mandatory and
discretionary actions by regulators that, i undertaken, could
have a direct material effect on the US Bank Subsidinnes’
and the Firm's financial statements

At December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2003, MSBNA and
MSPENA nsk-based capatal ratios are based on the
Sundardized Approach rules. Beginning on January 1, 2020,
MSBNA and MSPENA clected to defer the effect of the
adaption of CECL on risk-hased capital amounts and ratios,
a5 well os RWA, adjusted average assets and supplementary
leverage exposare caleulations, over a five-year transition
period. The deferral impacts began 10 phase in at 25% per
vear from Jarmnry 1, 2022 and were phased-m at 75% from
Jamary 1, 2024 The deferral impacts were fully phased-in
from January 1, 2025,

MSBNA’s Regulatory Capital

Wl 1 ml
Captal B M, Nk A

Shmiors  Aecuiense!  Rae’  Amcoet  Rato  Amount Ratio
Risk-bassd caplial

CET1 capital ES'% TO%W S22185 201 % 21925 2T %
Tiar 1 capital 0% WE% IR6: 00 % NS T %
Total cayizal TR0%  ILEW 22993 209 % I 6%
Tiad 1 Mrniigd BO%  A0% S22AB5 AT % $219525 106%
SLR &0 % L0% 2265 TA% A5 A%

386/432

oOoOooodn



Table of Contenis

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

MSPBNA's Regulatory Capital

e Mpvepte  Aiprte
& iy mio Raquaaman  Rati Amourt  Rats  Amccr; Rado
Risk-Bussd capital
CETH caginl ES% 0% SU8BTI ZEAW §1512% A%

Thear 1 eapital B % BE%N 16672 E1%W 18343 A%

Teval cepital TRO%  IRS% 17004 BN 15ATH AN
Lowarage-haasd capitsl
Tier | levmrage B0 40 % S1B,6T2 7.7 % 518242 74 %

ELR D% 0% 16T 7AW AL v

1 Rngared ralios ane inchusse 0! any bu¥am applicsbls a3 0! tha dain prasantsd
Fadim by misnkadn the Du®ars would resoll i resinicions on e abdty b makie
capital dintribaticrn. invchuding i payient cf dwidands

Addinonally, MSBNA is conditionally registerad with the
SEC as a sccurity-based swap dealer and 15 registered with the
CFTC as a swap dealer. However, as MSBMNA is prudentally
regulated as a bank, us capital requirements contmue to be
determined by the OCC

(Mher Regulatory Capital Bequire ments
M54C0. Regulatory Capital

At A
Becembaer 34, 3024  December 31, JE3

F 1 e
el cepital 5 18,483 £ 1ez
Esicass nat capial 13,883 LTy

ME&Co. 15 regwtered a3 a broker-deater and a futures
commission merchant with the SEC and the CFTC,
respeciively, and 15 regisiered as a swap dealer with the
CFTC

As an Ahermative Met Capital broker-dealer, and in
stcordance with Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange
Act™) Rule 15¢3-1, Appendix B M3&Co, s subject 1o
minmum net capilal and tentative net capital requirements
and operates with capital in excess of its regulatory capital
requiremenis. As a fulures commission merchant and
regastered swap dealer, ME3&Co. s subject to CFTC capital
requirements. In sddiion, M3&Co. must notily the SEC if us
tentative net capital falls below certain levels At December
31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, MS&Co. exceoded 1z net
capital requirement and had tentative net capital in excess of
the mirmum and notification requirements.

Other Regulated Subsidiaries

Certain  other subsidiarses are also subject to various
regulatory capatal requirements. Such subsidianes include the
following, each of which operated with capital 1n excess of
their respective regulatory  capital requirements as of
December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, as applicable:

+ MSSE, a remstered US. broker-dealer and introducing
broker for the futures business, 1s subject to, respectively,
the minimum net capital requirements of the SEC and
CFTC
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+ MSIF, a London-based broker-dealer subsidiary, is subject
1o the capital requirements of the Prudential Regulation
Authority (“PRA™). MSIP 15 also condattonally registered
with the SEC as a security-based swap dealer and registered
with the CFTC a3 a swap dealer, It currently complies with
home-country capital requirements m lew of SEC and
CFTC  capital  requirements  pursusnt  to applicable
substituted compliance rules.

» Morpan Stanley Ewrope Holdmgs SE Group ("MSEHSE
Group™), incleding MSESE, a Germany-based broker-
dealer, 15 subject to the capial requirements of the
European Central Bank, BaFin and the German Central
Bank. MSESE is also conditionally registered with the SEC
as a securily-based swap dealér and registered with the
CFTC as a swap dealer. It currently complies with home-
country capital requirements i leu of SEC and CFTC
capial requirements pursuant o applicable  substiuted
complince rules.

+ MSMS, & Tokyo-based broker-dealer subsidiary, 15 subpect
to the capital requirements of the Financial Services
Agency. MSMS s also registered with the CFTC as a swap
dealer but 15 currently complying with home-country capital
requiremients in lzeu of CFTC capral requirements pursuant
1o applicable substituted complinnes rules.

= MSCS, a U5 entity and the Faom's pnmary non-bank
securtly-based swap dealer. is conditionally registered with
the SEC as a security-based swap dealer, registered with the
SEC as an OTC derivatives deaber and registered with the
CFIC a3 a swap dealer, MSCS i3 subject 1o the capital
regquirements of both regulators.

= MSCG, a LS. entity, 15 regastered with the CFTC as a swap
dealer and 13 subject to its capital requirements.

Certain other U5, and non-U.S, subsidiaries of the Firm are
subject to various secunities, commediies and banking
regulstions, and capial adequacy requirements promulzated
by the regulatory and exchange authorities of the countries in
which they operate. These subsidiaries have also corgistently
operated with capiial v excess of therr local capatal sdequacy
Feduiremerils

Restrictions on Paymenis

The regulatory capital requirements referred 1o above, and
cerlain covenants comamed in varous agreements governing
indebtedness of the Firm, may restrict the Firm's abihty to
withdraw capital from its subsidiaries. The following table
represents net assels of consolidaed subsidiarres that may be
restricted as to the payment of cash dividends and advances 1o
the Parent Company.

i AL
Docember 34, Dwcamber 31
5y i 2024 20
Rsiricing nal asiaty 5 28,814 5 40 08
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17. Total Equity Description of Preferred Stock as of December 31, 2024
Radempiaon
Morgan Stanley Shareholders’ Equity R ccic - —
Sarbes” ¥ lsmusd  per SRare  par Share’ Ca®
Praforred Stock A kb G0 100G F GhO00  Curendy recesmabls
ot 1,160,791 i 1100 Cumenty mcasmabls
Shanes
Chitzanding Carryieg Vake E A s L] h00h  Cursndly recesmabis
W o Bk v F 34,000 1,000 25000 Cumarcl recesmiabis
‘:,':; Bacambar 31, p.”:’m"”“ Dacamber 31, Dacembar 31, ] At 500 0000 25000 Curmandy rceanabls
W o4 el Share 2024 a0 K 40,000 1000 26000 April 18, 20T
Sarie L 0,000 1.0 6000 January 15, 202
A 44,000 3 24,000 § 1100 8 1180 M 400,000 [y 1000 September 15, S056
< E19, 482 g0t i e N 3000 W 00000 Oczoker 2. 2025
E M50 25000 BEZ o 2 B0 1,000 20,000 January 18, 2027
£ 000 29,000 B850 B0 e 40,600 1,000 26,000 Droker 15, HET
! oo 25000 1,000 1000 i 41,500 1 00 000 Ooicber 16, 202
b i e oo 1. Al shares issesd cavadabien. Echr showm hoass a goar wiaks 2750304
- " e
.- i 5 ool e 2 Ditvkdanchs o Sarien A arm barsac on 1 flanking riée. and dvidencs on Seres €, L
L A0, G 1,004 430 4 0. P e 3 awe bamad o n Sosd et Dividends. on off offer Serias sew based on
300 Aand to Azabing ive.
H 100,000 od 0 A Serws A and © am medesmable o e rederplion price phs acomesd and unpakd
o Eellcs) 25,000 1,300 1,300 e, ragadiess of e achually declarsd, up & B
[ ey 25,000 1,000 106 wockichng tha dsin of mademplion. Al offes Saries s medesmabls ol the
recineiplon peie phis any dacl and wrpakd up ke bl antdudng the
[*] £, D 25,000 1,000 = vt Sieaed foor rncdarplion
Teasl 5 9,750 £ B7s0 4 %ﬂﬁﬂfﬂn mﬂlﬂrﬂ:&ihfhﬂﬁ:ﬂﬂ:ﬁwﬂm
Shafes authorkoed 0000000 i rackmarriabsle, a8 e Fieals Spticn (1 whel 4 i, et B 12 i, 3 vy
i T i o0 cr Sar vl rechrmpticn e o (5] inowleks bul nat i pat
1 Sevien © prateend stock s heid by MUFG uw“.ﬂmﬂhﬂﬂe—hﬁjmmn&hnmmm

The Firm's preferred stock has o preferénce over ils common 5 Saiwd 0 Hononovsling peipsiudl prefeied alock Diidecds on e Seden ©

stock wpon liquidation. The Firm s prelemed stock qualifies as Board of Dimctors, i cash. M 0w (abe o 10% poe M =f e Repokdaion
i in Ti ; i i pratiranca: of 51000 pid share

and is included in Tier 1 njputal m accordance with regulatory byt i —

capatal requirements {see Nate 16) 7. Thea Farm b Saariass 0 Priiemet Sinek o daly 32, 2020

Common Stock

Rolfforeard of Commeon Stock Dutstanding

iy ko 2024 2023

Sihastes, cLTUARRG AL baGIRTIRG of peiod 1,827 1Eis
Treanury sinck purchases’ 43y {71}
Crthes” ] Fal
Shares outstanding af end of period 4,807 12T

I'Mrmhhdfmlu--mhw&hfmh

3 Obwe wvchudees s albuins seased B e fafeted e amglenae slock it and

sasvd for RELP corresrabons
Share Reparchases
§ iy i M4 123
rah e of correne ook under tha Fimm's
e Fodgedrliin Progrns $ O3S 5 S0

On June 28, 2024, the Fim announced that s Board of
Directors reauthorized & multi-vear repurchase program of up
e 520 billioh of ouwtstanding common steck (the “Share
Repurchase Awhonzaton™), without a set expiration date,
beginning 1 the third quarter of 2024, which will be
exercised from time (o time ag conditions warrant

Purseant 1o the Share Repurchase Program, the Firm
considers, among other things, business sepment capital
necds, as well as stock-baged compensation and benefit plan
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requiremens. Share repurchases under the program will be Components of Pariod Changes in OCI

exercised from ume 1o time ot prices the Firm deems p—

appropriate subject to various Belors, including the Firm's T e T Ere g iy

capital position and market conditions. The share repurchases Gmin  TaxBane®  Gain  coeyoling

may be effected through open market purchases of privately :;:a. Qosa} 1 _gers e

negotmted transactions, mcll.h,l._mg through Rule 10b5-1 plans, OC] acivity 5 7S et D
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Cumulative foreign currensy translation adjustments include
gams or losses resultmg from transbating foreign currency
fimancial  statements  from  their  respective  functional
currencies 1o U5, dollars, net of hedge gains of losses and
relmted tax effects. The Finm uses forgign currensy contracts
to manage the cumency exposure relating o s net
inwestments @ non-LJ.5.  dollar  functional  cwrmency
subsidiaries and determines the amount of exposure to hedge
on a pre-tax basis. The Firm may also elect not to hedge 1=
nel investments n certain foreign operations due to market
conditions o other reasons, includimg the availkabiliy of
Vanouws currency commets ai acceptable cosis Information
reloting to the effects on cumulatve foreign curmency
translation adjustments that resulted from the tmnslation of
foreign currency fimancial statements and from gains and
Ipases from hedaes of the Fom's net investments in rson-11.5,
dollar functional currency subsidiaries is summarized in the
previous table

Drecember 2024 Form 10-K

wneome statenient based on the nature of the nstrument and
related market conventions. When included &s a component of
the insirument’s fair value, interest is included within Trading
revenues of [nvestments revenues. Otherwise, it 15 inchuded
within Interest income or Interest expense.

Acorued Interast
At Al
Decemnber 31, DCecamba 3,
§ iy i Foird Fura
Customier and o @l acaboatde 5 3322 § 4.4
Catooner and ofher payables 350 438405

19. Deferred Compensation Plans and Carried
Interest Compensation

Steck-Based Com pensation Plans

Certain current and former employees of the Firm participate
in the Firm's stock-based compensition plans, These plans
include B3Us, PSUs and an ESFR
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Unrecognized Compensation Cost Related to Stock-Based
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Awards Granted Waighind

Avarage
1] Hurmdsesr of A:-lﬂ:g.ui

o ber 31, ares By miDas =1 Fai Wk
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In conmpection  with awards under s stock-based
compensation plans, the Fum 1 authonzed 1o gsue shares of
common steck beld in treasury of newly isswed shares.

The Firm penerally uses treasury shares, if avalable, 10
dehver shares to employees or employee stock trusts and has
an argoing repurchnse authorization that meludes repurchases
in  connection  with  awards  under s stock-based
compensation plans.

Common Shares Available for Future Awards under Stogk-
Based Compensation Plans
Ag
December 31,
iy 024
Sihams

Rl

See Note 17 for additonal information on the Fam®s Share
Repurchase Program

Restricted Stock Units

R5Us are subject (o vesting over time, generally one 1o seven
vears from the date of award, contingent upon continued
employment and subject to restnctions on sale, wansfer or
sssipmment until conversion to common stock. All or a
porticn of an award may be forfeited if employment 1s
termirmted before the end of the relevant vesting period or
canceled after the relevant vesting penod in certiin siuations
Recipients of RSUs may have veting nights, at the Firm's
discretion, and generally receive dividend equivalents if the
awards vest

1 Unswsind REUS repmssnt swards whers recipisnts haes ol io saiafy sither e
maphci wesiing berms Or eetieresnt sbgdds (egEnements

Fair Valus of RSU Activity”

B by iy 2l frunral arrrd
Cantvaninng 1o sommon iok 3 eS8 209§ oM
Vasiod ATz mm0 24k

1. Fosl wishon o Cofreisniad Siook i based on M Shins prics S Coiesrsion. Fs vk o
st ik is based on Ba shars prcs o Ma dats of vestng

Performance- Based Stock Units

PELUs vest and convert to shares of commaon stock only if the
Firm  satisfies, over a three-year performance  perod,
performance goals that ane determined on the award date. The
number of FSU's that may vest ranges from (%% to 150 of
the target award, based an the Fim's level of achievement of
the specified performance goals. One-half of a PSU award 1s
ecamed based on the Firm's average refumn on tangible
common  cquity (M3 Awverage ROTCE™) over the
performance period. The ether halfl of a FSU award is earned
based on the Firm's total sharcholder returmn, relatve to the
todal sharcholder retum of the SE&P 500 Financials Sector
Index (M3 Relative TSR™) for awards granted prior to 2023,
or for PSUT pwards granted from 2023 onwards based on the
M3 Average ROTCE relative 1o the Return on Tangible
Common Equity of each member of the defined comparisen
group (M5 Relative ROTCE™). PSUsz have vesting,
conversioh and cancellation provisions that are generally
similar 1o those of RSUs, Dividend equivalents that acerue en
these awards are paid in cash when the awards convert. At
December 31, 2024, approximately 2.8 million PSUs al targel
were outstanding
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The MS Relative TSR fair values on the award date were
estimated wsing a Monte Carlo simulation and the following
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20. Emplovee Benefit Plans
Pension Plans
HNat Pariodic Benefit Expanse (Incoma)
Parsion Fanrs
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P ] 20 % - - 1m
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The risk-free interest rate was determined based on the yields
avalable on U5, Treasury zero-coupon issues. The expected
stock  price  volatility was determined wing  historical
volanlity. The comelation coefficient was developed based on
historical price data of the Firm and the S&P 500 Financials
Sector Indexe The mode]l uses an expected dividend yield
equivalent to reinvesting dividends.

Deferred Cash-Rased Com prosation Flans
DCF generally provide a retum 1o the plan participants based
upon the performance of each participant™s referenced

investments.

Dufarred Cash-Basad Compansation Expanse

¥ it moies R4 rorad INEE

[ A ——, $ 05 Em s 18
Fintum on refssened imvesiments Iy S MU
ol $ 4442 5 1381 5 db
Fintimment-skgitle awards’ A MR w0% -

| Tolal mapenas anchides defsesd cashDessd compenastion asopsted o ba
menwdad i Jereery oF the loliowing year thet doss nol conten & s Seneion
T ]

Carried Interest Com pensation
The Firm geneeally recognizes compensation expense for any

porticn of camed nterest (both realized and unrealized) that
is allocated to employees.

Carried Interest Compansation Expense

§ in mimns rairl 0 HYEZ
Expars $ 1% dd 3 I

Diocember 2024 Form 10-K

Certmn current and foemer LS, emplovees of the Fom and its
U5, affilintes who were hired before July 1, 2007 are coverad
by the LS. pensson plan, a non-contrbutory defined benelit
pension plan that 15 qualified under Section 400(a) of the
Internal Reverse Code ("US. Qualified Plan™, The 1.5,
Cualified Plan has censed future benefit accruals,

The Morgen Stanfey Supplemental Executive Retirement ansd
Execess Plan (“SEREF), i3 a non-contnibutory defined benefnt
plan that iz not qualified under Section $01(a) of the Internal
Revenue Code, has ceased future benefit aconels,

Certain of the Firm's non-U.S. subsidianes also have defined
benelit pension plans covering their elbgible current and
Tormer emplovees.

The Firm's pension plans generally provade pension benefis
that are based on each emplovee's years of credited service
and on compensation levels specified i the plans,

Roliforward of Pre-tax AOCI

Praremicary Plans
Begmrieg bularce $ @ E (MErE )
Nel gain (loss) 1z] (10 o8
et o o] PRIoE Sareion Coas 1 i i
Amartiration of ref (geins) keses n 181 =
Pars st Ssman!s, curailments and
_amendments L] 3 -
Changes recagnioed In B ) {1665} 52
Ending balanoe $ @125 (@25 (M8

The Fiom generally amortizes mto net periodic benefit
expense {income) the wnrecogruzed net gains and losses
exceeding - 108 of the preater of the projpected benefit
obligation or the market-related value of plan assets. The 1S,
pension plans amortize the unrecognized net gains and losses
over the avermge life expectancy of panticipants, The
remaiming plans generally amortize the unrecognized net
gains and losses and prior serviee credit over the average
remaining service period of active participants

138
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The accountmg for pension  plans  mvolves  certmn
msumptions and estimatgs, The expected long-term rate of
relurn for the US CQualified Plan was estimated by
computing a weighted average of the underlying long-term
expected retums based on the mvestment managers’ tarpet
allocations

Benefit Obligation and Funded Siatus

Ralliforsard of the Propectsd Banefit Obligation and Fair Valus
of Plan Assels
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The pension plans included in the tahle above may differ
based on their funding status as of December 31 of each year

Weighled Average Assumplions Used to Debarming Projectid
Banafit Obligation

_ Parsior Flam.

- =

i
Déchmber 11, Drscbedar 31,
2024 2

Dzt mia 539 % 478 %%

The discount rales used (o determing the benefit obligation
were selected by the Fum, in consulation with s
independent actuary. The ULS. pension plans use @ pension
discount yield curve based on the characteristics of the plans,
cach determined medependently. The pension discount yield
curve represents spol discount yeelds based on duration
implicit in a representative broad-based As-rated corporate
bond wuverse of high-quality fixed income mvestments, For

Panssen Pl all mon-L.5. pension plans, the assumed discount rates are
£ i millrs Ty ey based on the nature of lishilities, local economic
“Rolforward af projectnd benefit obligation crvirenments and avadable bond indices.

Bt oliligalicn &1 Beginnieg of yaer 3 2078 § 2007
Serioe oost 13 20 Plan Assets
Intmms) eost a7 140
Actuarial {gar} boss' [t 8 Fair Value of Plan Assats
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Pl wthiants m s T Lowll Lz Les3  Toml
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Funded furfundad) stabuy 5 [578) § 1563 Forsigr funds:
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Lishisiss (845 B35} _ Targeted cash Sow 1
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Total liabilities § =% (A% =% (3
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Al At
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¥ iy s 2024 2023
Persion plars § 2740 5 2o

Pansien Plans with Projected Banefit Obligations in Excess

of tha Fair Value of Plan Assats
At Al
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There were no transfers between levels during 2024 and 2003

The U5, Cuealified Plan assets represent 86% and 87% of the
Firm®s total pension plan assets at December 31, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, respectively. The U5 Cualified Flan
uses 3 combination of active and nisk-contralled fixed income
investment strategies. The [ived income asset allocation
consists primantly of fxed meome securities and related
denvative instruments designed Lo approsimate the expected
cash flows of the plan’s labiltics to help reduce plan
exposiife 10 inlerest fate vanmtion and 1o better align assets
with the obhgatien. The longer-duration Nxed income
allocation is expected 1o help protéct the plan’s funded status
and maintam the stability of plan comtributions over the long
run. The investment portfolic performance i assessed by
com paring actml investment performance with changes in the
estimated present value of the U5, Cualified Plan's benefit
obligation.

Derivative instruments are permitted in the US Cualified
Flam's investment portfolio only o the extent that they
comply with all of the plan’s investment policy guidelines and
are consetent with the plan's nisk and return objectives.

As a Tundamental operating principle, any restrictions on the
underlying assets apply 10 the respective dervative progiuct,
This includes percemtape allocations and credit gquality.
Derivatives are used solely for the purpose of enhancing

Drecember 2024 Form 10-K
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nvestment retums in the underlving asscts and not 1o
circumvent portfolio restrictions.

Plan assels are measured al far value using valuabion
techmques that are consistent with the valuation technigques
applicd to the Firm"s major categories of assets and habilities
as deseribed m Motes 2 and 4 OTC denvative  contracts
consist of investments in mlerest rule swaps and 1otal retum
swaps. Other investments consist of insurance contracts held
by non-U.S.-based plans, The insurance contracts are valued
based on the premium reserve of the insurer for a guarantee
that the insurer has given 1o the employee benefn plan tha
approximates  fmir wvalue The insurance contracts are
categorized i Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

Commangled trust funds are privately offered funds regulaied,
supervised and subject 1o periodic examination by a 1S,
federal or state agency and available to mstitutional clients.
The trust must be mamtained for the collective investment or
reinvesiment of assets comtributed %o it from US. tax-
qualified emplovee benefit plans maintained by more than one
employer or controlled group of corporations. The sporsar of
the commingled trust funds values the funds based on the fair
value of the underling secunties. Commangled trust funds
are redeemable af NAV at the mensurement date or in the near
future,

Some non-105 -based plans hold foreign funds that consist of
investments in fixed income funds and hguidity funds, Fixed
income funds and targeted cash fow funds are designed to
provide @ series of fixed annual cash flows achieved by
primarly investing in government bonds. Liquidity funds
place a high priority on capital preservation, stable value and
a hgh hgudity of assets. Forewgn funds are readily
redeemable at NAV.

The Firm generally conssders the NAV of commingled trust
funds and foreign funds provided by the fund manager 1o be
the best estimate of feir vahae.

Expected Contributisns

The Fim's policy 15 to fund at least the amount sulflicient 1o
meed  mmmmum  funding  requirements  under  applicable
employes benefit and tax laws. At December 31, 2024, the
Firm expected to contribute approximately $40 million to ns
pension plans in 2025 based wpon the plans’ current funded
status and expected asset relum assumplions for 2025,

Expacted Future Benefit Paymants
A0 boar 39, 7024
] Parsice Plars
025 13 ELL]
126 167
2y iTa
Faik) T8
229 ELE|
200-21004 568
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401(k} Plan 21. Income Taxes
Expare % 400 5 397 5 385 Components of Provigion for Income Taxes
LLE. employees meeting certain eligibility requirements may -*:-'-T!?- > o &=
participate in the Firen"s 401(k) plan. B
= i . . Faceral 3 2011 3 1090 5 284
Eligible emplovees receive discretionary d01(k) matching P ey s P
cash contnbutions as determined annually by the Firm, The Homdl B
Firm penerally matched eligible employee comtribitions up to UK e ar e
the IRS limit at 4%, or 5% up to a certain compensation level, [res 43 127 7
in 2024 and 2023, Eligible emplovess with eligible pay less Japan 18 e 108
than or expaal 10 3100,001 also recewved a fixed comnbution Braci 57 437 4
equal to 2% of ehgible pay. Contributions are mvested among Ohar Eied 4 8
avalable funds according to cach participant™s nvestment Total 3 3315 § 30dE 5 375G
direction and are mecluded in the Firm's 401(k) experse
Daferrad
Non-U.S. Defined Contribution Pension Plans .5
Fachral ] 2 5 (s (203
£ mo HM mn mn Fmiapearcrwm = i
Hxfnes. G I O 1 B - Mo L5,
' i ' ' UK 4z 12 s
The Firm maimains sepamate defined contmbation pension koia’ 55 (12} -
plans that cover eligible employess of certan non-U.5, dapan 3 (13 0
submdiaries. Under such plans, comrnbutions are gencrally Brari’ & (3} *
determined based on a fixed rate of base salary with cerfain _ Grher = [
vesting fequirements Tota s_es s wo
Porisvialae fF iaaie lans $ 407 § 2883 § 2500

1. 2ike, ielle was prarsenatnd sepatabaly fx e Bl e The prics pariccl amcants
for (e haws baee daagpiegpeied 1o aschids ndia bo align with the oo

PO
T I 20, Bracd wick prasebivbicl Seagoulaby foo i Bl e The grieal pawiod arasunts
for Chihar hoen Besn dsapyegaind io aschids Bracd io abge with the cosment

prasantsan
3. Oefwer Mo WLE s prowasions for Z008, 20008 anad 2030 primrily inchuda Gy,
Hong Kong and Sngapors

Reconciliation of the U.8, Fedaral Statutory Incama Tax Rate
o the Effective Incomsa Tax Rate

2024 s ez

LLE, fedanl @attory Ssime e 0% HNO% HO%
LS, state and local inoome taoes, nal of

UL Medtaral Inconse Lax berefils 30 a4 i8
Cromeasic i ooedts and b sxempt rooma (1K) [ {05
Hanl5 samangs 1.8 (K] 183
Emloysa shane-hanes awards {8 [LE}] {11}
Moo -tamalide incones’ 9.3 23 {085
Crivae X o o
EMecthes oo 1Ax (s A% il RN HET %

1 In XD, Mos bussbis ncome was peesenied sapacsiely for B feel ee. The prics
priod Aot far Mosll S swmings and Offer have been dsagyregaisd in
sk Mo Rnabily incores ko algn wth He Cored prassatton
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nn:la-f, D 30

§ 7 it 4
‘Gress dofarred tax assats B o
Hal oparateg kess and tax oedt carmyfomeards 5 236 5§ i
Emngliyes =ompansadon mnd benat plars 2,568 TEM
Allraancs for cradit limses ard other rassras To8 TS
Vialungon of nat tmding irveniony, mmsTencs and

mRosRabias 1,808 1867
ore m o=
Total detmmes t assats 5,828 T
Linsch: (Dl Lice dschits itk I 4 Fall
Dinlamed tax asssts afer valunSon allowanos §  B41d 5 5490
Gross delarmed tax Nabdiies
Fiwed assets B ]
Intangblis ara goodwill 1,631 2000
Tival dafurmed n Babilties 8 2738 § 277
Ml dafsmed S nvsets § Iph: 3 28

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary
differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of
assets aned habilities and are measured using the enacted tax
rabes and bws that will be in effect when such dilferences are
expected to reverse.

The Firm behieves the recognized net deferred tax assets (after
valuation allowance) s December 31, 2024 are more likely
than not to be realized based on expectations as to fulure
taxable income i the jurisdictions m which it operntes.

The eamnings of certn foreign subsidiones and affilmes wre
indefinntely reinvested due to regulatory and other capital
requirements 1n forelen junsdictions. As of December 31,
2024 and December 31, 2023, the wwecogrized deferred tax
linbilaty attributable o indefinitely reinvested camangs i 5405
mllion and 3302 mulhion, respectively

Rollforesard of Unrecognized Tax Benoefits

£ 1 Mo e I ey
Balance & beginnirg of padd § 124 5 1119 § L ral
Increasss based on tax postions mleted oo

ol CLTE pasd Fi-r 14y Fo]
Incramsas hased on X poaions relased o

ErF ol 132 144 &4
Decraatet b or lax potiSors melesd i

PFor peninos. (52 T3 {1
Deomaies relaied o safisments with taxing

aiboriis (174 i) A8y
Cracraases reliied w0 blipsa of statuts of

Evdations 4n {20 122)

Balance &) e of pard
Hal unecoorired tnx bansfi

8 1385 § 1244 5 1139
$ 1,199 § 050 5 100y

1 Flapresent andng uvmoogeized tan bessits adjsted for the impach of e federal
bt cf st masms, compatent mfority amangernts and Sumgn b oot
offuats. ¥ meogried. thess nst banefits would fewirably impadt the sfiscte tac
ratn i s pavicds

It 15 reasonably possible that significant changes n the
balance of unrecognized tax benefils may occur within the
next 12 months, At this time, however, it is nol poasible 1o
reasorably estumate the expected change 1o the tolal amount
of unrecopnized tax benefits and the impact on the Firm's
elfective tax rate over the next 12 months.

Diocember 2024 Form 10-K
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Morgan Stanley

Interast Expanse (Benefil) and Panalties Associsted with
Unrecognized Tax Banofits, Mol of Federal and State Income
Tax Banefils

& iy e 2hd AN Firerd
Rscagnirad in Rdons Lt £ ] Lo »
Acerusd ol and of pedod 255 7 175

Interest and pemaltics related to unrecogrized tax benefits are
recognized as a compenent of the provision for meome taxes.

Eariest Tax Year Subject lo Examination in Major Tax
durisdictions

LES, .ol
M York: Siate mnd M York Sy 010
LEK, ;4
dapan Foerat)
Hong Kong ik

The Fum 1z routinely under examination by the [RS and other
1 authorities in cerlaim countries, such as Japan and the
UK., and in states and kocalities in which it has sigmificant
business operations, such as New Yook

The Fim believes that the resoluion of these tax
examinations will not have & maternial effect on the annual
financeal statements, although a resolution could have a
material mpact in the income statement and on the effective
fax mate for any period in which such resclutions ocour

22,  Segment, Geographic and

Information

Revenue

The Firm structures ils segments pomartly based upon the
nature of the financial products and services provided to
customers and ils  mamagement crganization. which s
consistent with the approach used by the Firm's cheefl
operating decision maker ("CODM™) to assess the Firm's
financial performance. The Frrm provides a wide range of
financial products and services to is customers in each of s
business  sepments:  Instindtiomal  Securities.  Weahh
Management and Investment Management. For a further
discussion of the business sepments, see Note 1.

Revenues and expenses  directly associated with each
respective business segment are mcluded in determining its
operatmg results. Other revenues amd expenses that are ot
directly attributable 10 a particular business scgment are
generally allocated based on cach haminess sepment’s
respective nel revenues, noneinterest expenses or other
relevant measures,

As aoresult of revenues and expenses from transactions with
cther operating segments being treated as iransactions with
external partics for purposes of segment disclosures, the Firm
includes an Intersegment Eliminations category to reconcile
the business segment resulis to the consolidated results.
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The Fim's CODM 15 its Chief Executwe Officer, who
evaluales segment performance and allocates resources based
on numerous business, strategic and financial corsiderations.
The CODM's (inancial considerations include amalysis of
multiple segment profit measures, such as Income before
provision for income taves and Pre-tax margin. Furthermore,
the CODM evaluates certain addinonal segment perfermance
metncs including Betun on average common cquity. The
sepment profit measures are caleulated in accordance with
L5 GAAP and are consistent with the amounts preserted in
the Firm's consalidated income statement

The CODM's review of the profil measwes includes
evaluation of segment profitability and assessment of actual
results compared to budget. These measures are regularly
provided to the CODM and are a component of a multifaceted
decision-making process regarding segment performance as

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
ooooOoog
Morgan Stanley
0T
i ot W M W Taw
invesman! barking SANTE 3 454 5 — & (84) SandD
Trasing 14,488 B3 [55] 3 15263
Inveimenis 157 62 N4 —  &T3
Coamminsisrs mre fees & hab 2278 - {3 4hA7
Asial mansgemen’ 8 401D 523 3 1T
Crbae 48h 513 it LI
Totdl Ron-ieiest feverues  CZATD 1R1S0 5499 {575) 45,013
nisms! Pcome’ I 15D1E 106 1A 45840
Ininrast axpanse® 3062 607 e {1.70d) 37810
Nt iz Tan ae pzm 0 daw
Mt Favmnuink 523,060 S26,268 ShHATD S (Bas) $54,143
Provision for credit losses 5 401 % 131 § — £ — § &u2
Companegion and bensfes’  B38D 13072 237 — 24558
Non-compensation sxpenses’ (A4 BERS 2311 {520 17240

Toanl non-interest sxpeedas  S0A 083 S105607 S4808 8 (A3 £41.708

oo Eform peowision for

wiell as resource and capital allocation rithebu b oot S L R I B L
ProsAsie fOF o0 @aas i 1 500 168 df 2563
Selected Financial Information by Business Segment x e ; e sga B3 27 9.0
Incoimes I.Pm.l o
202 marconirolng Foseests 13 - 4 - 143
Nt bncome spplicabls to
£t v s Lo, R Margan $3453  S5022  SE1S  § (27 0087
Imvesimen] harking 170 % 653 0§ —  F (W1A) 56,705 Pra-tas margios W% % 16% MM YT
Traging 1067 TR ] B 18,769 e e et
I e a1 £DE BS 333 _ B4 HFF
Commbisinng ard fess” 2,005  2ATE —_ 280y 50pd iy il 5 ;‘“' T VE Towd
Assal epeagsenses’ © 040 RS0 BRI RTO) 23.4M Invesimen barking S8 % 438 5 = 8 [74) 50500
el L LA LSS, . 13 1,264 Trasing MBI £ 19020
Toal nondnteest reverues 26,7 21907 BS83 (881} 83,450 el e (116 i 1= B
Inimrs! incoms WANT 16247 192 (1,584) 54,138 el ard fase TTE6 2487 — s 40w
Il Eupuaras 37,555  BSMd I3 [1,55T) 45,524 AsiRl Managiee BBO  1AATD A3N2 {308 veATR
L 1A T pEn 4 381 Ot (@S seT @) (1B 28R
st nenues 520080 $38420 $5BG1 S (800) 864,761 Tt non-ierest iveruan. | 22430 16588 AN By daat
mmwmthmn. $32 5§ €2 § — § — §264 "] ncome 13276 9570 B85 {1318 21505
Comfen sation and bansts BGER  1RIO0T 2302 - 26 ATH [T p— TE T 10 (1330 12268
Honcompemuation sepanses’ 10,860 5411 2423 (STO) 17,723 et iy 1055 TAZD i) 7 8327
Totnl non-ntarest sxparses $10,120 SZ0618 54,734 % (870) $42.501 “Mat revanuns 5303 $24417 $5375§ (817) 53,680
Incomss bafone prosskon for rovislon T = =
P S84  STTMD  $143 § [30) 17506 5 fop oo ” T T § §, 200
= T A i LT a2 M ™ 4087 Companssion and benees . G285 125M 2273 — 3,053
P Fr e 123 13,529 Nen-compensgion asperses’ 5,021 5231 2205 {801 15,246
Ha! ircome appiicabis i Total nen-nterest sxpenses  S17.467 $17.765 S4.568 3 (500 $30.200
reonconilhng Eriseests 136 — 3 —_ 148 hwb-ll’m priskon Tor
e —— .m. GO L SA74h  SESRY ST % (18 $14.088
0 St 666 55 $830  § (23 $13.300 Priveision fof ncoms Wz 1308 1444 182 14} 2810
Pra-ax mingin % I 1% L 28 % Ml incoma s407 ERE E5 & 1are
Nt iz applcabie o
nmw.lnn imersiy 1hy - Rl - 160
Hat income liﬂrlulhhln
Morgan $5.243 55130 SE0  § (12 §41.020
Pra-cax maigie H% 7% 1% MM %

1. SulbakanfinBy o revendss ane oo contrachs withs CuslDmes

T Inchides catan less thal oy ralale 0 sandoes Do ied i pod peends

3 Tha signficant sopenas camgores aned arcanis align wish the cegment vl
vinrmation that i sege ey prossded 1o ths CODM

4 Predm mawgn repeesents incoma be'es proviion o beome tiess s 8
piiantaga & el reenuse.

L m:mmwnmmmuumamhmm
prasantalion This adgsiment ieslied i 8 decrases o BOB sl ncome and

mw Fvis Mot 2 o ety infoirhuion
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Shomeew B L
Institutioral Seouites—~Advisory 3237 52344 52046
Institutional Encunithes= ircereiing 3,782 254 2 1Y
Elmi Invesimeni banking mverses from

contrcis with ousiomens wﬂ_ ._N.ﬂ. 0 %
Trading Revenues by Product Type

£ v e i e
Inimmms! min 5 5901 5 4548 5 Zana
Foneign mschange 1470 1054 1,885
Ecuity' T L] .88
Commodiy and ofher 3] 1634 1,485
Lredt A8 (e fiad
Todal § 16,783 § 15263 § 13503

1 Dorichinradl irictor'si i invhuchnd within iy Soralrachn

The previous table summarizes realized and unrealized gains
and losses prmarily related to the Firm's Trading assets and
lmabilitics, from dervative and non-derivative  financial
instruments, included in Trading revenves m the income
sttement. The Firm generally utilizes fnancial instruments
across @ vanely of product tpes i connection with s
market-making and related nisk management strategies. The
tracling revenues presented in the table are not representative
of the manner in which the Firm manages sz business
activities and are prepared in a4 manner smilar to the
presentation of trading revenues for regulatory reporting

purposes

Investment Management Investmeants Revenues—Net
Cumulative Unrealized Carried Interest

At
Decambar 31, Decamiser 3§
ELL 2024 )
L1 by o "G
Dteard inne it riak of ierrivsing L) L, ) L

The Firm's portion of net cumulative performance-baszd fees
in the form of unrealized camed imerest, for which the Fim
15 not obligated 10 pay compensation, 15 at rsk of reversing
when the retums i cerain funds fall below specified
performance targets. See Note 14 for information regarding
general  partner  guasantees, which  inchsde  potential
chlipations 1o return performance fee distributions previcusly
received

Investment Managemani Asset Management Revenuas—
Reduction of Fees Due 1o Fed Waihvers

¥ i mlins il pirral Firred
_F“\Hh‘!ﬂ g ” L a5 LN

The Firm warves a portion of s fees in the Investiment
Management business segment from certam registered money
market funds that comply with the requirements of Rule 2a-7
of the Investment Company Act of 1940,

Diacember 2024 Form 10-K

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

MOI‘QEI'I SIEH'IIE}I'
Certain (ther Fee Waivers

Separately, the Firm's emplovees. including s senior
officers, may participate on the same terms and conditions as
other investors - certain funds that the Fim sponsors
primarily for chent investment, and the Firm may waive or
lower applicable fees and charges for 115 emplovees

Other Expenses—Transaction Taxes

1y 2 ol Hix:
Trarsacion laxes 3 B8 5 2855 a0

Transaction taxes are composed of securites ranssction taxes
andd stamp duties, which are levied on the sale or purchase of
securties histed on recognized stock exclmnges in certain
markets. These taxes are imposed mainly on trades of equity
securties i Asmoand EMEA. Similar tinsaction tixes ire
levied on trades of hsted derivatve instruments in certam
countries

Hat Revenues by Region

§ iy Forad Foral HrE
Armanicas § 49k & 41881 F 007
EMES 74T Epsa EAN
Asia TS Lrat] &40
Total § E1.761 § 54143 § B3ES2

Income before Provision for Incoma Taxes

5 o A Forad Foral faered

LLE, $12526 & BXM 3 oM
Mondi 5" S8mb 3470 4008
Tenl S 17A86 £ 11813 5 14040

1. Monl 5. ecoma is defined s noome gensnsied from opanstions ocated oulside
e L1

The Firm operates in both ULS, and non-11.5, markets. The
Firm's non-U1. 5. business activities arg pnncipally conducted
and managed through EMEA and Asia locations, The nat
revenues disclosed in the previcus table reflect the regional
view of the Firm's consolidated net revenues on a managed
basis, based on the following methodology:

Instrnionral Secwrinies: Client location for advisory and
equity  underwriting, syndicate desk location for debt
underwriting, trading desk [ocation for zales and trading,
Wealth  Managemeni.  Amencas, where representalives
operate.

Investment Management, Client location, except certain
chosed-end funds, which are based on asset location,

Rovenues Recognized from Priof Services

# by ey e el Firred
Mt o s, § 180 % 1778 5 28

The previous table meludes revenues from contracts with
customers recopnized where some or all services were
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performed m prior periods. These revenues prmarily include
investment banking advisory fees.

Racoivables from Cantracts with Customans

23, Parent Company

Parent Company Only—Condansed
Comprahansive Incoma Statemant

Morgan Stanley

Bnlmh-lrﬂ ¥ |:>.-‘:-|1J"l kL fommen o T
1, iter 28, by - .
A s g o x-u.::l:.ﬂm Buirk s Saring § 55M 5 5770 § ZATS

Cusions Bnd ofsed rceabls 5 1628 % L30% 3
Diiwicenss freen BrD ard por-hark soloddianss 8,228 &AMz dadn
Receivables from contracts with customers, which e :'::n T m;::] 12['::1 ::ﬁj
inchaded within Customer and other receavables in the balince e ® @) 1
sheet, anse when the Firm has both recorded revenues and the [ T —— 10,008 11076 10853
right per the contract to bill the customer. Intirwa e 16738 13868 BADA
Ininrest apenss 15377 13608 BE
Assals hj' Business EIQI'IHI'TI [T T — 362 (22} AT}
- 2 [Trrp—— WA 11,754 10308
Decembar 31,  Decamber 31, MHor-irlares! exparied b ] ol o
Fin mem 2024 szl Incoms balers incomes toes 10,013 11457 0084
Instintiorsl Secuiitien L TeEad 5 AED. 504 Provsion for (banaf fesm) ecome ass. (48R (A0 (das)
e et b o SR et i bafors rdlsirbuted gar o R o
Irnvmsimien! W anagemer: 17898 1.0 subedinnies 10,512 11987 10410
Total® § 42871 § 1163883 Urdisinbuted (kvss) gain of subsedanes SATh (2000 ik
1, Paent wunsts Fuave besan Sully alncand in e Duniness sagmens il o
Otuh: conywshansisae ircoma (loax), nat of

Total Assats by Reghon Forsign eumsncy ransleson adjamants (324 s R
i DS it b i S
£ i i FLET k) Pansiors and othar 12 (&7} il
ey BOAITE 5 ERi14 Change in net debt valuntion sdjustment (551 §120p  144e
EMNEA $TH187 L Ml charge in cash Sow hadges (51) an Lad
Asin AT 14058 Crmprabensiva ircoms 812997 § 2019 § 7ATR
Tetal 5 12B0T § 1193880 Hist incoma 13,380 5 S0E7 S11038
Pirefarmad saock chidends and othar 488

145

Eamin b 0 M Saanl
e

AT

312,800 3 5530 510540
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Parant Company Only—Condaensed Balance Shaat Parant Company Only—Condensad Cash Flow Statemant
AL - ad - # i Kok il i
Dacdombar 31, Dacamb - Mt cash ke s
$ i e st wtans dat 24 2023 ac by fu tor} opsealing 51 24014 !,|:| E.DH.'I
g Toah s T Srvemting meiies — Pl il L
Cash arsd cask aouivalanis 8 49,343 £ 18401 Pirzssscts. froem (parprients Lt
Trastinng masein & fair velus 3,044 4,160 AFE securites;
o o] oL B ! Pk s (T.B06)  (OEZ, (18
Ayl nbie-Tor-aabe at fair valis (anorieed
s of $3,887 o 322144 $17038 an i i el — M0 o7
$10,1 T e (Bcped t VENOUS paries) 22100 21518 Prreszigd & fom Papdowrs. i mEtung TE84 s4ra g4
EC {adr vk of 342,080 and HTM secundes
5 ﬂéa:i‘l,g 40,0
o e wmrm’mm 13,160 15,204 Purch aies 1,78 - (k2
Secunithes purchased Lrosr agremsment i Procasds from papdowrs and maturties 4,40F LTk A4
rerall 12 A Tililas 26,730 4 iy SRcLies PLIChAsED Lrder Bgreemenis o
ArAros o s e el wilk: a*liates (L0AT)  {1LNDEp (1871
St iten ol Lrder Ase e
Flark e NG A,y J0om mapuichass with afiliaoes {6.529] (BEEDY 11,755

Horpark 154,100 130,260

b Advarass foand reesiments in subsidianes 88} (00T, (10474)
Ecndty inmyesineris in subsldiaries;

Kt canh provices by fused for] investing

Bk and B 60,304 58,8 _Bcrivides _RVA46) (18T 1,181
Mon-bank 51,100 B, Cash flows from finarcng activisies
Othar gisss 1,666 &40 Proces:s, o
Total axustn 5 300,63T § AT 682 Famuancs of prafenmd Lok, rel of isuanos
Liabékties G G55 - g
suance of Bomowings Jaaes  ThrEd AN
Tracing Babifes ol far e 5 100 § a“ F" ""a_ :
Eacunihes sobd uRaer agresenas 1o g i
PpHATESE Frons 4% 13,784 20,203 Bomowings {24,500) (225540 (14441)
Papallag 1o and advarces Fom iubaiates BT 3An Foaprurchanns of common sodk ard snylpss
Cthoar linbilides and acorued mperses 1,011 155 1 W ol (4161)  gETE (10871
& ings e S1ZB14 o S13 404 a Cash dividands {6,138) (57638 [(H401)
fair valua} 182,427 176,884 Hat changs in advarcss o subsidiaries 4383 (A0, 1650y
i v Min'eo ]l e - ad .
S TCEL N R 1 gV YO Y
e e i il Efisct of muchange mis chenges on cash and
ard gort Bablitles (aew Nots $4) eash LN (200) 147 a5
Equity M incriass [cecmasa)in cash ard cash
- sudvalens 2AB2  phANZ S
Prafamed ook 0,750 B.r50 Catlh i el aicbion. ¥ Edginnieg of
Commaon sock, S0 par vake: _pemod - iaBE1 @533 15342
Eharws authonzed: 3,500000,000; Shares Gash ard cash sguivalents, at wnd of parkod  $15,343 S 16681 225353
asd: 2,000,803, 578; Shanes culstandng: —
1,808, B8N, T8 and 1626 528 437 ] m Cash snd cash eguivalents:
Agstional pakdan captel ELRE] Pl e Cash ard ous fmm banks § 835 wWry T
FRalnined sarmings 104,269 o7 008 Drispraits with bark subsifiasies AB2TT IRTTE 25258
Ernployen sinck inusis s,103 6014 Cash and cash squivalents, st end of pariod  §19,343 S16881 $25333
Agmunmnidatedg nher whensioe ncome
prady GO P i Rasmiciad cash 5 1,066 & 1085 8 A3
Common stodk ekd in reasiry at oosl $0.01 Supplementsl Disclodurs of Caik Flow lnlemption
par wakue (432,240,273 nd 412065542 i i
ahanes) 33,813) (31,13 h paymants for-
Cammon asdk issued 1o amphaps 20k Feras S1B8T1 S14437 § 5985
AL (8105 5314} tecoma lasss, pal of miunos’ TE Fo I R ]
Tedal sharsholders’ squity 104,511 8,058
g T P e p— o e i Fapresents Wt payments, nef of eefinds. made D variows e sethorities and
Tatel Nt s wapalty 33067 5 aTEie Inchscles baxws paid oo bshalf of certan that ae quenty sttied
Eatwmin tha Parent Comgany and thass udnisiaiss The i
fromn ushaklariay warn §1.0 blion, $1 8 billon snd §7 6 bllon for 3024, 20E and
FEL mspacialy
For information on the Parent Company’s preferred stock, see
MNote 17.
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Transactions with Subsidiurics

The Parent Company has transact:ons with its corsalidated
submicharies deternined on an agréed-upon basis and has
puaranteed cerfam unsecured lines of credit and contractual
chligations on certain of it consolidated subsidianes.

Guarantees

In the normal course of its busmess, the Parenl Company
guarantees certain of it subsidianies’ obligations on a
transaction-by-transaction  basis under wvarious financial
arrangements. The Parent Company has psued guarantees on
behalf of s subsidianes 1o vanows US. and non-US
exchanges and clearmghouses that trade and clear securities
andlor futures contracts. Under these guarantee arrangements,
the Parent Company may be required to pay the financial
chligations of 115 subsidiaries related 10 business transacted on
or with the exchanges and clearmphouses m the event of a
subsidiary’s default on its obligations to the exchange or the
cleaninghouse. The Parent Company has not recorded amy
contmgent liabilaty in ils condensed financaal statements For
these ammangements and  believes that any  potential
requarements to make payments under these armangements are
remote.

The Parent Company also, m the normal course of business,
provides standard indemnities to counterparties on behalf of
ite  submidiaries for tases, inclwding U5 and foreign
withholding taxes, on interest and other pavments made on
denvatives, securities and stock-lending transactions, and
certain anmuity products, and may also provide indemnities to
or on behalfl of affilistes from tme to tme for other
arrangements, These indemnity payments could be required,
as applicable, based on a change m the tax laws, change in
interpretation of applicable tax rulings or claims an=ing from
contractual relationships between aflilistes. Certain contracts
contain provisions that enable the Parent Company o
termirmie the agreement upon the occurrence of such events.
The maximum potental amount of future payvments that the
Parent Company could be required to make under these
indemnifications cannot be estimated. The Parent Company
has not recorded any contingent Liabihity n s condensed
financial statements for these indemnifications and believes
that the occurrence of any events that would trigger payments
umder these contracts is remote.
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Morgan Stanley

Guarantees of Debt Instruments and Warranis |lssued by
Subsidiaries

A AL
Cracamber 31, Decander 11,

Sommos N S ]
Agpregale balance k] TOEER 5 B0 42

Guarantees undar Subsidiary Leasa Obligations

A Al
Dacamber 31, Decamber 31,
iy il a4 T

_Aggregale belance” 3 [ ] o]

1 Arouwnts prmaily relabe o the LI E

Finance Subsidinry

The Parent Company fully and unconditionally guarantees the
secunties issued by Morgan Stanley Finance LLC, a wholly
owned fimance subsichary. Mo other subsicary of the Parent
Company guaraniess these securities.

Resolution and Recovery Planning

As indicated i the Firm's 2023 resolution plan submitted to
the Federal Reserve and the FIDIC, the Parent Company has
entered into an amended and restated support agreement with
s material enties {ncluding ns wholly owned, direct
subsidiary  Morgan Stanley Holdings LLC (the “Funding
THC "y and certain other subsidianies. Under the amended and
restated secured support agreement in the event of a
resolution scenano, the Pasent Company would be obligated
o contribute all of s contnbutable assets 1o its supported
entities andfor the Funding THC, The Funding THC would be
obligated 1o provide capital and liquidity, as applicable, to fts
supparted entities, The obligations of the Parent Company
and the Funding THC under the amended and restated suppont
agreement are in most cases secured on a scndor basis by the
assets of the Parent Company (other than shares in
subsichianes of the Parent Company ard certun other assels)
ard the assets of the Funding [HC,

Diecember 2024 Farm 10-K

401/432

oOoOooodn



Table of Contents

Changes in amd  Disagreements  with
Accountants on  Accounting  and  Financial
Disclosure

Mone.
Controls and Procedures

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure
Controls und Procedures

Unader the supervision and with the participation of the Firm’'s
management, including the Chiell Executive Officer and Chief
Fimanceal Offscer, the Firm conducted an evaluation of the
elffectiveness of the Firm's disclosure controls and procedures
{0z defined i Rule 13- 150¢) of the Secunties Exchange Act
of 1934, s amended (the “Exchange Act™)). Based on this
evaluation, the Chiel Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that the Firm's disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered
by this annual report.

Munagement's Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting

The Firm's management is responsible for establishing and
mainiaining adeguate internal control over fimancial reporting
The Fum's imtemal control over fmancial reporting 1=
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepamation of
financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with
penerally accepted accounting principles i the United States
of America (“L15. GAAP™).

Dicember 2024 Form 10-K

152

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

Morgan Stanley

The internal contrel over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that:

» Pertain to the mamtenance of records that, in reasomable
detml, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Firm,

+ Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with UUS. GAAP amnd that recepts and
expenditures are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of the Firm's management and directoss; and

= Provide remsonable assurance regarding prevemion of
timely detection of unauthonized acquisition, wse or
disposition of Firm assets that could have a material effect
on the Firm's financial stalements.

Because of its inherent limitations, imemal control over
finance| reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectivencss to future
periods are subject to the nsk that controls may become
inadequete because of changes in conditions or that the degree
of complance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Manngement assessed the eflectiveness of the Firm's imernal
contrel over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024, In
making this assessment, management used the cnteria set
forth by the Commitiee of Sponsoring Crganizations of the
Treadway Commission ("COS0™) in Internal Comtrol
Integrated Framework (2013). Based on management's
assessment and those criteria, management believes that the
Firm mantained effective intermal comtrol over financial
reparting as of December 31, 2024

The Fam's independent registered public sccounting fim has

audited and issued a report on the Firm's internal control over
firanceal reporting, which appears below,

402/432
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Tao the Shareholders and the Boasd of Directors of Morgan Stanley:

Opindon en Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the intermal control over financial reporting
of Morgan Stanley and subsidiries (the “Firm™) as of
December 31, 2024, based on criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework (2013} issued by the
Commitiee of Sponsoring Crganizations of the Treadway
Commussion (COS0), In our opinien, the Firm maimained, in
all materaal respects, effective intemal contrel over Nnancial
reporting as of December 31, 2024, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
(2013 tssued by COS0,

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States)
(PCADB), the financial statements of the Firm as of and for
the vear ended December 31, 2024 and our report dated
February 21, 2025 expressed an unguahfied opinion on those
financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

The Firm's management is responsible for mantaimng
effective mternal control over financial reporting and for its
asscsament of the effectvencss of inemal comrol over
financial  reporting,  dncleded  sn the  accompanying
Management's Report on Internal Comtrol Chver  Financial
Reporting. Chur responsibility 15 10 express an opinion on the
Firms internal control over financial reporting based on our
mudit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the
PCAOE and are required to be independent with respect 1o
the Firm i accordance with the U5 federal secunities laws
and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securitics and
Exchange Comm ission and the PCAOR,

We conducied our awdit in accordance with the standards of
the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonshle assurance  about
whether effective intermnl control aver financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Owr audit included
oblaming an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting,

/e Diloitie & Touche LLE

Mew York, New York

February 21, 2025
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assesaing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectveness of imemal
control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other
procedures s we considered necessary m the circumstances.
We believe that our awdit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion

Definition and Limitadions of Infermal Conirol over
Financial Reporting

A company’s internal contrel over financml reporting 15 a
process desmned 10 provide reasonable assarance regarding
the rehability of financial reporting and the preparation of
{inancea] statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting  principles. A company’s
internal contral over fmancial reporing nchades those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain o the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, aceurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;,
(2) provide reasonable assurance thal tramsactions are
recorded as necessary 1o permil prepamation of fnancial
stalements in accordance with generally accepled accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only i accordance with muthorztons of
mangement and directors of the company, and (3) provide
reasonable Assurance regarding prevention or tmely detection
of unawthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s &sscts that could have a material effect on the
financeal stalem enls

Because of Ms inherent limilations, imtemal control over
financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements,
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the msk that controls may become
madequate because of changes m conditions, or that the
degree of complance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate,

Diecember 2024 Farm 10-K
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Morgan Stanley:
Opinion on the Financiad Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Morgan Stanley and subsidiaries (the “Firm”) as of December 31,
2024 and 2023, the related consolidated income statements, comprehensive income statements, cash flow statements and statements
of changes in total equity for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2024, and the related notes (collectively
referred to as the “financial statements’). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial
position of the Firm as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2024, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have aso audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the Firm's internal control over financia reporting as of December 31, 2024, based on criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our
report dated February 21, 2025, expressed an unqualified opinion on the Firm'sinternal control over financia reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Firm's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Firm's
financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be
independent with respect to the Firm in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud.
Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on atest basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe
that our audits provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current-period audit of the financial statements that was
communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material
to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of
critical audit matters does not ater in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by
communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or
disclosuresto which it relates.

Vauation of Level 3 Financia Assets and Liabilities Carried at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis and Level 3 Loans Held for
Sae — Refer to Note 4 to the financia statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

The Firm's trading and financing activities result in the Firm carrying material financia instruments having limited price
transparency. These financial instruments can span a broad array of product types and generally include derivatives, securities, loans,
and borrowings. As described in Note 4, these Level 3 financia assets and liabilities carried at fair value on a recurring basis
approximate $6.8 hillion and $4.1 billion, respectively, and the Level 3 loans held for sale approximate $6.1 billion at December 31,
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2024. Unlike financial instruments whose inputs are readily observable and, therefore, more easily independently corroborated, the

valuation of these financia instruments is inherently subjective and often involves the use of unobservable inputs and proprietary
valuation models whose underlying algorithms and valuation methodol ogies are complex.

We identified the valuation of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value on arecurring basis and Level 3 loans held
for sale as a critical audit matter given the Firm uses complex valuation models and/or valuation inputs that are not observable in the
marketplace to determine the respective carrying values. Performing our audit procedures to evaluate the appropriateness of these
models and inputs involved a high degree of auditor judgment, professionals with specialized skills and knowledge, and an increased
extent of testing.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures related to the valuation of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value on a recurring basis and
Level 3loansheld for saleincluded the following, among others:

» We tested the design and operating effectiveness of the Firm's model review and price verification controls. The Firm maintains
these internal controls to assess the appropriateness of its valuation methodologies and the relevant inputs and assumptions.

» We independently evaluated the appropriateness of management's valuation methodologies, for selected financial instruments,
including the input assumptions, considering the expected assumptions of other market participants and external data when
available.

» We developed independent estimates for selected financial instruments, using externally sourced inputs and independent valuation
models, and used such estimates to further evaluate management's estimates. For certain of our selected financial instruments, this
included a comparison to the Firm's estimates for similar transactions and an evaluation of the Firm's assumptions inclusive of the
inputs, as applicable.

» We tested the revenues arising from the trade date fair value estimates for selected structured transactions for which we devel oped
independent fair value estimates to test the valuation inputs and assumptions used by the Firm and evaluated whether these
methods were consistent with the Firm's relevant valuation policies.

» We assessed the consistency by which management has applied significant and unobservable valuation assumptions used in
developing the Firm's estimates.

» We performed a retrospective assessment of management's fair value estimates for certain of our selected financial instruments, for
which there were events or transactions occurring after the valuation date. We did so by comparing management's estimates to the
relevant evidence provided by such events or transactions, as applicable.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
New York, New Y ork
February 21, 2025

We have served as the Firm's auditor since 1997.
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